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Kıraça
Holding
Kıraça Holding was founded by İnan Kıraç and Klod
Nahum in 1998, as Kıraça Group of Companies.
Kıraça Holding, which operates in the international
business arena, aims to bring in the idle facilities resulting
from excess capacity within the automotive sector back to
the Turkish economy, to organize the dispersed structure
of the independent aftermarket sector through a new
marketing and distribution model.
The most important management principle of the Group,
respect for people and professionalism, is beeing applied
in management positions with its young team. Today,
Kıraça Holding operates in the automotive, marine,
design-engineering and energy sectors.
The activities of the Suna-İnan Kıraç Foundation in
education, culture, arts and healthcare shed a different
light to the achievements of the Holding in industry and
trade. Within the Foundation are also the Pera Museum
and the Istanbul Research Institute.
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Message from
the Chairman
of the Board

Distinguished Shareholders,
The automotive industry, which is the biggest exporter
industry in Turkey, increased its production volume in
2014, thanks to an increase in exports compensating the
shrinking domestic market.
Taking into account recent developments in the Turkish
automotive industry, we continued to launch new
products to the market with our own brand in line with our
vision: “Limitless Transportation Solutions”. In 2014, we
delivered a great performance and gained a market share
exceeding 30% in urban transportation with our Karsan
branded JEST minibus, which we introduced in 2013. With
our sales of 941 vehicles in 2014 we became the market
leader in İstanbul, which has the largest urban minibus
park in Turkey. Karsan JEST is well beyond its competitors
with its low floor design and wheelchair accessibility,
and I am fully confident that 2015 will be even a more
successful year given JEST’s compliance with the law
requiring urban transportation vehicles to be wheelchair
accessible.
In line with our goal to offer state-of-the art products and
service solutions to the urban transportation industry,
taking into account the need for urban transformation,
we introduced Karsan branded 8m long ATAK and STAR
buses in the International Busworld Turkey Fair in April
2014. We aim to become an international actor in urban
transportation, and we introduced our new product
family to European customers and represented our
brand successfully in the IAA Commercial Vehicles Fair
in Hanover, which is one of the world’s most important
trade fair for transport.

With our Karsan branded vehicles we participated to
the Busworld Turkey in April 2014, the IAA Commercial
Vehicles Fair in Hanover in September 2014, and the
Transist show in December 2014. In Commercial Vehicles
Fair in Hanover, we introduced to Europe and the
world, Hyundai H350 light commercial vehicles series
we produced for our business partner Hyundai Motor
Company. This was a proud moment for all of us.
In 2014, in addition to our existing operations, we also
invested in total TL 211 million in production and product
development. We completed our investments required
under the “Production and Supply Agreement” we signed
with Hyundai Motor Company (HMC) in November 2012
to manufacture more than 200,000 vehicles in the first
seven years, and we are now ready to start production
in 2015. We signed an agreement in May 2014 to make
Karsan Marketing Co., the exclusive distributor in Turkey
for the new Hyundai H350 light commercial vehicles with
a 3-6 ton maximum load capacity to be manufactured by
Karsan. 2014 has been a year of investment for us where
we took another step towards a sustainable growth and
we issued bonds twice in 2014, one for TL 100 million with
two-year maturity, and another for TL 180 million with
three-year maturity. We have been awarded the “Bonds
Award of the Year” by Bonds & Loans Award Turkey in the
category of bonds issued in local currency.

We design our buses with a modern transportation
vision to meet diverse needs of cities, and in 2013, we
were awarded with a contract by the Konya Metropolitan
Municipality in 2013. In 2014, we delivered forty 18 meter
long articulated buses with an approximate value of Euro
13 million, completing our production successfully under
this contract.

In 2015, we will continue to strengthen our own brand
and achieve our vision of “Limitless Transportation
Solutions”. We are entering a period, where we will reap
fruits of the seven-year production and supply agreement
we signed with HMC, and the investments that we made.
We are reaching our goals step by step and I would like
to use this opportunity to extend my gratitude to our
shareholders, customers, business partners, employees,
and stakeholders who have all stood by our side.

We established a wholly owned subsidiary in Italy; Karsan
Italy s.r.l. in order to sell our vehicles to foreign markets
and to offer after-sales services.

Yours sincerely,

We continued our efforts to develop our Concept V1
vehicle in line with our objective to create our own
brand. In January 2014, we participated in the Zero
Emissions London Taxi Launch Event held by the London
Municipality with Concept V1 which is capable to meet
needs of all metropoles worldwide with its passenger
and/or commercial versions, thanks to its modular
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system construction. The taxi prototype we introduced
was well received by the London Mayor and taxi drivers
whom were present in the event.

İnan KIRAÇ
Chairman of the Board
Karsan Otomotiv Sanayii ve Ticaret A.Ş.
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Board of
Directors

İnan Kıraç began his career as a Sales Officer in 1961 at
Ormak A.Ş., a division of Koç Group.
In 1966, he was promoted as the General Manager of
Otoyol, the manufacturing company of Fiat trucks and
midibuses. He later became the General Manager of
Tofaş Oto Ticaret, the sales and distribution company of
Fiat cars produced in Turkey.
Kıraç was then promoted as the Vice President and later
on President of the Koç Holding Automotive Group. He
served as the CEO of Koç Holding until his retirement in
1998. İnan Kıraç was privy to every development in the
Turkish automotive industry and left his signature on
many great automotive factories.

İnan Kıraç
Chairman
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Klod Nahum

Antonio Bene

Vice Chairman

Board Member

Klod Nahum joined the Koç Group after he graduated from the London University of Kings
College with a masters in automotive engineering. He began his career as a technical
maintenance officer in 1969 at Tofaş Oto A.Ş., a division of Koç Group. In 1980, he moved
to Switzerland as the President of the Kofisa Trading Company, where he began forming
Koç Group’s other foreign trading companies. He was appointed as Vice President of the
International Trade Group in 1991 and was promoted to President in 1997. During the
period of Nahum’s service to the International Trade Group the gross turnover went from
$10 million to $1,6 billion. He is currently the Managing Director and Founding Partner of
the Kıraça Group.

Jan Nahum
Executive Director
Jan Nahum graduated from the Royal Collage of Art with a degree in Automotive Designing
after his engineering education in Robert College. In 1973, he joined the Koç Group as
project engineer. Until 2002, he took part in various positions in automotive companies
of the Group. He served as the General Manager of Otokar between 1984-1994 and then
of Tofaş between 1994-1997. Between 2002-2004, he served as the Head of International
Business Development at Fiat S.p.A. In between 2005-2007 he served as the General
Manager of Petrol Ofisi. He is now the Founding Partner of Hexagon Danışmanlık A.Ş.

Nadir Özşahin
Independent Board Member
Nadir Özşahin graduated from Istanbul University Faculty of Economics in 1965. Özşahin
began his career as an auditor at the Ministry of Finance in 1965. In 1974, Özşahin started
working in the private sector, and served as a Coordinator, Vice President and President
of Audit and Finance Group at Koç Holding A.Ş. Following his retirement in 2003, Özşahin
worked as a certified public accountant between 2004-2005, and a Board Member of Döktaş
Döküm Sanayi A.Ş. between 2005-2008. Özşahin was a Member of the Foundation Board
of Trustees and Graduates in Faculty of Istanbul University Faculty of Economics between
2000 and February, 2013. Nadir Özşahin worked as a Board Member in Ram Dış Ticaret A.Ş.
between 2008 and February, 2012.
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After mechanical engineering studies, Bene started to work in Alfa Romeo S.p.A. in 1972.
He served as Director of FIAT Auto S.p.A Mirafiori Plant, Platform and Industrial Director.
Later, he served as Ferrari S.p.A. Industrial General Manager and as TOFAS Türk Otomobil
Fabrikası A.Ş. CEO between 2002-2004, and until 2005 he served as Senior Vice President
and Global Industrial Director.

Giancarlo Boschetti
Independent Board Member
After graduating from Mechanical Engineering and Economy, Giancarlo Boschetti, started
to work in Fiat Group in 1964 where he occupied different positions for nearly 40 years. He
served as Global CEO of Iveco S.p.A. from 1991 to 2001, as Global CEO of Fiat Auto between
2002-2003. Giancarlo Boschetti serves as Board Member to many international companies.

İpek Kıraç
Board Member
İpek Kıraç graduated from Koç High School in 2002, and received her undergraduate degree
from Brown University’s Biology Department in 2007. She continues her graduate studies
at Brown University’s Public Health department. As a Founding Board of Directors Member
of the Suna and İnan Kıraç Foundation, İpek Kıraç is also a Member of the Management
Committee of Koç High School, Member of the Board of Directors at Temel Ticaret ve Yatırım
A.Ş., Member of the Board of Directors at TEGEV, Member of the Board of Directors at
Amerikan Hastanesi Sağlık Hizmetleri Ticaret A.Ş. and Member of the Board of Directors at
Zer Merkezi Hizmetler A.Ş. As of March 2012 İpek Kıraç was appointed as a CEO for Sirena
Marine.
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Business
Partners

Hyundai Motor Company
Hyundai Motor Company which was founded in 1967 is today the undisputable leader
in the automotive industry in Korea and one of the leading automotive manufacturers
of the world. The company leads the Hyundai Motor Group, an innovative business
structure capable of circulating resources from molten iron to finished cars. Hyundai
Motor has eight manufacturing bases and seven design & technical centers worldwide
and in 2014 sold 4.96 million vehicles globally. With almost 100,000 employees
worldwide, Hyundai Motor continues to enhance its product line-up with localized
models and strives to strengthen its leadership in clean technology, starting with the
world’s first mass-produced hydrogen-powered vehicle, ix35 Fuel Cell.

BredaMenarinibus
BredaMenarinibus, which has manufactured more than 30 thousand buses in a
period of over 90 years, is one of the long-established bus manufacturers which has
contributed to the development of the public transport in Italy. The Company still
operates in its facilities which are established on a total area of 155 thousand square
meters, 45 thousand square meters of which is closed. With its qualified know-how in
the field of bus design, BredaMenarinibus designs and develops each vehicle (body
and mechanic components), irrespective of its model, making use of the most updated
calculation and design techniques and provides fast and effective solutions that
meet customers’ needs and expectations. Providing the ideal example for the Italian
industry with respect to models, design and engineering, BredaMenarinibus is now a
benchmark company for competitors.
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Turkish
Economy on the
Verge of 2015
Following the global crisis and the ensuing major
stagnation period between 2007 and 2009, the world
agenda is now mainly concerned with the policies
adopted for overcoming the crisis and ensuring a strong
recovery, as well as the efficiency of such policies.
Leaving approximately 6-7 years behind after the
crisis, economic recovery is still at the top of the global
agenda today. The geopolitical conflicts which started
with the Syrian conflict in 2011 and which got worse
with the Ukrainian crisis have a negative influence on
the economic recovery dynamics that are still slow, and
make it difficult to rebuild the trust, which is the most
important aspect of economic balance.
As we move towards 2015, the key agenda items include
the scope and effect of the increased interest rate in
the United States (US), the duration and scope of the
quantitative easing program of the European Union
(EU), China’s recovery efforts, geopolitical conflicts
including mainly Russia-related risks and the decrease
in commodity prices, which is observed particularly in
oil prices. An assessment of all these factors altogether
reveals that the overall economic outlook for 2015 is not
expected to improve significantly compared to 2014.
While a relative economic improvement is observed
in the US and the UK, downside risks have increased
across the EU because of slow growth and low inflation.
In the EU, which could not show a consistent recovery
unlike the US, concerns for a third recession period are
rapidly increasing even though the IMF expects a growth
of 1.3% in the region in 2015.
Even though failure by the demand to pick up in developed
countries and the compliance requirements resulting
from the disruption in macroeconomic balances have
limited the growth in developing countries, the global
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economic growth was mainly fueled by the developing
countries in 2014. On the other hand, in this period of
tightening global liquidity, developing countries are in
need of microeconomic structural reforms which will
support their growth, rather than global liquidity.
The fact that Russia is the net petroleum exporter of
some of developing countries including mainly Brazil
and Mexico, while other countries such as Turkey and
India are petroleum importers makes it impossible to
generalize the effects of the fluctuations in oil prices for
all developing countries. The potential of the decreasing
oil prices to decrease the burden on consumers and
generate domestic demand in both developed and
developing countries will definitely make a positive
impact on global growth. However, it is equally important
to measure the negative impact of decreasing oil prices
in terms of supply, and this measurement is more
challenging. The focus note published by the World Bank
in December pointed to the fact that the decreasing oil
prices has a significant impact on Turkish economy, and
estimated that the average oil price per barrel standing
at USD 70 in 2015 will decrease the current deficit and
inflation by 1.1 and 0.9 points respectively, and increase
the growth by 0.6 points. Furthermore, the decreasing
oil prices will reduce the upside pressures on inflation,
and thus it is also likely that the decreasing oil prices will
create additional scope for interest discounts.
In 2014, Real Gross Domestic Product and Nominal
Gross Domestic Product stood at 126 billion 70 million
TL and 1 trillion 749 billion 782 million TL respectively,
with an increase by 2.9% and 11.6% compared to the
previous year. The effect of policy measures aiming to
control domestic demand taken at the beginning of 2014
started to be felt significantly as of the second quarter,
thus the domestic demand’s contribution to growth
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was quite limited. A significant decrease was observed
in private sector investments in 2014, and public
expenditures contributed to growth during this period,
becoming a determining factor for domestic demand.
An assessment of confidence indexes, which are the key
indicator of economic growth, reveals a continuous fall
particularly in consumer confidence index starting from
April 2014. We believe that the measures taken by the
Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency to prevent
credit expansion, which became effective on February
1, 2014, were effective in this fall. Declining to 67.7%
in December, consumer confidence index has reached
its lowest level since January 2010. The continued fall in
Consumer Confidence Index indicates that the economic
activities’ acceleration will be limited.
The rate of increase in the labor force has been higher
than the rate of increase in employment within the
last two-year period starting from October 2012.
Besides, the gap between these rates is also observed
to be getting wider starting from the beginning of
2014. Thus, the unemployment rate is increasing as a
natural consequence of this relation. The seasonallyadjusted unemployment rate and the non-agricultural
unemployment rate, which have showed a tendency to
increase starting from the second half of 2012, stood
at 10.4% and 12.5% respectively in December 2014.
Another major cause of increasing unemployment rate
is that the low level of growth in recent years cannot
create sufficient employment. Considering the increased
participation in the total labor force as a result of the
increasing young population and women’s increased
contribution to labor, it will be difficult for the existing
growth rates to prevent the increase in unemployment
rates.

Thanks to the disciplined approach adopted in public
finance, the ratio of public debt stock to national income
decreased to levels around 35%. This rate, which
is below the average of the developing economies,
provides Turkey with a safety margin in the face of
unexpected traumas and unfavorable conditions. As
can be seen in the tendencies observed in tax revenue
in 2014, the fact that tax revenue comprises mainly
the revenue from indirect taxes makes the budget
revenues more susceptible to growth. This provides
room for maneuver for the fiscal policies during times
of decreased economic activity. Besides, this existing
structure of budget revenues causes sacrificing special
savings.
While an increase is desired in personal savings on one
hand, public savings are negatively affected as a result
of decreasing consumption-based tax revenues. In
addition to the perception of global risk which started
to deteriorate in May 2013, during which the Central
Bank of the US (the Fed) gave signals of exiting the
quantitative easing program, a significant increase was
observed in Turkey’s risk premium indicators caused
also by the political fluctuations which increased at the
end of 2013 in Turkey and which continued until April
2014, and Turkish Lira experienced severe depreciation.
As a result of the global risk appetite increasing starting
from February and the domestic political uncertainty
which could be partly addressed by the local elections,
a decrease was observed in Turkey’s risk premium
indicators, and thus the one-week repo rate was
reduced to 50 bp, 75 bp and 50 bp in May, June and July
respectively during the meetings of the Monetary Policy
Committee (MPC). During its meeting in July, the MPC
also reduced the overnight borrowing rate by 50 bp to
7.5%. In its meeting in August, the MPC kept one-week
repo rate constant at 8.25%, and reduced overnight

lending rate from 12% to 11.25%. The Central Bank
maintained its tight fiscal policy during the rest of the
year, and did not make any changes in interest rates.
In the MPC meeting that was held on December 24,
2014, it was highlighted that the credit growth rates
were kept at reasonable levels thanks to the tight
monetary policy and the macro precautionary measures
taken. It was noted that the positive effects of the tight
monetary policy stance and the measures taken at the
beginning of the year continued on the core inflation
trends, and it was stated that the negative impact of
the developments related to cumulative exchange rate
on the annual inflation diminished gradually. With its
monetary and exchange rate policy for 2015 disclosed,
the Central Bank estimated that “in 2015, the effects of
cumulative exchange rate will continue to diminish, the
food inflation rate will decline to past years’ averages
and that a significant disinflation will be experienced
thanks to the contribution to be made by commodity
prices, including mainly oil prices”. On the other hand,
it was stated that failure to observe any improvement in
the inflation rate in the service sector, which stood at high
levels, and in the expectations were key risk components
related to inflation. In line with said expectations, the
Central Bank highlighted that it would maintain its tight
monetary policy stance. The Central Bank pointed to the
fact that the volatility of portfolio flows to developing
countries in 2015 may continue as a result of the
ongoing uncertainty about the normalization of global
monetary policies. In addition to these estimations, the
Central Bank stated that it is important to implement
macroprudential policies to limit macro-financial risks
and to support prudential borrowing.
Increasing up to 9.7 in May, the inflation was expected
to produce a double-digit increase by the year-end.
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Following the sharp decline in December, the inflation
rate stood at 8.2 by the end of 2014. This fall observed
in December was mainly caused by the 3.7% decrease in
the Clothing and Footwear expense group because
of seasonal effects, as well as the 1.8% decrease in
the transportation expense group resulting from the
decrease in oil prices. An overall assessment of 2014
reveals that the biggest contribution to the year-end
inflation was made by food and non-alcoholic beverages.
This expense group made a 3.1% contribution to 2014
year-end inflation, which stood at 8.2%. The expectation
that food prices will revert to averages indicates that
the 2015 year-end inflation will be lower. The base effect
caused particularly by the first five months of 2014 and
the decreasing oil and energy prices are expected to
make a positive contribution to inflation in 2015. The
severe depreciation in Turkish Lira in the first quarter of
2014 made a great contribution to the rise in the inflation
rate during this period. On the other hand, the decreasing
oil and energy prices are expected to make a positive
impact on the inflation. Empirical findings indicate that
oil price being USD 70-75/barrel in 2015 will decrease
the inflation rate by around 1%. In this connection,
considering the normalization in food prices, base effect
and oil prices, 2015 year-end inflation is likely to get
close to the estimations in the Medium-Term Plan (MTP).
2015 macroeconomic estimations of TÜSİAD anticipate
that domestic demand will boost the Turkish economy’s
growth dynamic, that the contribution of net foreign
demand to the growth will be zero or very limited, and
that the main determinants of the net foreign demand
will be the recovery in the EU’s economy, China’s growth
and the regional geopolitical risks.
The fact that a certain limit has been reached, with
respect to domestic demand, in the transformation of
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consumption credit / disposable income and financial
savings into credit is limiting the growth of domestic
demand through financial deepening in the short run.
The obstacle before private sector investments is the low
demand expectation. The only short-term variable that
may trigger domestic demand is public expenditures.
However, the composition of this variable is rigid as
also noted in the last Medium-Term Program. Still,
the only demand component that may have a positive
impact on domestic demand is public expenditures not
only because of its levels but also since it is possible to
change its composition.
Supply-side variables (micro competition policies
and business-investment environment policies) are
expected to be the main driver of growth in 2015 both in
short- and medium-term.

raw material prices are expected to cause a new era of
shrinkage. We can conclude that the financing of growth
will increase in 2015 for “one-time-only” because
of the extraordinary decrease in oil prices. However,
another critical aspect that needs much attention is that,
depending on which level oil prices will be balanced,
the oil-producing countries may cause a significant
decrease in demand in our region.
In all cases, a higher variation will be observed for an
important part of the year because of the General
Elections to be held, and thus the structural reformgrowth relationship is not expected to make a significant
contribution to growth in 2015. Still, TÜSİAD suggests
that if structural reforms are implemented upon
prioritization in the right manner, the medium-term
growth may be increased by 1 or 2 points on the supply
side.

If the quantitative easing program to be implemented
in the EU economy has a positive impact, if geopolitical
risks are eliminated to a great extent and if the oil
prices hover around at an average of USD 70 per barrel,
the contribution of net foreign demand to growth
may increase by 1 point. Likewise, if geopolitical risks
deteriorate, if the quantitative easing program of the EU
Central Bank cannot produce the expected increase in
the EU domestic demand for various reasons and if the
annual average oil prices stand at above USD 100 per
barrel, the contribution of net foreign demand to growth
may decrease by 1 point. In other words, the annual GDP
is estimated to increase by 3.5% in the main scenario in
2015, plus/minus 1 point.
Furthermore, the consequences of a sudden stop in the
Chinese economy might be far worse than the estimation
range above. The contraction of the global economy
caused by the shrink in China and the fast decrease in

Source: TÜSİAD
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Automotive
Sector and Position of
Karsan in the Sector

European Automotive Production

Turkish Automotive Production

Production Units (x1000)
2013

Production Units (x1000)
2014 E*

25.000

2013

2014

1.400
1.200

20.000
16.184

17.227

15.000

1.000

1.126

1.170

800
600

10.000

400
5.000

200

0

0

E*: Estimated		
EU27		
Source: ACEA, European Automobile Manufacturers’ Association

European Automotive Sales

Source: OSD, Automotive Industry Association

Turkish Automotive Sales

Sales Units (x1000)
2013

Sales Units (x1000)
2014 E*

25.000
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1.400
1.200

20.000
1.000
15.000

14.092

893

15.000

807

800
600

10.000

400
5.000

200

0

0

E*: Estimated
EU27+EFTA		
Kaynak: ACEA, European Automobile Manufacturers’ Association
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Source:OSD, Automotive Industry Association		
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Turkish Commercial Vehicle Production

Turkish Automotive Sales

Production Units (x1000)
2013

Sales Units (x1000)
2014

600

2013

Karsan Production Units

Karsan Distribution Units

Production Units

Sales Units

2014

600
90 836 576

500

492

43
900

106 936 573

34

900

42
8

500
437

400

400

300

300

200

200

10,084

228

100

100

0

0
Source: OSD, Automotive Industry Association

2013

2014
%20

%15

%15

%10

%10

%7

2013
BredaMenarinibus 4%
Peugeot/Citroen 81%
Hyundai Semibonnet* 0%

2014
Renault Trucks 7%
Hyundai Truck 1%
Karsan 7%

BredaMenarinibus 3%
Peugeot/Citroen 0%
Hyundai Semibonnet* 2%

2013
Renault Trucks 0%
Hyundai Truck 0%
Karsan 95%

(*) Since mass production has not started as of 2014 year-end, vehicles in the table were
prototypes in the relevant period.

BredaMenarinibus 5%
Peugeot/Citroen 80%
Hyundai Semibonnet** 0%

2014
Renault Trucks 7%
Hyundai Truck* 1%
Karsan 7%

BredaMenarinibus 3%
Peugeot/Citroen 0%
Hyundai Semibonnet** 2%

Renault Trucks 0%
Hyundai Truck* -1%
Karsan 96%

(*) The negative value of Hyundai Truck is due to vehicles returned in the year.
(**) Since mass production has not started as of 2014 year-end, vehicles in the table
were prototypes in the relevant period.

Market Share %

%20

%5

1,627

Bredamenarinibus BUS Series Market Performance

Market Share %
2013

10,085

220

Source: OSD, Automotive Industry Association

Karsan Brand Minibus Market Performance

1,635

2014

%14

%7
%5
%3

%0

24

%0
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Karsan Press
Review 2014

Karsan to Create Tomorrow’s Taxi – By London for London

Commercial Vehicles World (01.01.2014)

Designing the London Taxi of the Future

HaberTürk (20.01.2014)

Milliyet (17.01.2014)

Karsan Electrifies London with the V1

Sabah (20.01.2014)

Karsan Designs New Taxicab Model for London

26

Never Mind New York, here’s to London
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Busses Designed by Karsan on Italy’s Streets

Radikal Otomotiv (24.02.2014)

Karsan Delivers 40 18m Natural-Gas Powered Busses to Konya Metropolitan Municipality

Otobüs Dünyası (01.01.2014)

Bursa Hayat (22.02.2014)

Yeni Marmara (20.02.2014)

Karsan Fulfills its Orders

BredaMenarinibus Busses Produced by Karsan on Italy’s Roads

Kamyonum (01.03.2014)

Karsan Busses on Italy’s Roads
Karsan Provides Natural Gas Fuelled
Busses to Konya

Karsan’s BedaMenarinibus Busses on Italy’s Roads

28
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25 JEST’s Delivered to Batman by Karsan

Kent İçi Toplu Taşıma (15.03.2014)

Karsan’s ATAK and STAR Premieres for Turkish Visitors Under Their New Commercial
Brand Names During Busworld Istanbul

Hürriyet Otoyaşam (24.04.2014)

Milliyet (25.04.2014)

A “JEST-Ure” from Karsan to Batman
Two Busloads of Surprises

Ulaştırma Dünyası (17.03.2014)

Akşam (24.04.2014)

Karsan to Name Models During Fair

Karsan ‘STAR’s in the ‘ATAK’

Taşıma Dünyası (28.04.2014)

A “JEST-Ure” from Karsan to Batman

30

Karsan ‘ATAK’ and ‘STAR’ Hit the Roads

31

Karsan Annual Report 2014

Karsan Pazarlama Becomes Hyundai’s Exclusive Distributor in Turkey

Commercial Vehicles World (01.05.2014)

Akşam (16.05.2014)

Exclusive News Report of Dunya Daily’s China Supplement

Dünya Exclusive (29.09.2014)

Karsan Becomes Hyundai’s Exclusive Distributor in Turkey

Taşıma Dünyası (26.05.2014)

Hyundai to Enter Europe via Karsan

Karsan Prepares for Joint Production in China

32

Karsan Becomes Hyundai’s
Turkish Distributor
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Karsan’s ATAK and STAR Under Kocaeli’s Spotlight

Kamyonum (01.07.2014)

Karsan Takes Over Europe Via Hannover IAA Commercial Vehicles Fair With Three New
Members in the Mass Transit Segment

HaberTürk (25.09.2014)

Hürriyet (25.09.2014)

From Karsan to Hyundai Three
Commercial Vehicles

Karsan Signs as Sole Producer
Karsan’s ATAK and STAR under the
Spotlight in Kocaeli

Kamyonum (01.07.2014)

Vatan (26.09.2014)

Hürriyet (25.09.2014)

‘ATAK’ on Budapest

34

If We Want a Local Vehicle,
it has to be an Expensive Model
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Karsan Takes Over Europe Via Hannover IAA Commercial Vehicles Fair With Three New
Members in the Mass Transit Segment

Ulaştırma Dünyası (29.09.2014)

Karsan’s 8 Meter Intracity Bus ATAK on Istanbul’s Roads

Otogar Güle Güle (05.10.2014)

Kamyonum (01.09.2014)

Karsan’s STAR and ATAK Magnetizes Hannover

Karsan’s European Landing Begins in Hannover

ATAK is on the way to İstanbul

36

37

Karsan Annual Report 2014

Karsan Branded Vehicles Are in Romania Now

Taşıma Dünyası (08.12.2014)

Karsan Receives Bonds and Loans Awards of the Year

Eko Haber (18.11.2014)

Sözcü Ek (24.11.2014)

Karsan Receives Bonds and Loans Awards
of the Year
Karsan Now Serves Rumania too

Karsan Receives Bonds and Loans Awards of the Year

Commercial Vehicles World (01.11.2014)
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Karsan Receives Bonds and Loans Awards of the Year
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An Exclusive News Article on Karsan STAR

Turizm Taşımacılar (01.11.2014)

Karsan’s Disabled-Friendly Mass Transit Vehicles JEST and ATAK Becomes Star of EYAF

Ekonomi Yöntem (01.12.2014)

Kentiçi Toplu Taşıma (05.12.2014)

Karsan Star of EYAF
Karsan’s Disabled-Friendly Mass Transit Vehicles
JEST and ATAK, Star’s of EYAF

Cumhuriyet (08.12.2014)

Eko Haber (09.12.2014)

Karsan’s Disabled-Friendly Mass Transit Vehicles
JEST and ATAK, Star’s of EYAF
Karsan’s Disabled-Friendly Vehicles Lead the Fair

Karsan STAR, to be STAR of the Roads
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With a Large Product Range of 6 to 18 meters, Karsan Enters The 7. Transist Fair

Bursa Hakimiyet (24.12.2014)

Transist Fair Blown away by Karsan

Taşıma Dünyası (29.12.2014)

Halk Ulaşım (01.01.2015)

Ticariden (01.01.2015)

Karsan Products Spark Interest

Kamyonum (01.01.2015)

With a Large Product Range, Karsan Enters the
7. Transist Fair
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With a Large Product Range of 6 to 18 meters, Karsan
Enters the 7. Transist Fair

With a Large Product Range, Karsan Enters the
7. Transist Fair
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Design Turkey Award Goes to Hexagon Studio Designed Karsan JEST

Commercial Vehicles (01.11.2014)

Karsan JEST Wins the Design Turkey Design Award

Taşıma Dünyası (08.12.2014)

Invitation to Karsan Branch, FSM Demirbas Launch

Taşıyanlar (01.11.2014)

Otogar Güle Güle (15.12.2014)

Karsan to Grow Even Bigger with Demirbaş

Design Turkey Award goes to Karsan JEST

Ulaştırma Dünyası (08.12.2014)
FSM Demirbaş Adds Karsan to its Franchise

‘Best Design’ Award to Karsan JEST
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Independent Auditor’s
Report on the Annual Report

Annual Report

To the Board of Directors of Karsan Otomotiv Sanayii ve Ticaret A.Ş.

I. 		GENERAL INFORMATION

Report on the Audit of the Annual Report of the Board of Directors with respect to Independent Auditing Standards
1. We have audited the annual report of Karsan Otomotiv Sanayii ve Ticaret A.Ş. (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (shall be referred to as the “Group” collectively) for the financial period ended December 31, 2014.
The Responsibility of the Board of Directors for the Annual Report
2. The Group Company management is responsible for the preparation of the annual report in a manner to be
consistent with the consolidated financial statements and reflect the truth in line with Article 514 of the Turkish
Commercial Code No. 6102 (“TCC”) and the provisions of the “Communiqué No. II-14.1 of the Capital Markets
Board (“CMB”) on the Principles of Financial Reporting in Capital Markets”, and for the internal audit as
deemed required for ensuring that an annual report of such quality is prepared.
Independent Auditor’s Responsibility
3. Our responsibility is to provide an opinion, on the basis of the independent audit we have performed for
the Group’s annual report in line with Article 397 of the TCC and the Communiqué, about whether the financial
information included in this annual report is consistent with the Company’s consolidated financial statements,
which were the subject of the Group’s independent auditor’s report dated March 11, 2015, and whether this
information reflects the truth.
The independent audit we have performed has been conducted in accordance with the Independent Auditing
Standards published by the Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority, which are a part of
the Turkish Auditing Standards. These standards require compliance with ethical standards and the planning
and performance of the independent audit in a manner to obtain a reasonable assurance that the financial information
included in the annual report is consistent with the consolidated financial statements and that they reflect the truth.
The independent audit involves the application of the auditing procedures in order to gather audit evidence
related to the historical financial information. These procedures are selected on the basis of the professional
judgment of the independent auditor.

a. Accounting Period of the Report		

b.		Trade Name of the Company			
: KARSAN OTOMOTİV SANAYİİ ve TİCARET A.Ş.
MERSIS No. of the Company			: 0525000190600019
Tax Office and No. of the Company 		
: BURSA, Ertuğrulgazi V.D. No: 5250001906
Trade Registration No. of the Company 		
: 13366/22498
Contact Information of the Company 				
Headquarters and Factory
Address 					
: HASANAĞA ORGANİZE SANAYİ BÖLGESİ (HOSAB),
								 SANAYİ CADDESİ 16225 NİLÜFER/BURSA (*)
Telephone 					: +90 (224) 484 21 70 (25 LINES) - +90 (224) 280 30 00
Fax						: +90 (224) 484 21 69
Organized Industrial Zone Factory
Address 					
: ORGANİZE SANAYİ BÖLGESİ MAVİ CAD. NO: 13 16159 NİLÜFER/BURSA
Telephone 					: +90 (224) 243 33 10 (4 LINES)
Fax 						: +90 (224) 243 74 50
İstanbul Office
Address					
: EMEK MAH. ORDU CAD. NO: 10 34785
								 SARIGAZİ, SANCAKTEPE/İSTANBUL
Telephone 				
: +90 (216) 499 65 50
Fax 						: +90 (216) 499 65 53
Website 					: www.karsan.com.tr
(*) The address of the Company was changed from “Akçalar Sanayi Bölgesi 16225 Akçalar/Nilüfer/Bursa” to “Hasanağa Organize Sanayi Bölgesi, Sanayi
Caddesi 16225 Akçalar/Nilüfer/Bursa” without any physical change to the location, and the address change was registered on 15.01.2014 and announced
on 21.01.2014 in the Turkish Trade Registry Gazette.

c. Changes During the Period Regarding the Organization, Capital and Shareholding Structure of the Company
Registered Capital Ceiling 			
: 600,000,000 TL
Issued Capital 				: 460,000,000 TL

We believe that the independent audit evidence we have gathered during the independent audit constitutes
sufficient and appropriate basis for the formation of our opinion.
Opinion
4. We are of the opinion that the financial information included in the annual report of the board of directors is
consistent, in all respects, with the consolidated financial statements subjected to auditing and reflects the truth.
Other Obligations Arising from the Legislation
5. No material finding has been made, which needs to be reported, indicating that the Group will not be able to
continue its activities in the foreseeable future in line with the BDS 570 “Going Concern” principle, pursuant to
the third paragraph of Article 402 of the Turkish Commercial Code No. 6102.
Başaran Nas Bağımsız Denetim ve
Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Müşavirlik A.Ş
A member of PricewaterhouseCoopers

: 01.01.2014 - 31.12.2014

COMPANY’S TITLE

31.12.2014

31.12.2013

SHARE AMOUNT (TL) SHARE RATIO (%)

SHARE AMOUNT (TL) SHARE RATIO (%)

Kıraça Holding A.Ş.

291,905,176

63.46

291,905,176

63.46

Group A preferred

32,725,736

7.11

32,725,736

7.11

259,179,440

56.34

259,179,440

56.34

168,094,824

36.54

168,094,824

36.54

794,663

0.17

794,663

0.17

167,300,161

36.37

167,300,161

36.37

460,000,000

100.00

460,000,000

100.00

Group B
Other
Group A preferred
Group B
Total

As of year-end of 2014, our free-float rate listed under the Central Registry Agency (CRA) is 33.99%.
In 2014, a Corporate Risk Management Department was established in the Company, and a new manager was
appointed.

Beste Gücümen, SMMM
Partner

Istanbul, March 11, 2015
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Committees Board of Directors

d. Disclosure on Preferred Shares and Voting Rights of Shares
According to Article 8 of the Articles of Association, the article on Board of Directors, Group A shares possess a right
of “privilege to nominate candidates for the election of members of the Board of Directors”. The Company’s Articles
of Association does not feature a privilege on the use of votes.

Committee
Audit
Committee

e. Information on the Board of Directors, Executives and Number of Employees
Corporate
Governance
Committee

i. Board of Directors
Members of the Board of Directors were appointed in the Ordinary General Assembly held on June 27th, 2014 in
accordance with the Articles of Association, pursuant to the Turkish Commercial Code and relevant regulations;
for a period of one year or, in any case, until the appointment of their successors.
Members of the Board of Directors as of 31.12.2014:

Committee on
Early Detection
of Risks

Committee Members

Position

Nature

Convention Frequency
Every three months,
a minimum of
4 times a year

Nadir Özşahin

Chairman

Independent member

Giancarlo Boschetti

Member

Independent member

Nadir Özşahin

Chairman

Independent member

Klod Nahum

Member

Deniz Özer (*)

Member

A minimum of
Non-executive member 2 times a year
Executive member

Nadir Özşahin

Chairman

Independent member

Klod Nahum

Member

Non-executive member

In every two months,
minimum 6 times a year

(*) Head of the Investor Relations Department was assigned to the Corporate Governance Committee under Article 11 of the Communiqué
No. CMB II-17.1.

Board of Directors

Position

Commencement Date

İnan Kıraç

Chairman

27.06.2014

Klod Nahum

Vice-Chairman

27.06.2014

Jan Nahum

Executive Board Member

27.06.2014

Nadir Özşahin

Independent Board Member

27.06.2014

Giancarlo Boschetti

Independent Board Member

27.06.2014

Antonio Bene

Board Member

27.06.2014

İpek Kıraç

Board Member

27.06.2014

The Board of Directors convened 21 times in 2014 and passed a total of 39 resolutions in these meetings. Board
members participated in a majority of the Board meetings.
Since establishment of a Board of Auditors is discretionary according to the new Turkish Commercial Code, no
members of the Board of Auditors were elected at the Ordinary General Assembly Meeting held on June 27,
2014 and, as proposed by the Audit Committee, it was approved that Başaran Nas Bağımsız Denetim ve Serbest
Muhasebeci Mali Müşavirlik A.Ş., which was elected as the Independent External Audit Firm during the Board of
Directors’ meeting held on 28.03.2014 with no. 2014/7, would serve as the independent external audit firm for
one year.
Detailed information on tasks performed by Independent Members of the Board of Directors and Independence
Declarations of Independent Members of the Board of Directors is provided in Annex 1 and Annex 2.

In this financial period, the Audit Committee worked in accordance with the CMB legislation and its Duties and
Working Principles in relation to selection of an independent audit firm, disclosure of financial statements to the
public, and disclosure of the report to the public on use of funds generated from the capital increase, and issued
6 reports. In this financial period, the Corporate Governance Committee worked in accordance with the CMB
legislation and its Duties and Working Principles in relation to preparation of Corporate Governance Compliance
Report, supervision of activities of Investor Relations Unit, and nomination of candidates to become Independent
Board Members as a part of its function as the Nomination Committee; and developing Remuneration Policy and
carrying out remuneration committee activities as a part of its function as the Remuneration Committee, and
issued 7 reports. During this period, the Committee on Early Detection of Risks worked in accordance with the
CMB legislation and its Duties and Working Principles, and issued 6 reports.
iii. Executives
Executives

Position

Ahmet Murat Selek (*)

CEO

2008

Mechanical Engineer (M.Sc)

İsmail Hakkı Güralp (**)

Deputy General Manager of Financial Affairs

2013

Business Administrator

Ömer Yıldırım (**)

Deputy General Manager of Industrial Affairs

2010

Mechanical Engineer

(*) Ahmet Murat Selek is also an Executive Director of the Board of Directors of Karsan Otomotiv Sanayi Mamülleri Pazarlama A.Ş.
(**) They do not hold other positions outside the Company.

iv. Movements of White and Blue Collar Employees

ii. Evaluation of the Committees of the Board of Directors
At the Board of Directors meeting held after the Ordinary General Assembly Meeting on June 27, 2014, duties
and working principles of the Corporate Governance Committee and Committee on Early Detection of Risks
were updated according to the CMB legislation. The functions of the Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee are performed by the Corporate Governance Committee. These duties and working principles were
disclosed to the public when posted on the investor relations section on the corporate website: www.karsan.com.tr.

Commencement Date Profession

December 31, 2014

December 31, 2013

White Collar

Blue Collar

Total

White Collar

Blue Collar

Total

Karsan Otomotiv

165

715

880

170

719

889

Karsan Pazarlama

30

30

60

27

26

53

Kırpart

54

390

444

50

313

363

249

1.135

1.384

247

1.058

1.305

Total

As of 31.12.2014, the Group had a total number of 1,384 employees. Of those 1,384 employees, 249 employees
were white collar and 1,135 were blue collar. The number of employees in the Group increased by 6% in
comparison to the previous year.
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f. Information on Transactions of the Board of Directors’ with the Company on Their Own Behalf or on Behalf of
Others within the Context of the General Assembly’s Authorization, and Board of Directors’ Activities within
The Context of Prohibition of Competition
Although the Company’s Articles of Association do not have provisions on not making transactions with the
Company and not breaching the non-competition rule; it was decided at the 2013 ordinary general assembly
meeting held on June 27, 2014 that, pursuant to Articles 395 and 396 of the Turkish Commercial Code, members
of the board of directors shall be allowed to perform transactions with the Company on their own behalf and on
the behalf of others; to perform commercial transactions within the field of activity of the Company on their own
behalf or on the behalf of others, and to become a partner with an unlimited liability in any company engaged
in the same kind of trade as the Company. Also, during this ordinary general assembly meeting, it was disclosed
that in 2013, shareholders controlling the management, members of the Board of Directors, executives who
had administrative responsibilities and their spouses and second degree relatives/kin did not perform any
material transaction that might cause a conflict of interest with the Company or its affiliates and/or perform any
commercial transaction within the field of activity of the Company or its affiliates on their behalf or on behalf of
others, or become a partner with unlimited liability in any company engaged in the same kind of trade with the
Company.
In 2014, shareholders controlling the management, members of the Board of Directors, executives who
had administrative responsibilities and their spouses and second degree relatives/kin did not perform any
transactions that might cause a conflict of interest with the Company or its affiliates and/or perform any
commercial transaction within the field of activity of the Company or its affiliates on their own behalf or on the
behalf of others, or become a partner with unlimited liability in any company engaged in the same kind of trade
as the Company.
II. FINANCIAL RIGHTS OF THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES
The total amount of rights, benefits and fees provided to the members of the Board of Directors and senior
executives in 2014 was TL 5,287,623 and this amount is reported in footnotes to the financial statements,
and these footnotes are included in the annual report and on the corporate website. At the Ordinary General
Assembly Meeting, held on June 27, 2014, it was decided that as of the first day of the month following the
General Assembly Meeting, Independent Members of the Board of Directors would be paid TL 5,250 (gross) per
month and other members of the Board of Directors would be paid TL 3,150 (gross) per month.
III. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
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The factors of the support relating to Region 1 that has been provided for the investment considered within the
scope of “Regional Incentive Practices” are below:
* VAT exemption
* Exemption from Customs Duty
* Corporate Tax Rebate applied for Regional Incentive
Kırpart;
Kırpart manufactures thermoregulators, water-oil pumps and casting parts, and also invests in fixed assets in
order to manufacture new product groups and to increase the manufacturing capacity of existing products.
The investment certificate no. 106988 of September 27, 2012 obtained for modernization/extension investments
was revised with certificate no. B106988 of July 23, 2013. The amount of the revised investment incentive
certificate is TL 20,990,065.
The factors of the support that has been provided for the investment considered within the scope of “Investments
with Priority” are below:
* Interest Support
* Exemption from Customs Duty
* VAT exemption
* Corporate Tax Rebate
* Insurance Premium Employer Support
b. Information on the Company’s Internal Control System and Internal Auditing Activities, and the Opinion of the 		
Board of Directors on this Issue
Risks that are identified as a result of activities carried out by the Corporate Risk Management Unit in accordance
with a plan approved by the Committee on Early Detection of Risks, are evaluated taking the corporate risk taking
profile into account, and organization of an effective internal control system structuring is aimed with action
plans that are created. Internal Auditing activities are carried out in the group by the parent company Kıraça
Holding A.Ş, in coordination with the Company.
c. Company’s Direct or Indirect Affiliates and Information with Respect to Their Shareholding Rates

Our Company’s R&D efforts relating to the Concept V1 project, bus tenders, and the Karsan branded minibusmidibus, and associated product development projects are still ongoing.
Karsan continues to develop Concept V1 model within the scope of its vision to create its own brand. In 2014,
Atak and Star, produced under Karsan brand, were launched.

December 31, 2014
Field of Activity

Karsan Otomotiv Sanayi
Mamulleri Pazarlama A.Ş.

Distributor

25%

25%

25%

25%

Production, Sales,
Marketing and
Distribution

83%

83%

83%

83%

The Group invested a total of TL 210,706,304 in 2014.

Kırpart Otomotiv
Parçaları San. ve Tic. A.Ş.

Karsan Otomotiv;

Kırpart Shangai (*)

Sales, Marketing

100%

83%

100%

83%

Karsan Otomotiv continues its activities by means of producing Karsan minibuses and Hyundai light trucks and
through contract-based production agreements, and it also continues to work and invest to become an original
equipment manufacturer by creating its own brands and predominantly producing under its own brands within
the context of its vision of offering limitless transportation solutions.

Karsan USA LLC (**)

Sales, Marketing

100%

100%

100%

100%

Karsan Italy SRL (***)

Sales, Marketing

100%

100%

-

-

a. Investments Made During the Relevant Financial Period and Incentives used for such Investments

The incentive certificate no. A-107742 of November 27, 2012 obtained for product diversification/modernization
investment was revised on January 28, 2014 with no. 06888, on July 3, 2014 with no. 45008, and finally on
February 18, 2015 with no. 22555. The amount of the revised investment incentive certificate is TL 63,617,253
(Local) and USD 37,493,947 (Imports).

Direct and Indirect
Shareholding
Rate

Effective
Shareholding
Rate

December 31, 2013

Company Name

IV. COMPANY’S ACTIVITIES AND IMPORTANT DEVELOPMENTS WITH REGARDS TO COMPANY’S ACTIVITIES
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Company’s Shareholding
Direct and Indirect
Shareholding
Rate

Effective
Shareholding
Rate

(*) Kırpart Shanghai is a wholly owned subsidiary of Kırpart, therefore it is an indirect affiliate of Karsan with an 83% interest.
(**) As regards to its taxi model project, Karsan founded a company in New York, US, with the trade name Karsan USA LLC that is wholly owned
by the Company in order to participate in tenders held by local authorities, and this company did not require any capital transfer at the time of
its foundation. There has been no capital transfers to the company so far and it has had no effect on the financial position of the Group.
(***) With the Board of Directors’ resolution dated November 19, 2014, Karsan established a wholly-owned company in Italy with a capital
of Euro 100,000, in order to strengthen its exports potential. The headquarters of the company is in Turin, Italy. The Company has not been
included in the consolidation of 2014 financial statements, since it is still not commercially active and it does not have any impact on the
financial position of the Group.
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Our Company does not have any reciprocal shareholding relationship exceeding %5 level with any company.
d. Information on Company Shares acquired by the Company
The Company has not acquired its own shares within the period.
e. Information on Special Audits and Public Audits during the Financial Period
No special audit has been requested in the 2014 financial year under Article 438 of the Turkish Commercial Code.
However, as a result of the audit of our Company by the Capital Markets Board in 2013, the decision of the
Capital Markets Board was published in the Weekly Bulletin dated January 27, 2014, and necessary Material
Event Disclosures were made on this decision on Public Disclosure Platform (PDP). The Company’s Board of
Directors unanimously decided to bring an annulment action to stay execution of the CMB decision and annul
the administrative act and to take necessary steps depending on the decision of the competent court, and in
accordance with this decision, an annulment action has been brought. The action brought before the 11th
Administrative Court in Ankara seeking stay of the execution and annulment of the administrative act was
dismissed on procedural grounds, and the Board of Directors decided unanimously to appeal this decision of
dismissal, as a result, the decision was appealed by our Company. The legal process is pending, and developments
will be disclosed to the public and our investors.
f. Information on Legal Actions taken against the Company which may affect the Company’s Financial Position
and Operations, and Probable Outcome of such Legal Actions
No material legal actions were taken against the Company in 2014.
g. Disclosure of Administrative and Legal Sanctions imposed on the Company, Directors, and Managers due to
violations of applicable Legislation
There have been no legal or administrative sanctions imposed on the Company or its directors and managers due
to a violation of any applicable legislation.
h. Information and Comments on whether Targets set in Previous Periods were reached, Decisions of the 		
General Assembly Meeting were implemented and, if not, justifications for not achieving such targets or 		
implementing such decisions
An annual budget is drafted in accordance with the targets set by the Board of Directors of the Company, and the
conformity of operating results to the budget is monitored. Decisions of the Ordinary General Assembly Meeting
held in June 2014 relating to 2013 operations were implemented by our Company.
i. If an Extraordinary General Assembly Meeting was held during the year, information on such a meeting, 		
including the date of the meeting, decisions taken therein, and any associated transactions
No Extraordinary General Assembly Meeting was held during the period.
j. Information on donations and grants provided by the Company during the Year
During the Ordinary General Assembly Meeting of our Company held on June 27, 2014, the cap of donations to be
made in 2014 was determined as four in ten-thousandths of net sales revenues at the end of 2014. In 2014, net
sales revenues was TL 358,284,009 and four in ten thousandths of net sales revenues was TL 143,314. In 2014,
in total TL 98,103 was given by the Group and TL 61,097 was given by our Company as donations and grants to
various foundations and associations for charitable purposes, and this amount is below the cap set for 2014.
k. Significant Changes in the Environment where the Company operates, and the Policies Applied by the 		
Company against these Changes
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l. If the Company is a part of a Group of Companies, Legal Transactions performed with the Controlling Company
or its Subsidiaries or in the interest of the Controlling Company or its Subsidiaries under guidance of the
Controlling Company and all other measures taken or avoided in the past financial year in the interest of the
Controlling Company or its Subsidiaries
There have been no legal transactions performed with the controlling company or its subsidiaries or in the interest
of the controlling company or its subsidiaries under the guidance of the controlling company and there are no
measures taken or avoided in the past financial year in the interest of the controlling company or its subsidiaries.
m. Should the Company be a part of a Group of Companies: if any legal transaction mentioned in item (l) is
performed or any measure is taken or avoided, whether an appropriate counter performance was required under
conditions and terms known to them for each legal transaction and whether taking or avoiding such measures
caused the Company to incur any damages and if the Company incurred any damages, whether it was compensated
Since there are no legal transactions set forth in item (l), no transaction was made under this Article.
n. Information on legislative amendments that may have a material effect on the operations of the Company
There have been no legislative amendments that may have a material effect on the operations of the Company.
o. Corporate Governance Principles Compliance Report
The “Corporate Governance Compliance Report” for the term 01/01/2014-31/12/2014 was prepared in
accordance with the format provided by Capital Markets Board within the scope of the Corporate Governance
Communiqué with the decision of the Capital Markets Board No 2/35 dated 27.01.2014 and CMB II-17.1 and it
can be found in the subsequent parts of this report.
p. Amendments to the Articles of Association in the Relevant Period and Justification of such Amendments
Necessary permits were received from the Capital Markets Board and the Ministry of Customs and Commerce,
and later the approval of the 2013 Ordinary General Assembly Meeting held on June 27, 2014 was obtained
to amend below Articles of the Articles of Association of the Company: Article 4 “Company Headquarters and
Branches”, Article 8 “Board of Directors” and Article 10 “Meetings of the Board of Directors”. Said amendments
to the Articles of Association were registered on July 21, 2014 and published in TCRG on July 23, 2014.
r. Information on Manufacturing Units of the Company
The Company is engaged in manufacturing in two plants in Bursa. The plant at the Hasanağa Organized Industrial
Zone has a 200 thousand sqm area in total with a 82 thousand sqm covered area, and minibuses, trucks, buses,
and light commercial vehicles are manufactured in this plant. BTSO Plant, where tractor cabins, cataphoresis
coating, and spare parts are manufactured, has a 30 thousand sqm total area and 24 thousand sqm of this area
is covered. Units of the Company are listed below.
Units at the Hasanağa Organized Industrial Zone and BTSO Industrial Zone
•
Welding Unit
•
Paint Shop
•
Assembly Unit
•
Quality Control
•
Quality Assurance
•
Production Planning and Logistics
Bus Plant
•
Welding Unit
•
Paint Shop
•
Assembly Unit

No significant change occurred in the relevant period in the geographical environment where the company operates. In
order to benefit from advantages of the Hasanağa Organized Industrial Zone, the Company has switched from the
Akçalar Industrial Zone to the Hasanağa Organized Industrial Zone without any physical changes. This address
change was registered on 15.01.2014 and announced on 21.01.2014 in the Turkish Trade Registry Gazette.
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Our Company’s sales quantities and revenues by product type, in comparison to the previous period, are indicated below.

Support Units For All Enterprises
•
Engineering and Technology
•
Human Resources
•
Finance
•
Corporate Risk Management
•
Investor Relations
•
General Accounting
•
Cost Accounting and Budget Planning
•
Information Systems
•
Procurement
•
Business Development and Projects

Product Type
Karsan

73.8

J10

0

268

(100.0)

Jest

1,569

668

134.9

Atak

55

0

-

Star

3

0

-

0

10,085

(100.0)

-10

106

(109.4)

0

900

(100.0)

42

573

(92.7)

8

0

-

1,667

12,600

(86.8)

Renault Trucks
BredaMenarinibus
Hyundai Semibonnet (**)

t. Efficiency

Total
Capacity Utilization Rate

2014

2013

9.4%

44.6%

(*) The negative value of Hyundai Truck is due to vehicles returned in the year.
(*) Since mass production has not started as of 2014 year-end, vehicles in the table were prototypes in the relevant period.

The 2013 capacity of our Company was 27,980 vehicles/year and it was updated as 18,200 vehicles/year in
March 2014. By producing 1,712 unit vehicles in 2014, the Company had a capacity utilization rate of 9.4%.
u. Developments in Production and Sales
Production volume in comparison to the previous period, is given below on a product type basis.
2014 (Units)

2014 (Units)

Change Rate (%)

Change Rate (%)

2014
Sales Revenue (TL)

2013
Sales Revenue (TL)

120,660,760

53,628,169

125.0

J10

10,000

12,677,897

(99.9)

Jest

111,383,459

40,950,272

172.0

Atak

8,749,160

-

-

Star

518,141

-

-

0

210,323,404

(100.0)

Product Type
Karsan

Product Type

Change Rate (%)

936

Hyundai Truck (*)

The Company’s products in 2014 included Karsan Jest, Karsan Atak, Karsan Star, Hyundai H350 (prototype),
BredaMenarinibus and Hyundai Truck HD Series.

2014 (Units)

1,627

Peugeot Partner/Citroen Berlingo

s. Products

2014 (Units)

Karsan

1,635

836

95.6

Peugeot Partner/Citroen Berlingo

Jest

1,536

836

83.7

Hyundai Truck

6,557

5,584,228

(99.9)

Atak

81

0

-

Renault Trucks

0

127,393,913

(100.0)

Star

18

0

-

BredaMenarinibus

40,923,951

354,425,973

(88.5)

Peugeot Partner/Citroen Berlingo

0

10,084

(100.0)

Hyundai Semibonnet

1,053,411

-

-

Hyundai Truck

0

90

(100.0)

Other (*)

195,639,330

161,193,201

21.4

Renault Trucks

0

900

(100.0)

Total

358,284,009

912,548,887

(60.7)

BredaMenarinibus

43

576

(92.5)

Hyundai Semibonnet (*)

34

0

-

1,712

12,486

(86.3)

Total

(*) Since mass production has not started as of 2014 year-end, vehicles in the table were prototypes in the relevant period.

(*) In January-December 2014, 66.23% of the Other section consisted of sales of spare parts and materials, and the remaining 33.77% was
Industrial services including cataphoresis coating, part stamping cabin painting, and production for automotive basic and supplier industries.

v. Collective Bargaining Agreements
No labor dispute or movement has occurred in Karsan Otomotiv during the financial period. Since the collective
bargaining agreement that existed between the Turkish Metal Workers Union and the MESS for the period
between September 1, 2012 - August 31, 2014 expired, a new collective bargaining agreement was signed on
December 15, 2014 for the period September 1, 2013 - August 31, 2017.
Pursuant to the CMB Communiqué on Principles of Financial Reporting (II.14.1) the amount set aside for indemnity
pay at the end of the period for the Group is TL 13,172,875.
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y. Information on Social Benefits and Occupational Training for Employees, and on Corporate Social 		
Responsibility Activities regarding Company Operations with Social and Environmental Consequences
In addition to wages and bonuses, our Company provides its employees with cash benefits such as allowances
for birth, death, marriage, child, military service, holiday pay and annual paid leave, and benefits in kind such as
food, transportation, clothing and cleaning allowances.
Internal and external occupational trainings are planned in accordance with the needs of our employees. 31%
of training provided in 2014 consisted of occupational training. These include training on production process,
process verification, use of measurement and production equipment, assessment of financial and accounting
data, and business software.
In January 2004, Karsan Otomotiv San. ve Tic. A.Ş. obtained an ISO 14001 Environmental Management System
Certificate for the first time, and its ISO 14001 certificate was extended until 2017 with zero defects identified
in the inspection conducted in 2014. Karsan established an Environmental Management System in order
to control and minimize the environmental effects, and to continuously improve environmental performance
through compliance with all environmental laws and regulations in order to protect the environment and ensure
its permanence. With its Environmental Management System efforts, KARSAN aims to reduce the use of energy
and natural resources, and to minimize the amount of waste by supporting recovery operations. After preliminary
treatment, the waste water is sent to the BOSB and HOSAB Centralized Sewage Treatment Plants, to be reduced
and kept at a level below the receiver’s discharge standards, and the output water analysis and controls are
made regularly by the competent authorities. The waste management system ensures that the wastes requiring
recycling, recovery and disposal resulting from production and other activities are collected separately, and
some of them are contributed to the national economy, and those requiring disposal are treated in accordance
with the regulations without causing environmental pollution. Our waste management system with zero landfill
waste is continuously improving by setting new objectives and targets, consistent with Karsan Otomotiv A.Ş.
Environmental Policy, to reduce the use of energy and its new environmental impacts. Karsan aspires to enhance
the environmental consciousness of the neighboring community around its head office, the supplier industries
and all employees, and organizes trainings and meetings for raising awareness, with an emphasis on continuous training.

Liabilities

2014

2013

Short-Term Liabilities

210,865,078

221,400,515

Long-Term Liabilities

690,978,411

476,626,904

Shareholders’ Equity

232,844,327

333,465,280

1,134,687,816

1,031,492,699

2014

2013

358,284,009

912,548,887

34,372,050

160,972,413

(56,831,851)

65,443,252

(100,018,618)

4,409,910

Total Liabilities
Summary Income Statement
Revenues
Gross Profit
Operating Income/Loss
Period Profit/Loss

The most important reason of the decrease in 2014 revenues compared to the previous year is the termination of
the Renault Trucks production in November 2013, and termination of production for Peugeot Partner and Citroen
Berlingo in December 2013, furthermore, the revenues coming from bus sales made through tender process in 2014
were lower compared to the previous year. However, this year we completed a substantial part of our industrial
investments within the scope of the agreement signed on November 27, 2012 with Hyundai Motor Company (HMC),
one of the business partners of our Company. It is planned to start mass production in March 2015.
b. Key Financial Indicators and Ratio Analysis
Key Financial Indicators

2014

2013

Gross Profit Margin

0.10

0.18

Operating Profit Margin

(0.16)

0.07

Net Profit Margin

(0.28)

0.005

Liquidity Ratios

2014

2013

Current Ratio

1.62

2.02

Liquidity Ratio

1.19

1.58

Cash Ratio

0.08

0.18

Financial Structure Ratios

2014

2013

Total Liabilities/ Shareholders’ Equity

3.87

2.09

Short-term Liabilities / Total Assets

0.19

0.21

Long-term Liabilities / Total Assets

0.61

0.46

Tangible Fixed Assets /(Shareholders’
Equity+Long-term Liabilities)

0.44

0.37

Financial Statements were consolidated and audited independently under CMB Series II.14.1.

Profitability Ratios

2014

2013

Summary Balance Sheet (TL)

Net Profit For The Period / Total Assets

(0.088)

0.004

(0.43)

0.01

No action has been filed against Karsan due to environmental damages. Karsan Otomotiv successfully passed
the audits conducted by the Provincial Directorate of Environment and Urbanization in 2014 and received
Environmental Permits for both of its plants and established its Environmental Management Unit.
z. Information on any Conflict of Interest with the Institutions Providing Investment Consultancy and Rating 		
Services to the Company, and on Measures taken by the Company to Avoid such Conflicts
In 2014, no investment consultancy or rating services were procured by the Company. However, in 2013, a credit
rating service was attained from Türk Rating İstanbul Uluslararası Derecelendirme Hizmetleri A.Ş. (Turkrating), and our
credit note was announced by a Material Event Disclosure made on PDP on January 13, 2014. Since the one-year
rating contract signed between our Company and Turkrating expired, the credit rating report and notes published
by Turkrating became invalid as of January 13, 2015, together with their annexes and conclusions, and a Material
Event Disclosure was made on the same day on PDP. There is no conflict of interest between Turkrating and our Company.
V. FINANCIAL POSITION
a. Summary of the Financial Statements

Net Profit For the Period / Shareholders’ Equity
Assets

2014

2013

Current Assets

340,949,890

446,604,033

Non-Current Assets

793,737,926

584,888,666

1,134,687,816

1,031,492,699

Total Assets

58

59

Annual Report
c. Findings and Evaluation of the Management on whether the Company Capital is unsecured due to a loss or the
Company has excess liabilities over assets
According to the calculation made taking into account the ratios set forth in Article 376 of the Turkish Commercial
Code, the capital is not unsecured.
d. Measures Planned to be taken to Improve the Financial Structure of the Company
Subject to the maximum issue value of TL 200,000,000 approved with the Capital Markets Board’s authorization no.
29/996 of October 2, 2014, our Company sold bonds with TL 180,000,000 nominal value, 1092 days maturity period
with coupon payments every 3 months, floating interest and repayment of the principal at maturity. This bond issue
transaction was announced on the Public Disclosure Platform on 21.10.2014. It is planned to issue bonds with a
nominal value of TL 20,000,000 which corresponds to the balance remaining from the approved maximum issue value.
e. Information on Dividend Policy and if no Dividends will be distributed, the reason underlying such decision
and suggestions as to how the undistributed profit will be used
The Company’s Dividend Policy was submitted for approval at 2013 Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders of
June 27, 2014 with agenda item no. 8 and disclosed to the public when posted on the Company website. Dividend
Policy is explained below.
“Dividend Policy
There are no privileges relating to participation in the Company’s profit and distribution of dividends. Our Company
distributes profit in accordance with the Turkish Commercial Code, Capital Market Legislation, Tax Legislation and
other applicable legislation as well as the provisions of the Articles of Association governing profit distribution. When
deciding on distributing the dividends, applicable regulations, financial position, long-term strategy, investment
and financing policies, profitability and cash flow of our Company are taken into account, and our shareholders are
distributed maximum amount of profit in cash and/or in the form of bonus shares to the extent that the net distributable
period profit calculated according to Capital Market Regulations, is covered in our statutory records. It is aimed to
perform dividend distribution in maximum 3 months after the relevant General Assembly Meeting, at the latest the end
of the accounting period in which the distribution decision is made, and the dividend distribution date is determined at
the General Assembly Meeting. Dividends may be paid in equal or different installments in compliance with applicable
legislation, provided that it is decided at the same General Assembly Meeting in which dividend distribution is decided.
Dividends shall be distributed pro rata to all of the shares existing as of the distribution date, notwithstanding date
of issue and acquisition of such shares. The Board of Directors aims to take all measures in respect of place, time
and method to ensure the transfer of annual profit to shareholders within the shortest time possible, in accordance
with the legislation. Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, the Board of Directors may distribute
advance dividends, provided that it is authorized at the General Assembly Meeting, and Capital Market Regulations
are complied with.”
The consolidated loss amounting to TL 100,018,618 incurred as a result of company activities in 2014 has been
transferred to the following year, and there is no distributable profits.
f. Financial Sources of the Company
The Company’s financial sources consist of shareholders’ equity, loans used by the Company, bonds issued to qualified
investors, and time deposit revenues.
g. Nature and Amount of Issued Capital Market Instruments
Our Company issued bonds twice to offer these bonds to qualified investors.
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i.
		
		
		
		
		
		
		
		

Based on the Board of Directors’ decision of March 5, 2014, our Company decided to issue bonds with a
maximum nominal value of TL 100,000,000 (one hundred million Turkish Lira) to be offered to qualified
investors (without a public offering) in the domestic market through one or more offerings, and bonds
planned to be issued will have a term of 2 years with quarterly coupon payments, variable interest and
principal payment at maturity, and our Company filed an application with the Capital Markets Board and
Borsa İstanbul on March 13, 2014 related to the planned issue of bonds. The Capital Markets Board approved
the application to issue bonds, with its authorization no. 14/424 of May 6, 2014, and under this authorization,
our Company issued bonds with TL 100,000,000 nominal value and a term of 728 days on May 29, 2014 and
sold all of these bonds.

ii.
		
		
		
		
		
		
		
		

Based on the Board of Directors’ decision of August 4, 2014, our Company decided to issue bonds with a
maximum nominal value of TL 200,000,000 (two hundred million Turkish Lira) to be offered to qualified
investors (without a public offering) in the domestic market through one or more offerings, and bonds
planned to be issued will have a term up to 3 years with quarterly coupon payments, variable interest and
principal payment at maturity, and our Company filed an application with the Capital Markets Board and
Borsa İstanbul on August 13, 2014 related to the planned issue of bonds. The Capital Markets Board approved
the application to issue bonds, with its authorization no. 29/966 of October 2, 2014, and under this
authorization, our Company issued bonds with TL 180,000,000 nominal value and a term of 1092 days
on October 21, 2014 and sold all of these bonds.

Disclosures on bond issue are posted on the Public Disclosure Platform and corporate website (www.karsan.com.tr)
in line with the CMB legislation.
h. Information on the Company’s Sector and the Company’s Position in the Sector
It is possible to summarize the developments in the sector and in Karsan Otomotiv in 2014 as follows, in accordance
with the data from the Automotive Manufacturers’ Association:
Total vehicle production increased to 1,170,445 units in January-December 2014 representing a 4% increase compared
to the same period in 2013, and the automobile production increased by 16% and reached 733,439 thousand units.
•
		
•
		
		

There was 6% decline in Minibuses, and 12% decline in Trucks compared to the previous year of Turkey’s
Light Commercial Vehicles production, which our Company is also a part of.
In Turkey, the production of Busses and Light Trucks decreased by 23% and 24% respectively, whereas, the
production of Midibuses increased by 2% compared to the previous year. Furthermore, the production of
Heavy Trucks increased by 3% compared to the previous year.

In the Turkish market, in the light commercial vehicles group, there was a 4.4% decrease in 2014 in total light
commercial vehicle sales, and 8.7% in imported light commercial vehicle sales. Local light commercial vehicle sales
have declined by 0.6%. The market share of imports in the light commercial vehicle market was 45.5% in 2014.
In line with its vision of “limitless transportation solutions”, Karsan presents turn-key delivery commercial vehicle
production solutions including design, engineering and production to the world’s selected brands with over 49-years’
experience in the automotive industry and a flexible production capacity, and produces commercial vehicles under
its own brand. Karsan is the leader of contract-based production model in the Turkish Automotive Industry, and in
addition to production of Hyundai Truck light trucks, BredaMenarinibus buses, and Karsan minibuses, it is engaged in
domestic sales activities.
On November 27, 2012, our Company signed an agreement with Hyundai Motor Company (HMC) for production of a
total of 200 thousand units of light commercial vehicles in seven years, including panel vans, light trucks, and minibuses
recently developed by HMC with a maximum loaded weight of 3-6 tons, and necessary industrial investments under
this agreement have been completed. It is planned to start mass production in March 2015. In the light commercial
vehicle series, which is a part of the same product group, Karsan Pazarlama, where our Company is a shareholder,
and HMC, our business partner signed an exclusive domestic distributorship agreement on May 20, 2014. With this
distributorship agreement, Karsan Pazarlama became the exclusive provider of marketing, sales, and aftersales
services in Turkey for light commercial vehicles to be produced by our Company for HMC.

61

Annual Report

Karsan Annual Report 2014

In addition, Karsan continues to develop Concept V1 model within the scope of its vision to create its own brand. The
new Concept V1, planned to be produced in Karsan’s plants in Bursa, is projected to offer options such as a glass
ceiling, 5-passenger capacity, wheelchair access, right/left steering wheel, and ability of using alternative fuel. It has
the capacity to meet the needs of all metropolises in the world through with its passenger or commercial versions,
thanks to its modular system construction. The first mobile prototype of Concept V1 Taxi was exhibited in the Geneva
Motor Show in March 2012, and the first electrical right-hand drive Concept V1 taxi model was exhibited in the “Urban
Mobility 3.0” in London, in June 2012. Concept V1 was exhibited in two separate events in London in June 2013 and
received the “2013 Global Product Differentiation Excellence Award” with its taxi and passenger car platform aiming
to facilitate access in transportation. Moreover, it participated in the “Zero Emission Capable Taxi Event” organized by
London Municipality on January 16, 2014.

VI. RISKS AND ASSESSMENT BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

In the procurement of 40 CNG Articulated Busses by Konya Metropolitan Municipality, the delivery of buses was
completed in January 2014 in accordance with the bus delivery production plan under the contract signed in August
2013. The turnover obtained as result of this tender covering 40 CNG Articulated Buses and a 2-year maintenance was
Euro 12.7 million.

b. Information on Proceedings and Reports of the Committee on Early Detection and Management of Risks,
if such committee has been created

Karsan closely follows changes in cities and mass transportation systems in order to develop products and services
that meet current needs, and in May 2013, it launched “JEST” the smallest member of a brand new product family still
being developed to be launched to the market under Karsan brand, and Jest sales in 2014 were higher compared to the
previous year. JEST, designed jointly by Heksagon Studio and Karsan has wheelchair-access with a low floor and ramp,
provides savings from fuel and maintenance costs with its Euro 5 engine, and also comes with an option of wireless
internet (wi-fi).
Furthermore, our 8 meter long busses with project codes CXL and MPXL, which were promoted in Turkey and abroad
in 2013 for the first time, were introduced to the press as Karsan ATAK and Karsan STAR in April 2014 during the
Busworld Turkey show.
The Turkish Scientific and Technological Research Authority (TÜBİTAK) issued an invitation for the “development of
electrical vehicle technologies” under its Public Institutions Research and Development Projects Support Program
(KAMAG), and our Company filed an application in response to this invitation in May 2013. For the second stage of
this invitation, whereby the final decision would be made, our Company applied with the same consortium composed
of automotive supplier industry companies, universities, and research centers in December 2013. On May 23, 2014,
TÜBİTAK notified our Company that our project was not eligible to receive support, and this was announced on the
Public Disclosure Platform.
In addition to vehicle production, Karsan also offers industrial services including cataphoresis, painting, truck haulage,
bus chassis and tractor cabin production.
As of 2014 year-end, among from Karsan products for which Karsan also provides continued marketing, sale and aftersale services, Karsan Jest had a market share of 6.6% in the minibus class.
In 2014, Karsan exported 21 units of Jest, 6 units of HD 35, 1 unit of HD 75, 6 units of Hyundai Semibonnet, and 3 units
of BredaMenarinibus, and various spare parts, and generated USD 2,797,274.24 export revenues in total.
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a. Information on Risk Management Policy to be adopted against Risks, if any
Karsan carries out its activities in a transparent, accountable, fair and responsible manner. The Board of Directors
develops internal control systems that also include risk management and information systems and processes which
help to minimize impact of risks that may affect stakeholders of the Company, particularly the shareholders, and
opinions of the relevant committees of the Board of Directors are taken into account during development of such
systems. Board of Directors of Karsan Otomotiv adopts a prudent and cautious risk management approach and
manages and represents the Company with its strategic decisions, giving priority to the Company’s long term interests
and maintaining a balance among risks, growth and earnings.

Karsan Otomotiv Risk Management and Reporting is carried out in coordination with various departments under the
leadership of the Corporate Risk Management Department operating under the Financial and Administrative Affairs
Directorate. Risks are questioned and assessed in detail through periodical reports and meetings. The Committee
on Early Detection of Risks is composed of members selected among from the members of board of directors, and
this Committee issued 6 reports to the Board of Directors in 2014. The Committee on Early Detection of Risks makes
recommendations and proposals related to early detection, assessment of all kinds of strategic, financial, operational,
legal and other risks that may influence the Company, and calculation of the impact and probability of such risks,
management and reporting of risks in accordance with the corporate risk taking profile, taking necessary measures,
considering these risks in decision mechanisms, and development and integration of efficient internal control systems.
VII. INFORMATION THAT HAS TO BE PROVIDED TO SHAREHOLDERS UNDER THE LEGISLATION ON RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES OF SUCH TRANSACTIONS, AND CONCLUSION OF THE 2014 AFFILIATES REPORT
In accordance with Article 199 of the Turkish Commercial Code No 6102, which came into force on July 1, 2012, the
Board of Directors of Karsan Otomotiv Sanayii ve Ticaret A.Ş. is required to prepare a report within the first three
months of the financial year on relations with the controlling shareholder and companies affiliated to the controlling
shareholder, and include the conclusion of such a report in its annual report. Information on Karsan Otomotiv Sanayii
ve Ticaret A.Ş.’s transactions with the related parties are included in footnote 5 to the financial statements.
Pursuant to the CMB Corporate Governance Communiqué (II-17.1), Board of Directors made necessary decisions
on related party transactions, and no separate report was prepared in 2014 for related party transactions that are
performed commonly and continuously. In the event it is estimated that transactions to be performed in 2015 will
reach the threshold specified in the Communiqué, a report will be prepared and announced on the PDP in accordance
with the applicable legislation.
The Report prepared by the Board of Directors of Karsan Otomotiv Sanayii ve Ticaret A.Ş. dated February 27, 2015
provides that “It is concluded that in all transactions made in 2014 between Karsan Otomotiv Sanayii ve Ticaret A.Ş.
and its controlling shareholder and the controlling shareholder’s affiliates, an appropriate counter performance was
required according to conditions and circumstances known to us at the time such transaction was made and there was
no measure taken or avoided which would cause the company to incur any damage, and there was no transaction or
measure that needed to be compensated.”
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VIII. OTHER ISSUES - INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS

IX. CONCLUSION

On November 27, 2012, our Company signed an agreement with Hyundai Motor Company (HMC) for production of a
total of 200 thousand units of light commercial vehicles in seven years, including panel vans, light trucks, and minibuses
recently developed by HMC with a maximum loaded weight of 3-6 tons, and necessary industrial investments under
this agreement have been completed. Our trial production is on-going, and it is planned to start mass production in
March 2015. This disclosure was made on the Public Disclosure Platform on January 19, 2015.

The financial statements, explanatory notes and ratios regarding the results of our activities in 2014 are also presented
for your review in other sections of our report.
Esteemed Shareholders,

Our Company submitted the most advantageous bid in the tender issued by Kocaeli Metropolitan Municipality on
February 10, 2015 for procurement of 200 units of CNG Solo Buses, and our Company was notified with a fax message
on March 9, 2015 that the contract award decision was finalized and our Company was awarded. Procedures related
to the tender are still continuing, and the developments will be shared with the public and our investors.

We hereby submit the Financial Statements to your votes with good wishes for our company and country in the
forthcoming years and we assure you of our highest consideration.

In July 2014, an addendum to the memorandum of understanding previously signed between our Company and
Wuhan Zhong Yuan Bang Tai Investment Holding Co. Ltd. in May 2014 for entering into a potential joint venture for
establishing a company to produce J10 vehicles and other Karsan products in China, using J10 line was signed, related
to the same subject, and material disclosures were made on the PDP related to the details of these MOUs. Efforts for
establishing a partnership are still continuing, and the parties are negotiating to complete these efforts in the shortest
possible time. Developments will be shared with the public and our investors.

August 14, 2015

Respectfully,

İnan Kıraç
Chairman of the Board
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1. Corporate Governance Compliance Statement

For the purpose of complying with Article 11 of the CMB Corporate Governance Communiqué (II-17.1) published in the
Official Journal No. 28871 of January 3, 2014, it was unanimously decided by the Board of Director on June 27, 2014 with
no. 2014/27 to merge Shareholder Relations Unit and Capital Markets Legislation Compliance Unit that were previously
formed under the Capital Markets Board regulations, and to name the merged unit as the Investor Relations Unit which
would operate under Mr. İsmail Hakkı Güralp, Deputy General Manager of Financial Affairs, and submit a report at least once
a year to the Board of Directors related to its activities. Relying on this decision, Deniz Özer, who was the Administrator of
the Capital Market Legislation Compliance Unit and held Capital Market Activities Advanced Level License, and Corporate
Governance Rating Specialist License, was appointed as the Administrator of the Investor Relations Unit.

Within the context of Capital Markets Board’s (CMB) Decision numbered 2/35 dated January 27, 2014 and CMB’s
Corporate Governance Communiqué II-17.1, the base format for companies obliged to prepare Corporate Governance
Principles Compliance Report has been re-determined, and our Company has prepared Corporate Governance Principles
Compliance Report in accordance with the said format.
In this context, our Company has complied with mandatory principles of CMB Corporate Governance Principles and put
its maximum efforts to comply with non-compulsory principles, and compliance efforts are on-going. Below are the major
Corporate Governance Principles that are not mandatory under the relevant regulation, and with which full compliance
has not been achieved yet. The principles that have not been implemented yet have not created any conflict of interests
between the stakeholders.
• As regards principle no. 1.3.10, a cap was determined for donations and contributions at the General Assembly
Meeting, and the shareholders were informed on donations and contributions of the previous year. However, no
separate policy has been drafted related to donations and contributions, and it is planned to draft such a policy in
the coming period in accordance with the needs of our Company, and to submit such policy at the General Assembly
Meeting.
• As regards principle no. 1.5.2., minority rights have not been defined in Articles of Association to those holding less
than one in twentieth of the capital, and the rights that are granted comply with the general practice stipulated in
the Turkish Commercial Code.
• As regards principle no. 4.2.8., the Company is insured against any damage that could be incurred as a result of fault
of the members of board of directors when performing their duties, and the insurance amount is less than 25% of
the capital of the Company.
• As regards principle no. 4.3.9., there is only one female member among 7 members of the board of directors of our
Company, and our Company has not yet determined a target rate, provided that it is not less than 25% and a target
time for membership of women in the board of directors and form a policy for this target.
• As regards principle no. 4.4.5, Articles of Association of the Company describes how meetings of the Board of
Directors are held, and there is no other internal regulations issued solely for this purpose.
• As regards principle no. 4.4.7, members of Board of Directors are not restricted from assuming other duties outside
the Company since their experience in the industry contributes significantly to our Company.
• As regards principle no. 4.5.5., some of the members of board of directors are assigned to more than one committee
based on their expertise and experience.
• As regards principle no. 4.6.5., remunerations provided to Members of the board of directors and executives with
administrative responsibilities are disclosed to the public in annual reports. Payments that are made are disclosed
to the public collectively in parallel to the general practice.

SECTION I – SHAREHOLDERS
2.1. Investor Relations Department
Investor Relations Department directly reports to Mr. İsmail Hakkı Güralp, the Deputy General Manager of Financial Affairs.
The report prepared on activities that have been carried out was submitted to the Board of Directors on February 27, 2015.
Investor Relations Department

Title

License

Deniz Özer

Investor Relations
Administrator

Capital Market Activities License, Level 3
(License No. 204658) Corporate Governance
Rating License (License No. 700469); Derivatives
License (*)

Burcu Günhar

Investor Relations
Responsible

Capital Market Activities License, Level 3 (*);
Corporate Governance Rating License (*)

(*) She has become entitled to obtain a license, however, has not filed an application to receive a license yet.
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Investor Relations Unit aims providing accurate, timely and consistent information to existing and potential investors on
the Company, decreasing the Company’s cost of capital by complying with Corporate Governance Principles, and ensuring
two-way communication between Board of Directors and the capital markets participants. The Unit works in coordination
with relevant Company units to immediately respond to questions and inquiries of shareholders, excluding confidential
information and trade secrets. In 2014, 40 questions were received in total, 18 by e-mail and 22 by telephone, which were
replied by writing and verbally in accordance with the principle of ‘equality in information’. Furthermore, 10 meetings
were held with Corporate Investors, and 9 meetings with analysts.
The Company Disclosure Policy requires treating all capital market participants equally in terms of exercise of their right to
be informed and to review; and making announcements simultaneously and with the same content. In case of occurrence
of any event which may affect the exercise of shareholders’ rights, the Company immediately makes an announcement
to the public on the Public Disclosure Platform; and any information that is provided is based on the content already
disclosed to the public. Such information and disclosures are made available to investors up-to-date on the corporate
website.
Investor Relations Unit Contact Information:
Telephone No
: +90 224 484 21 80
Fax No
: +90 224 484 21 69
E-mail
: yatirimciiliskileri@karsan.com.tr
2.2. Exercise of the Shareholders’ Rights to be Informed
Taking into account that each shareholder is entitled to investigate and receive information; when any shareholder
requested information other than the information we have presented and disclosed during the year, the Investor Relations
Department assessed whether the requested information constituted trade secrets or not and whether its disclosure
would comply with the CMB legislation, and responded in writing and verbally. Additionally, our shareholders who
attended the last General Assembly Meeting were informed about financial and administrative issues.
Any development which may affect exercise of shareholder rights is announced with material event disclosures, right
exercise statements and quarterly reports disclosed on the Public Disclosure Platform. All disclosures that have to be
made to shareholders according to the applicable CMB legislation were also made available to the investors on the
corporate website www.karsan.com.tr.
Although there are no special provisions in the Articles of Association of the Company regarding the right to demand a
special audit, in accordance with Article 438 et seq. of the Turkish Commercial Code, this right is available to shareholders,
notwithstanding whether it exists within the Articles of Association or not. Our Company is managed in accordance with
the rules of transparency, and all potential requests from shareholders are evaluated with utmost care. The shareholders
did not demand appointment of a special auditor throughout the year.
Company operations are periodically audited by the Independent External Auditor (Başaran Nas Bağımsız Denetim ve
Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Müşavirlik A.Ş.) elected by the General Assembly Meeting for 1 year upon the proposal of the
Audit Committee and the decision of the Board of Directors in accordance with the Turkish Commercial Code and the CMB
legislation.
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2.3. General Assembly Meetings

•

During the period, the Ordinary General Assembly Meeting for 2013 operations was held on June 27, 2014 at the Company
headquarters. The meeting quorum was reached at the Ordinary General Assembly Meeting with representation of 66.4%
of the shares.
Announcement of the meeting;
• Following our Board of Directors’ meeting where the date of the General Assembly Meeting was decided, a material
event disclosure was made on the Public Disclosure Platform (PDP) to notify of the date, venue, time and agenda
of the meeting in due period; at least 3 weeks before the General Assembly Meeting. Announcements inviting
shareholders to the meeting (agenda, copy of proxy statement, and if any, amendment of the articles of association)
were published on the Public Disclosure Platform, Turkish Trade Registry Gazette, a national newspaper (Milliyet) and
a local newspaper (Bursa Olay) as well as on the corporate web site: www.karsan.com.tr.

•
•

• Announcement of the general assembly meeting, and other announcements and disclosures required by the
Company under the applicable legislation were posted on the corporate website in addition to the General Assembly
Meeting Information Document prepared according to mandatory Article 1.3.1 of the Corporate Governance Principles, and the
Material Disclosures made on the Public Disclosure Platform. The General Assembly Meeting Information Document
was published on the Electronic General Assembly Meeting System of the CRA in addition to the corporate website.

In the General Assembly Meeting, voting rights are exercised in accordance with the rules on representation and voting
(Articles 20 and 21 of the Articles of Association). Proxy voting is carried out in accordance with the regulations of the
Capital Markets Board.

• The general assembly meeting was held at the Company headquarters, in a room with a seating capacity of 200
people. In order to provide the necessary information the Chairman, Vice-Chairman, Executive Member of the Board
of Directors of the Company, CEO, Assistant General Manager responsible for Financial Affairs, individuals responsible
for preparation of financial statements, and Company auditor attended the General Assembly Meeting. The General
Assembly Meeting was held publicly, and a group of plant employees also attended the meeting.
The Balance Sheet, Income Statement and Annual Report of the Board of Directors, accompanied by the Corporate
Governance Principles Compliance Report, Auditor’s Report, Independent Audit Firm’s Report, the text of the
amendments to articles of association, agenda items, and information notes including explanations required for compliance
with the Corporate Governance Principles and the Capital Market Legislation were made available to shareholders at
the Company headquarters three weeks before the date of the General Assembly Meeting, and availability of these
documents was also mentioned in the announcements made relating to the general assembly meeting.
Proposals made by the shareholders during the negotiation of the agenda items were also discussed, and the agenda
items were negotiated and decided as a result of the voting in accordance with these proposals. At the end of the
general assembly, the questions asked by the shareholders were discussed pursuant to the CMB legislation and the
shareholders were responded to as appropriate. Therefore, there are no questions which could not be answered at the
General Assembly Meeting and therefore directed to the Investor Relations Unit. The questions asked at the General
Assembly Meeting and answers given to these questions are posted on the corporate website.
No shareholder proposed any agenda item in writing while the agenda for the general assembly meetings held during
the period was being drafted.
The minutes of the meeting were published on the same day on the PDP in the form of a material disclosure, and were
also made available at the Company headquarters to be reviewed by shareholders.
The latest version of the Company’s articles of association, Agenda of the General Assembly Meeting and the Lists of
Attendants for the last 5 years are available on the investor relations section of our website.
In the Ordinary General Assembly Meeting for 2013 operations, which was held on June 27, 2014, shareholders were
informed about the following issues and given the opportunity to comment:
• The total sum donated and granted within the period, and its users (with a separate agenda item);
• The fact that there are no guarantees, pledges or mortgages created by the Company in favor of third parties
• Transactions made with related parties in 2013
•   The decision of the Capital Markets Board on our Company, which was published in the Weekly Bulletin No. 2014/2
of January 27, 2014.
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The fact that shareholders controlling the management, members of the Board of Directors, executives with
administrative responsibilities and their spouses and second degree relatives/kin did not perform any transaction in
2013 that might cause a conflict of interest with the Company or its affiliates and/or perform any commercial
transaction within the field of activity of the Company or its affiliates on their behalf or on behalf of others, or become
a partner with unlimited liability in any company engaged in the same kind of trade with the Company (pursuant to
Article 1.3.6 of the CMB Corporate Governance Principles).
Disclosure Policy
Remuneration Policy adopted for members of board of directors and executives with administrative responsibilities.

2.4. Voting Rights and Minority Rights
The Company’s Articles of Association do not feature a privilege relating to the exercise of voting rights. There is no crossshareholding relationship between the companies.

Additionally, within the context of secondary legislation enacted under Article 1527 of the Turkish Commercial Code
No. 6102; the general assembly meetings are also carried out on Electronic General Assembly Meeting System (EGMS)
provided by CRA simultaneously with the actual meeting.
Company Articles of Association provides that the exercise of minority rights requires representation of five percent of the
capital. In our Company’s Articles of Association, Group A preferred Shareholders have privilege of nominating 5 members
to the Board of Directors consisting of 7 members and 6 members to the Board of Directors consisting of 9 members. One
of the members nominated by Group A Shareholders is determined according to rules on independence that are defined
in principles of Corporate Governance Principles published by the Capital Markets Board.
Due care is shown for the exercise of minority rights in our Company. No criticism or complaint has been received by our
Company in this respect in 2014.
2.5 Dividend Rights
There are no privileges regarding participation in the Company’s profit and distribution of dividends.
The Company’s Dividend Policy was submitted for approval at the Ordinary General Assembly Meeting of 2013 held on
June 27, 2014 as agenda item no. 8 and was disclosed to the public when posted on the corporate website.
“Dividend Policy
There are no privileges relating to participation in the Company’s profit and distribution of dividends. Our Company
distributes dividends in accordance with the Turkish Commercial Code, Capital Market Legislation, Tax Legislation and
other applicable legislation as well as the provisions of the Articles of Association governing dividend distribution. When
deciding on distributing the dividends, applicable regulations, financial position, long-term strategy, investment and
financing policies, profitability and cash flow of our Company are taken into account, and our shareholders are distributed
maximum amount of dividend in cash and/or in the form of bonus shares to the extent that the net distributable period
profit calculated according to Capital Market Regulations, is covered in our statutory records. It is aimed to perform
dividend distribution in maximum 3 months after the relevant General Assembly Meeting, at the latest the end of the
accounting period in which the distribution decision is made, and the dividend distribution date shall be determined at
the General Assembly Meeting. Dividends may be paid in equal or different installments in compliance with applicable
legislation, provided that it is decided at the same General Assembly Meeting in which dividend distribution is decided.
Dividends shall be distributed pro rata to all of the shares existing as of the distribution date, notwithstanding date of issue
and acquisition of such shares. The Board of Directors aims to take all measures in respect of place, time and method to
ensure the transfer of annual profit to shareholders within the shortest time possible, in accordance with the legislation.
Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, the Board of Directors may distribute advance dividends, provided
that it is authorized at the General Assembly Meeting, and Capital Market Regulations are complied with.”
Although a consolidated profit of TL 4,409,910 was created as a result of 2013 operations of our Company, no dividend
was distributed since no distributable profit was obtained after deducting previous year losses.
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2.6. Transfer of Shares

SECTION IV - STAKEHOLDERS

On the grounds that the shares of our Company are bearer shares, there are no provisions within the Articles of Association
that restrict share transfer.

4.1. Informing the Stakeholders

SECTION III - DISCLOSURE AND TRANSPARENCY
3.1. Corporate Website and its Contents
Our Company has a dynamic and up-to-date web site accessible at 23. The majority of the content of the website has
an English version, and it is aimed to complete translation of the entire website into English in the future. The website
contains various information about our Company that may be requested, and there is also an “Investor Relations” section
which is updated from time to time according to current events and covers the following issues as prescribed by the CMB.
Important highlights from our website can be outlined as follows:
•
•
•
•

General and detailed information regarding the field of activity
Vision and main strategies
Evaluation by the senior executives
Corporate Governance Principles,
• Trade registry information,
• Shareholding structure,
• Members of the Board of Directors
• Committees of the Board of Directors and their working principles
• Information related to preferred shares,
• Articles of Association,
• Corporate Governance Principles Compliance Report
• Credit rating
• Reports on the General Assembly Meeting (Agenda of the general assembly meetings, information documents,
		 minutes of meetings and lists of attendants questions asked at the general assembly meeting and answers to that
		 questions, general assembly internal directive),
• Proxy voting form,
• Bonds issue
• Prospectus and IPO circulars
• Purchase and sale transactions of the members of the Board of Directors
• Policies and Rules on Corporate Governance (Disclosure Policy, Remuneration Policy, Dividend Policy, Ethical Rules)
• Reports
• Current and past Annual Reports,
• Current and past periodic financial statements and Independent Auditor’s Reports,
• Current and past Material Event Disclosures,
• Frequently asked questions,
• Links related to stock and stock performance
• Contact information for investor relations
• Press releases
Our website contains the necessary information required under Article 2.1 of the Corporate Governance Principles as the
investor relations section of this website contains articles of association, annual reports, Corporate Governance Principles
Compliance Report, Independent Audit Report, agendas of General Assembly Meetings, and Information Documents for
General Assembly Meetings.
3.2. Annual Reports

Managers of all the units our Company’s departments are informed in the weekly coordination meetings.
All stakeholders are informed with material disclosures made by the company, financial statements disclosed to the
public on a quarterly basis, miscellaneous press bulletins, and with many other information and news stated in the annual
reports and published on the corporate website.
Karsan Otomotiv Sanayii ve Ticaret A.Ş. Ethical Rules was submitted to the shareholders in the 2011 Ordinary General
Assembly Meeting held in June 2012 under Agenda Item No. 17, and it is also available on the corporate website. Duties and
Working Principles of the Corporate Governance Committee were determined with the decision of the Board of Directors
following the Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders and posted on the corporate website and the Public Disclosure
Platform, and accordingly it is the responsibility of the committee to create the necessary mechanisms to inform the
stakeholders of any transaction of the Company which is in violation of the applicable legislation and against ethical rules.
It is among the duties and responsibilities of all executives and in particular the Human Resources Department, to ensure
that each employee adopts and is committed to the Ethical Rules. All Karsan employees including members of the Board
of Directors, Board of Auditors and executives are obliged to comply with the Ethical Rules.
Karsan operates in line with its motto “customers are the reason of our existence” when implementing its business
principles and achieving its objectives. Karsan takes into account the outcome of regular field activities, as well as
surveys, distributor feedbacks and any criticism and comments communicated otherwise, and implements any feasible
suggestions. Providing our customers and suppliers with accurate and timely information is considered an indispensable
principle. Customer and supplier satisfaction is of the utmost importance. Attention is paid to the sensitivity of the
information on trade secrets, and a reciprocal trust is created with our customers, who are the reason for our survival and,
suppliers, who are the source of our survival.
Our Company has taken the necessary measures to ensure that a healthy relationship is built between the Company and
its customers and suppliers, free of any unfair advantages, and any agreement between the parties is duly performed, and
all the employees have been communicated to about our sensitivity in this regard, and a common corporate awareness
has been created. The corporate culture which has been created over the years is continuously maintained by carefully
scrutinizing candidates at the time of recruitment, ensuring that the management sets a role model with its behaviors,
and by holding regular general and unit management meetings. In line with its quality policy, Karsan has aspired
to permanently develop product quality in order to meet and go beyond customer expectations. Karsan ensures that
everyone in the organization pursues the same objective as a whole in harmony, and treats its quality system as the basis
of all operations. As required by the field of activity, all products are produced in accordance with respective legislation. In
this scope, the principal rule is to “do it right” at the first attempt, to standardize what has been done and to ensure that all
works are performed in compliance with those standards. Our products are guaranteed, and where necessary, practices
that are broader than those required by legal obligations can be adopted if needed to ensure customer satisfaction. In
case of any problem, Company representatives work together with distributor company representatives to make necessary
inspections and studies and to ensure that any problems are resolved to the satisfaction of the customer.
Within the scope of customer satisfaction, any request related to the goods and services purchased by the customer must
be satisfied fully, completely and timely, and the customer must be informed about any potential delay without waiting
for expiration of the relevant period.
We are keen on being aware of the opinions and requests of our customers through quality and evaluation meetings
held with the distributors of our products and through site visits organized under their coordination. These organizations
provide an opportunity to make immediate contact with the customer, and help them find timely solutions for their
potential problems.

Annual reports are prepared in accordance with international standards, Capital Market legislation and the legislation
in force, and include information specified in the CMB Corporate Governance Principles. Annual reports approved by the
Board of Directors are disclosed to the public in Turkish and English languages when posted on the corporate website.
Printed copies can also be obtained from the Investor Relations Unit. Our Company ensures that the Board of Directors’
Interim Reports are prepared in accordance with the CMB Corporate Governance Principles. The annual reports of our
Company prepared since 2004 are available on the corporate website.
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4.2. Participation of the Stakeholders in the Management

• With respect to industrial relations; taking appropriate actions to ensure a work environment complying with
occupational health and safety legislation; and performing procedures related to personnel movements as well as
relations with the union.

Currently, there is no model which allows participation of stakeholders in the management. However, in the weekly
coordination meetings, the opinions of all medium and senior level managers are considered in decision-making. The
proposal system adopted Company-wide ensures participation of all employees in the management. Various meetings
are held with the customers, suppliers, unions and potential and current investors.
4.3. Human Resources Policy
In every step of production and management our Company adopts a “People-Oriented Approach” and is committed to
growing together with its employees, customers and shareholders and undertakes that;
•
•

It will meet the workforce needs in accordance with the existing and future human resources planning
It will create a transparent and reliable communication environment which supports teamwork and enhances corporate
awareness
• It will invest in human resources, adopting practices aiming continuous development in line with Company strategies
and objectives and monitor this development
• It will ensure adoption of a fair performance system where employees are recognized and rewarded
• It will continuously improve satisfaction levels in line with expectations of the employees and the organization, and
measure satisfaction perceptions of employees and performance indicators
• It will assess all processes related to employees in an integrated manner, structure, report, and continuously develop
process management
• It will launch and monitor innovative practices and systems with a solution- and result-oriented approach.
Accordingly, below are the basic competencies expected from our associates;
• CommunicationSkills
• Stress management and Inner Motivation
• Being Result-Oriented
• Teamwork and Cooperation
• Time Management and Prioritization
• Taking Initiatives
• Corporate Awareness
• Cost and Efficiency Consciousness
• Analytical Thinking
• Process Knowledge
• Negotiation Skills
The representative appointed for employee relations is the Human Resources Manager Ms. Yasemin Şahin.
JOB DESCRIPTION:
• Contributing to the development of the Company’s human resources policy in order to increase dynamism,
communication, performance and promote continuity in Karsan, ensuring that this policy is adopted by Company
employees and implemented effectively; providing expertise and acting as a pioneer in the implementation of these
policies and continuously improving them, as he is directly responsible for the management of the Company’s human
resources.
• Working on various human resources topics, including staffing analysis, job analysis, remuneration, performance
evaluation, career development, recognition and rewarding, measurement and evaluation of employee satisfaction,
creating funds for needed employees and promoting the corporate culture.
• With respect to Personnel and Administrative Affairs; carrying out recruitment, personnel affairs, accrual & assessment
procedures and remuneration and fringe benefits, coordinating security, cleaning, building maintenance, communications
(cargo, mail), switchboard, social activities, sports, and protocol events for improving employee satisfaction.

• With respect to training; determining, planning, evaluating employee training policies related to human resources;
contributing to the development and performance of a training master plan; taking part in the establishment of relations
with training organizations; developing in-house training and communication activities.
Our Company has not received any complaints about discrimination. As part of our process-based organization, department
managers carry out and inform the employees about the distribution of tasks. There is a performance evaluation and a
subsequent rewarding scheme, and any changes to this scheme are communicated to employees.
4.4. Ethical Rules and Social Responsibility
Karsan Otomotiv Sanayii ve Ticaret A.Ş. Ethical Rules was submitted to the shareholders in the 2011 Ordinary General
Assembly Meeting held in June 2012 under Agenda Item No. 17, and it is also available on the corporate website.
In January 2004, Karsan Otomotiv San. ve Tic. A.Ş. obtained an ISO 14001 Environmental Management System Certificate
for the first time, and its ISO 14001 certificate was extended until 2017 with zero defects identified in the inspection
conducted in 2014. Karsan established an Environmental Management System in order to control and minimize the
environmental effects, and to continuously improve environmental performance through compliance with all environmental
laws and regulations in order to protect the environment and ensure its permanence. With its Environmental Management
System efforts, KARSAN aims to reduce the use of energy and natural resources, and to minimize the amount of waste by
supporting recovery operations. After preliminary treatment, the waste water is sent to the BOSB and HOSAB Centralized
Sewage Treatment Plants, to be reduced and kept at a level below the receiver’s discharge standards, and the output water
analysis and controls are made regularly by the competent authorities. The waste management system ensures that the
wastes requiring recycling, recovery and disposal resulting from production and other activities are collected separately,
and some of them are contributed to the national economy, and those requiring disposal are treated in accordance with
the regulations without causing environmental pollution. Our waste management system, with zero landfill waste, is
continuously improved by setting new objectives and targets, consistent with Karsan Otomotiv A.Ş Environmental Policy, to
reduce the use of energy and its new environmental impacts. Karsan aspires to enhance the environmental consciousness
of the neighboring community around its head office, the supplier industries and all employees, and organizes trainings
and meetings for raising awareness, with an emphasis on continuous training.
No action has been filed against Karsan due to environmental damages. Karsan Otomotiv successfully passed the audits
conducted by the Provincial Directorate of Environment and Urbanization in 2014 and received Environmental Permits for
both of its plants and established its Environmental Management Unit.

SECTION V - BOARD OF DIRECTORS
5.1. Composition and Proceedings of the Board of Directors
Board of Directors

Position - Executive/Non-Executive/Independent Member

İnan Kıraç

Chairman - Non-Executive

Klod Nahum

Vice-Chairman - Non-Executive

Jan Nahum

Board Member - Executive

Nadir Özşahin

Board Member - Independent

Antonio Bene (*)

Board Member - Executive

Giancarlo Boschetti

Board Member - Independent

İpek Kıraç

Board Member - Non-Executive

(*) Board Member Antonio Bene is considered as an executive Board Member since he is authorized in relation to foundation of Karsan Italy S.R.L.
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Résumés of the Members of the Board of Directors and the CEO, together with positions assumed by Directors outside
the Company (inside/outside the group) are given in Annex 1. Additionally, our Independent Members’ declarations of
independence are included in Annex 2.

The meetings are held at the Company headquarters. However, with the decision of the Board of Directors, the meeting may
also be held at a different venue. Any person, entitled to participate in a meeting of the board of directors may participate
in these meetings using electronic media under Article 1527 of the Turkish Commercial Code. In accordance with the
Communiqué on Meetings Held via Electronic Media in Trade Companies excluding General Meeting of Shareholders,
the Company may establish an Electronic Meeting System which would allow right holders to participate and vote via
electronic media, or purchase such services. In the meetings, right holders shall be able to exercise their rights granted
in the applicable legislation using the system which is established or services that are purchased as described in this
provision, in accordance with the Communiqué. At the meetings, each member shall have one vote. This voting right shall
be exercised in person. It shall be possible to participate in the meeting of the board of directors using any technology
allowing remote access. Unless any member requests an actual meeting, the board may decide on a proposal made by
a member when other members agree in writing. The quorum for meetings of the Board of Directors shall be minimum 4
(four) members if the Board is composed of 7 (seven) members, and minimum 5 (five) members if the Board is composed
of 9 (nine) members, and decisions shall be made with the majority of participants in the meeting. In case of equality of
the votes, the relevant topic shall be postponed to the next meeting. If the votes are again equal, the proposal is deemed
to be rejected. In the board of directors, votes shall be used as ‘accept’ or ‘reject’.”

Functions of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee are performed by the Corporate Governance
Committee in compliance with the Corporate Governance Communique. In the report prepared by the Corporate Governance
Committee candidates for independent board membership, it has been determined that Mr. Giancaro Boschetti, one of
the candidates for independent board membership completed his sixth year in the Board of Directors and therefore he
did not meet the criterion specified in Article 4.3.6.(g) of the Corporate Governance Principles: “Not to have conducted
membership of board of directors more than a term of six years in the last ten years.”
Therefore, pursuant to Article 6.5 (Exemptions in implementation of corporate governance principles) of the Corporate
Governance Communiqué (CMB-II-17.1), our Company filed an application with the Capital Markets Board together with
the report prepared by the Corporate Governance Committee in line with its Nomination duty, requesting appointment of
Mr. Giancarlo Boschetti as the independent board member at the first general assembly meeting for one year after the
date of the general assembly meeting, and the Capital Markets Board decided in its meeting no. 16/519 of May 28, 2014,
not to dismiss our request and to inform our Company that the reason of not complying with the independence criterion
related to election of Mr. Giancarlo Boschetti should be disclosed on the Public Disclosure Platform.
The reason of not complying with the relevant criterion can be summarized as follows: Mr. Giancarlo Boschetti, our
candidate for independent Board membership, has acted as a senior executive and board member in many international
automotive companies, has extensive knowledge on the international and Turkish automotive industries, and given
that core field of activity of our Company is production, import and export of motor vehicles in its name and for various
international automotive companies, it is very important to have an independent board member in our Company who
has international reputation, expertise and experience, and it is also considered that he will also play a significant role in
achieving our Company’s target of creating its own brand in line with its “limitless transportation” vision, and it would be
very difficult to find another independent board member with similar experience to replace him.
Initially, Nadir Özşahin and Giancarlo Boschetti were nominated as the Independent Board Members by the Corporate
Governance Committee, and the report indicating whether candidates meet independence criteria was submitted to the
Board of Directors on June 3, 2014. In line with the Board of Directors decision no. 2014/23 of June 5, 2013, together
with the announcement of the general assembly meeting on the Public Dislosure Platform, Nadir Özşahin and Giancarlo
Boschetti were nominated to the Board of Directors as Independent Members to the approval of the General Assembly
Meeting, and résumés of the candidates were included in the General Assembly Meeting Information document.

Telephone and/or e-mail are used to invite the members to a meeting. The Executive Board Member is responsible for
drafting the agenda of meetings of Board of Directors, informing the Members, and ensuring communication.
So far no necessity for a separate secretariat has arisen.
During the period, no counter votes have been exercised because of difference of opinion.
Any question directed by any member during the meeting is recorded in the resolution depending on the diversity of the
topics, and is not recorded in a Q&A form since the format of resolutions of the Board of Directors’ does not allow to do
so. The members of the Board of Directors are not granted weighted voting right and/or right to veto; everyone has equal
vote. Any damage that could be incurred as a result of fault of the members of board of directors when performing their
duties is covered by an “Executive Liability Insurance”, and the total amount of the insurance is USD 40 million. There is
also an additional coverage of USD 1,000,000 for each of the non-executive Board Members.
5.3. Number, Composition and Independence of the Committees Formed in the Board of Directors
Members of the Audit Committee

Position in Committee - Powers (Executive/Non-Executive/Independent Member)

Nadir Özşahin

Chairman of Committee - Independent Board Member

In the Ordinary General Assembly Meeting of the Company held on June 27, 2014, Nadir Özşahin and Giancarlo Boschetti
were elected as the independent Board Members.

Giancarlo Boschetti

Member of Committee - Independent Board Member

Our Company is working on determining a target rate provided that it is not less than 25% and a target time for membership
of women in the board of directors and forming a policy for this target, as specified in the CMB Corporate Governance
Principles.

Members of the Corporate Governance Committee

Position in Committee - Powers (Executive/Non-Executive/Independent Member)

Nadir Özşahin

Chairman of Committee - Independent Board Member

Klod Nahum

Member of Committee - Non-Executive

5.2. Operating Principles of the Board of Directors

Deniz Özer (*)

Member of Committee - Executive

The agenda of the meeting is drafted following a consultation among the Chairman, Vice Chairman and/or Executive
member of the Board of Directors and the Company’s General Manager. Suggestions by members are taken into account.
Agenda items and topics regarding the resolutions of the Board of Directors are drafted periodically or whenever necessary.
The Board of Directors convened 21 times in 2013 and passed a total of 39 resolutions in these meetings. Board members
participated in a majority of the Board meetings. Board of Directors is convened whenever it is necessary for the Company
business.

(*) Head of the Investor Relations Department was assigned to the Corporate Governance Committee under Article 11 of the Communiqué
No. CMB II-17.1.

Members of the Committee on Early
Detection of Risks

Position in Committee - Powers
(Executive/Non-Executive/Independent Member

Nadir Özşahin

Chairman of Committee - Independent Board Member

Klod Nahum

Member of Committee - Non-Executive

Meetings of the Board of Directors are carried out according to Article 10 of Articles of Association of the Company: “Board
of Directors shall convene whenever required for Company business.
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At the Board of Directors meeting held after the Ordinary General Assembly Meeting on June 27, 2014, Duties and Working
Principles of the Corporate Governance Committee and Committee on Early Detection of Risks were updated according
to the CMB legislation. The functions of the Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee are performed by the
Corporate Governance Committee. These Duties and Working Principles were disclosed to the public when posted in the
investor relations section on the corporate website at www.karsan.com.tr.

ANNEX 1 - Résumés of the Members of the Board of Directors and the CEO

In this financial period, the Audit Committee worked in accordance with the CMB legislation and its Duties and Working
Principles in relation to selection of an independent audit firm, disclosure of financial statements to the public, and
disclosure of a report to the public on use of proceeds of the capital increase, and issued 6 reports. In this financial
period, the Corporate Governance Committee worked in accordance with the CMB legislation and its Duties and Working
Principles in relation to preparation of Corporate Governance Compliance Report, supervision of activities of Investor
Relations Unit, and nomination of candidates to become Independent Board Members as a part of its function as the
Nomination Committee; and developing Remuneration Policy and carrying out remuneration committee activities as a
part of its function as the Remuneration Committee, and issued 7 reports. During this period, the Committee on Early
Detection of Risks worked in accordance with the CMB legislation and its Duties and Working Principles, and issued 6 reports.
Since our Company is in the Third Group within the context of the Corporate Governance Communiqué, it is sufficient to
have 2 Independent Members in the Board of Directors. Therefore, our Company has 2 Independent Members in the Board of
Directors. Since the head of each committee must be an independent board member, Mr. Nadir Özşahin is the head of all
three committees: the Audit Committee, the Corporate Governance Committee, and the Committee on Early Detection of Risks.
5.4. Risk Management and Internal Control Mechanism
Risks that are identified as a result of activities carried out by the Corporate Risk Management Unit in accordance with a
plan approved by the Committee on Early Detection of Risks, are evaluated taking the corporate risk taking profile into account,
and organization of an effective internal control system structuring is aimed with action plans that are created. Internal
Auditing activities are carried out in the group by the parent company Kıraça Holding A.Ş, in coordination with the Company.
5.5. Strategic Objectives of the Company
MISSION: Identifying transportation needs, and designing, producing and offering necessary systems, products, and
services to meet these needs.
VISION: Limitless Transportation Solutions
The General Manager announces the corporate mission and vision to the public via various media channels and the
corporate website.
Strategic objectives identified by the General Manager in consultation with the management team in line with the vision
and the mission, are announced to the employees. Every year, the chairman of the board of directors gives an overview of
the operations and performance of the Company in the previous year in the annual report.
5.6. Financial Rights
The Remuneration Policy for Members of the Board of Directors and Executives with Administrative Responsibilities was
submitted to the attention of the Ordinary General Assembly Meeting dated June 27th, 2014 as a separate agenda item
and shareholders were given an opportunity to comment on the policy, and the remuneration policy was also published on
the corporate website. The total amount of rights, benefits and fees provided to the members of the Board of Directors and
Executives in 2014 was TL 5,287.623 and this amount is given in footnotes to financial statements, and these footnotes
are included in the annual report and on the corporate website. At the Ordinary General Assembly Meeting, held on June
27, 2014, it was decided that as of the first day of the month following the General Assembly Meeting, Independent
Members of the Board of Directors would be paid TL 5,250 (gross) per month and other members of the Board of Directors
would be paid TL 3,150 (gross) per month.

İnan Kıraç - Chairman
İnan Kıraç began his career as a Sales Officer in 1961 at Ormak A.Ş., a division of Koç Group. In 1966, he was promoted as the General
Manager of Otoyol, the manufacturing company of Fiat trucks and midibuses. He later became the General Manager of Tofaş Oto
Ticaret, the sales and distribution company of Fiat cars produced in Turkey. Kıraç was then promoted as the Vice President and later on
President of the Koç Holding Automotive Group. He served as the CEO of Koç Holding until his retirement in 1998. İnan Kıraç was privy
to every development in the Turkish automotive industry and left his signature on many great automotive factories.
Klod Nahum - Vice Chairman
Klod Nahum joined the Koç Group after he graduated from the London University of Kings College with a masters in automotive
engineering. He began his career as a technical maintenance officer in 1969 at Tofaş Oto A.Ş., a division of Koç Group. In 1980, he moved
to Switzerland as the President of the Kofisa Trading Company, where he began forming Koç Group’s other foreign trading companies.
He was appointed as Vice President of the International Trade Group in 1991 and was promoted to President in 1997. During the
period of Nahum’s service to the International Trade Group the gross turnover went from $10 million to $1,6 billion. He is currently the
Managing Director and Founding Partner of the Kıraça Group.
Jan Nahum - Executive Director
Jan Nahum graduated from the Royal Collage of Art with a degree in Automotive Designing after his engineering education in Robert
College. In 1973, he joined the Koç Group as project engineer. Until 2002, he took part in various positions in automotive companies
of the Group. He served as the General Manager of Otokar between 1984-1994 and then of Tofaş between 1994-1997. Between 20022004, he served as the Head of International Business Development at Fiat S.p.A. In between 2005-2007 he served as the General
Manager of Petrol Ofisi. He is now the Founding Partner of Hexagon Danışmanlık A.Ş.
Nadir Özşahin - Independent Board Member
Nadir Özşahin graduated from Istanbul University Faculty of Economics in 1965. Özşahin began his career as an auditor at the Ministry
of Finance in 1965. In 1974, Özşahin started working in the private sector, and served as a Coordinator, Vice President and President of
Audit and Finance Group at Koç Holding A.Ş. Following his retirement in 2003, Özşahin worked as a certified public accountant between
2004-2005, and a Board Member of Döktaş Döküm Sanayi A.Ş. between 2005-2008. Özşahin was a Member of the Foundation Board of
Trustees and Graduates in Faculty of Istanbul University Faculty of Economics between 2000 and February, 2013. Nadir Özşahin worked
as a Board Member in Ram Dış Ticaret A.Ş. between 2008 and February, 2012.
Antonio Bene - Board Member
After mechanical engineering studies, Bene started to work in Alfa Romeo S.p.A. in 1972. He served as Director of FIAT Auto S.p.A
Mirafiori Plant, Platform and Industrial Director. Later, he served as Ferrari S.p.A. Industrial General Manager and as TOFAS Türk
Otomobil Fabrikası A.Ş. CEO between 2002-2004, and until 2005 he served as Senior Vice President and Global Industrial Director.
Giancarlo Boschetti - Independent Board Member
After studying mechanical engineering and economics, Giancarlo Boschetti started to work for the Fiat Group in 1964. After serving in
different positions in the Fiat Group for almost 40 years, he became the Global CEO of Iveco S.p.A. between 1991 and 2001, and the
Global CEO of Fiat Auto S.p.A. between 2002 and 2003. Giancarlo Boschetti continues to serve as a board member in many international
companies.
İpek Kıraç - Board Member
İpek Kıraç graduated from Koç High School in 2002 and received her undergraduate degree from Brown University’s Biology Department
in 2007, and is continuing her master’s study at the same university in the field of Public Health. İpek Kıraç is a Founding Member of the
Suna and İnan Kıraç Foundation, and also a member of the Management Committee of Koç High School, Board Member in Temel Ticaret
ve Yatırım A.Ş., Member of Board of Trustees at TEGEV, Board Member in Amerikan Hastanesi Sağlık Hizmetleri Ticaret A.Ş. and Board
Member in Zer Merkezi Hizmetler A.Ş. As of March 2012 İpek Kıraç was appointed to CEO for Sirena Marine Denizcilik ve Ticaret A.Ş.
Ahmet Murat Selek - CEO
After receiving his undergraduate degree from Bogazici University’s Mechanical Engineering Department and postgraduate degree from
Cornell University’s (USA) Mechanical Engineering Department, Ahmet Selek started to work at Enka Insaat in 1983 as a Purchasing
Specialist. Between 1986-1987, Selek worked as Planning and Commercial Activity Manager at Cukurova Ziraat. In 1987, Ahmet Selek
started working for Otoyol Sanayi A.S and served as Project Manager and Overseas Purchasing Manager until 1992. After he started
working at Tofas as Marketing-Sales-After Sales Manager in 1992, Mr Selek came back to Otoyol and served as CEO between 20032007. In 2008, he became the CEO of Karsan Otomotiv.

The Company did not lend any funds or grant any loans to any Board Member or Executives or allow the use of credit
through third parties in the form of an individual loan or issue any guarantees such as a surety.

76

77

Corporate Governance Principles
Compliance Report

Karsan Annual Report 2014

Tasks Performed By the Members of the Board of Directors Outside the Company

Tasks Performed By the Members of the Board of Directors Outside the Company

Board of Directors

Current Positions assumed outside the Company

Nadir ÖZŞAHİN
(Independent Board Member)

-

İnan KIRAÇ
(Chairman)

Chairman of Karsan Otomotiv Sanayi Mamülleri Pazarlama A.Ş
Chairman of KöK Ziraat Turizm Sanayi Ticaret A.Ş., (*)
Chairman of Kıraça Holding A.Ş.
Chairman of Karland Otomotiv Ürünleri San. ve Tic. A.Ş.
Chairman of Kök Finansal Yatırımlar A.Ş., (*)
Chairman of Heksagon Mühendislik ve Tasarım A.Ş
Chairman of Kök Enerji Yatırımları A.Ş., (*)
Board Member of Koç Holding A.Ş. (*)
Chairman of Board of Directors of the Suna and İnan Kıraç Foundation, Cultural and Arts Company (*)
Chairman of Board of Directors of the Galatasaray Education Foundation(*),
Board Member of Silco S.A (*)
Chairman of Sirena Marine Denizcilik Sanayi ve Tic. A.Ş.
Board Member of Sirmar Denizcilik Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş.
Board Member of Adabey Turizm Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. (*)
Board Member of Vaniköy Gayrimenkul Yatırım A.Ş (*)

Antonio BENE
(Board Member)

-

Giancarlo BOSCHETTI
((Independent Board Member)

Board Member of AZIMUT Benetti Yachts (*)
Board Member of Vintage Capital S.p.A (*)
Board Member of Arcese Transporti S.p.A (*)
Board Member of Finde S.p.A. (*)

İpek KIRAÇ
(Board Member)

Founding Member - Board Member of Suna ve İnan Kıraç Vakfı Kültür ve Sanat İşletmesi, (*)
Executive Committee Member of Koç Özel Lisesi, (*)
Board Member of Temel Ticaret ve Yatırım A.Ş., (*)
Board Member of Kök Ziraat Turizm Sanayi Ticaret A.Ş. (*)
Board Member of Kıraça Holding A.Ş
Board Member of TEGEV, (*)
Board Member of Amerikan Hastanesi Sağlık Hizmetleri Tic. (*)
Board Member Zer Merkezi Hizmetler A.Ş., (*)
CEO of Sirena Marine Denizcilik San. ve Tic. A.Ş.
Board Member of Moment Eğitim Araştırma Sağlık Hiz. ve Tic. A.Ş. (*)
Board Member of Vaniköy Gayrimenkul Yatırım A.Ş (*)
Board Member of Sirmar Denizcilik Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş.

Klod NAHUM
(Vice-Chairman)

Vice-Chairman of Heksagon Danışmanlık ve Ticaret A.Ş. (*)
Board Member of Heksagon Mühendislik ve Tasarım A.Ş
Board Member of Heksagon Katı Atık Yönetimi Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş.(*)
Vice-Chairman of Kök Enerji Yatırımları A.Ş., (*)
Vice-Chairman of Kıraça Holding A.Ş
Vice-Chairman of Sirmar Denizcilik San. ve Tic. A.Ş
Vice-Chairman of Sirena Marine Denizcilik Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş
Chairman of Silco S.A (*)
Chairman of Silco Polymers S.A.(*)
Vice-Chairman of Karland Otomotiv Ürünleri San. ve Tic. A.Ş.
Chairman of Kıraça Dış Ticaret A.Ş., in liquidation

Jan NAHUM
(Executive Board Member)

Chairman of Heksagon Danışmanlık ve Ticaret A.Ş. (*)
Vice-Chairman of Heksagon Mühendislik ve Tasarım A. Ş. (Real Person Representative on
behalf of Heksagon Danışmanlık ve Ticaret A.Ş.)
Heattek Elektronik Yazılım Ar Ge Bilişim Sistemleri Danışmanlık ve Tic. A.Ş. (Real Person
Representative on behalf of Heksagon Danışmanlık ve Ticaret A.Ş.) (*)
Artı Doksan Hızlı İmalat Teknolojileri Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş (Chairman and Real Person
Representative on Behalf of Heksagon Danışmanlık ve Ticaret A.Ş. (*)
Heksagon Enerji Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. (Real Person Representative on behalf of Heksagon
Danışmanlık ve Ticaret A.Ş.) (*)
Heksagon Global Enerji Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. (Real Person Representative on behalf of
Heksagon Enerji Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş.) (*)
Chairman of Heksagon Katı Atık Yönetimi Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş.(*)
Heksagon Katı Atık Toplama ve Depolama Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. (Real Person Representative
on Behalf of Heksagon Katı Atık Yönetimi San. ve Tic. A.Ş.) (*)
Biosun Söke Katı Atık İşleme Enerji ve Çevre Sanayi Ticaret A.Ş.(Real Person Representative
on Behalf of Heksagon Katı Atık Yönetimi San. ve Tic. A.Ş.) (*)
Biosun Ödemiş Entegre Katı Atık Yönetimi San.ve Tic. A.Ş (Real Person Representative on
Behalf of Heksagon Katı Atık Yönetimi San. ve Tic. A.Ş.) (*)
Biosun Bilecik Katı Atık İşleme Enerji ve Çevre Sanayi Ticaret Anonim Şirketi (Real Person
Representative on Behalf of Heksagon Katı Atık Yönetimi Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş.) (*)
Biosun Kütahya Katı Atık İşleme Enerji ve Çevre Sanayi Ticaret Anonim Şirketi (Real Person
Representative on Behalf of Heksagon Katı Atık Yönetimi Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş.) (*)
Chairman of Heksagon Yenilenebilir Enerji Yatırımları San. ve Tic. A.Ş (Real Person
Representative of Heksagon Global Enerji Kaynakları Sanayi Ve Ticaret Anonim i) (*)
Vice-Chairman of Karsan Otomotiv Sanayi Mamulleri Pazarlama A.Ş.
Board Member of Kök Enerji Yatırımları A.Ş., (*)
Board Member of Kıraça Holding A.Ş.
Board Member of Sirmar Denizcilik Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş.
Board Member of Sirena Marine Denizcilik Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş.

(*) Non-group companies.
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Annex 2 – Declarations of Independence of the Independent Members of the Board of Directors
KARSAN OTOMOTİV SANAYİİ VE TİCARET A.Ş.
DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE BY THE CANDIDATE FOR BOARD MEMBERSHIP

KARSAN OTOMOTİV SANAYİİ VE TİCARET A.Ş.
DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE BY THE CANDIDATE FOR BOARD MEMBERSHIP

-

-

-

-

I do not have a relationship in terms of employment at an administrative level to take upon significant duty and
responsibilities within the last five years, I do not own more than 5% of the capital or voting rights or privileged shares
either jointly or solely or I have not established a significant commercial relation between Karsan Otomotiv Sanayi
ve Ticaret A.Ş (Company)., companies on which the Company holds control of management or significant effect
and shareholders who hold control of management of the Company or have significant effect in the Company and
legal entities on which these shareholders hold control of management and myself, my spouse and my relatives by
blood or marriage up to second degree,
I have not been a shareholder (5% and more), an employee at an administrative level to take upon significant duty and
responsibilities or member of board of directors within the last five years in companies that the Company purchases
or sells goods or service at a significant level within the framework of the contracts executed, especially on audit
(including tax audit, statutory audit, internal audit), rating and consulting of the Company, at the time period when the
Company purchases or sells services or goods,
I have professional education, knowledge and experience in order to duly fulfill the duties assigned for being an
independent board member,
As of the day of my nomination I am not and in the event I am elected, for the term of my duty I will not be a full time
employee at public authorities and institutions except being an academic member at university that is in compliance
with the relevant legislation,
I am deemed to be residing in Turkey according to the Income Tax Law No. 193 of 31/12/1960,
I can make positive contributions to the operations of the Company, maintain my objectivity in conflicts of interests
between the Company and the shareholders, and I have strong ethical standards, professional reputation and
experience to freely take decisions by considering the rights of the stakeholders,
I will be able to allocate time for the company business sufficient to follow up operations of the Company and to duly
fulfill the assigned duties,
I hereby acknowledge and agree that I have not been serving as a member in the Board of Directors of the Company
for more than six years in the last decade,
I am not an independent board member in more than three of the companies whose management is controlled by the
Company or the controlling shareholders of the Company and in more than five companies in total which are traded
on the stock exchange,
I have not been registered or announced on behalf of the legal entity selected as the member of Board of Directors,
I shall immediately inform the Board of Directors and resign in case of occurrence of any event which conflicts with my
independence.

Nadir ÖZŞAHİN
30.05.2014
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-

-

I do not have a relationship in terms of employment at an administrative level to take upon significant duty and
responsibilities within the last five years, I do not own more than 5% of the capital or voting rights or privileged
shares either jointly or solely or I have not established a significant commercial relation between Karsan Otomotiv
Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş (Company)., companies on which the Company holds control of management or significant effect
and shareholders who hold control of management of the Company or have significant effect in the Company and
legal entities on which these shareholders hold control of management and myself, my spouse and my relatives by
blood or marriage up to second degree,
I have not been a shareholder (5% and more), an employee at an administrative level to take upon significant duty and
responsibilities or member of board of directors within the last five years in companies that the Company purchases
or sells goods or service at a significant level within the framework of the contracts executed, especially on audit
(including tax audit, statutory audit, internal audit), rating and consulting of the Company, at the time period when the
Company purchases or sells services or goods,
I have professional education, knowledge and experience in order to duly fulfill the duties assigned for being an
independent board member,
As of the day of my nomination I am not and in the event I am elected, for the term of my duty I will not be a full time
employee at public authorities and institutions except being an academic member at university that is in compliance
with the relevant legislation,
I can provide positive contribution to the Company activities, I can maintain independency in case of conflicts between
the shareholders of the Company, I can decide freely by taking into account the rights of shareholders and I have
strong ethical standards, professional reputation and experience,
I am able to dedicate my time to Company business to follow up the Company activities and fulfillment of my duties,
I hereby acknowledge and agree that I have been serving as a member in the Board of Directors of the Company for
more than six years in the last decade,
I am not an independent board member in more than three of the companies whose management is controlled by the
Company or the controlling shareholders of the Company and in more than five companies in total which are traded
on the stock exchange,
I have not been registered or announced on behalf of the legal entity selected as the member of Board of Directors,
I shall immediately inform the Board of Directors and resign in case of occurrence of any event which conflicts with my
independence.

Giancarlo BOSCHETTI
23.05.2014
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To the Board of Directors of Karsan Otomotiv Sanayii ve Ticaret A.Ş.

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Karsan Otomotiv Sanayii ve Ticaret A.Ş.
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”), which comprise the consolidated
statement of balance sheet as at December 31, 2014 and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the period then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

4. In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Karsan Otomotiv Sanayii ve Ticaret A.Ş. and its subsidiaries as at December 31, 2014 and
their performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Turkish Accounting Standards.
Reports on Independent Auditor’s Responsibilities Arising from Other Regulatory Requirements

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements
2. The Group’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated 		
financial statements in accordance with Turkish Accounting Standards and for such internal control as 		
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. 		
Our audit was conducted in accordance with standards on auditing issued by the Capital Markets Board of
Turkey and Independent Auditing Standards that part of Turkish Standards on Auditing issued by the Public 		
Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority. Those standards require that ethical requirements 		
are complied with and that the audit is planned and performed to obtain reasonable assurance whether the 		
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on our professional judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error and/or fraud. In making those
risk assessments; the Group’s internal control system is taken into consideration. Our purpose, however, 		
is not to express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control system, but to design procedures that are
appropriate for the circumstances in order to identify the relation between the financial statements prepared
by the Group and its internal control system. An audit includes also evaluating the appropriateness of 		
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Group’s management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained during our audit is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

5. In accordance with subparagraph 4 of Article 398 of the Turkish Commercial Code (“TCC”) No: 6102; auditor’s
report on the early risk identification system and committee has been submitted to the Company’s Board of 		
Directors on March 11, 2015
6. In accordance with subparagraph 4 of Article 402 of the TCC; no significant matter has come to our attention
that causes us to believe that the Company’s bookkeeping activities for the period January 1 - December 31,
2014 is not in compliance with the code and provisions of the Company’s articles of association in relation to
financial reporting.
7. In accordance with subparagraph 4 of Article 402 of the TCC, the Board of Directors submitted to us the 		
necessary explanations and provided required documents within the context of audit.

Başaran Nas Bağımsız Denetim ve
Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Müşavirlik A.Ş
A member of
PricewaterhouseCoopers

Beste Gücümen, SMMM
Partner

Istanbul, March 11, 2015

82

83

CONTENTS

Consolidated Financial
Statements for the Period
January 1-December 31, 2014

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION (BALANCE SHEETS)		

86

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME		

88

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

89

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS				

90

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

91

NOTE 1 GROUP’S ORGANISATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS		

91

NOTE 2 BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPLIED		

92

NOTE 3 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS		

106

NOTE 4 SEGMENT REPORTING		

106

NOTE 5 TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES		

107

NOTE 6 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

109

NOTE 7 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS		

109

NOTE 8 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES		

110

NOTE 9 TRADE RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES		

112

NOTE 10 SHORT AND LONG TERM PROVISIONS		

113

NOTE 11 INVENTORIES		

114

NOTE 12 PREPAID EXPENSES AND DEFERRED INCOME		

114

NOTE 13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

115

NOTE 14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS		

117

NOTE 15 GOVERNMENTS GRANTS AND INCENTIVES		

118

NOTE 16 CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES		

118

NOTE 17 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS		

120

NOTE 18 OTHER ASSET AND LIABILITIES		

121

NOTE 19 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND OTHER EQUITY ITEMS

121

NOTE 20 REVENUE AND COST OF SALES		

123

NOTE 21 GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES, MARKETING EXPENSES,

124

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES		
NOTE 22 EXPENSES BY NATURE		

125

NOTE 23 OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 		

125

NOTE 24 FINANCIAL INCOME AND EXPENSES 		

126

NOTE 25 OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES		

126

NOTE 26 TAXATION ON INCOME (INCLUDING DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES)		

126

NOTE 27 LOSS PER SHARE		

129

NOTE 28 CHARACTERISTICS AND LEVEL OF RISKS RESULTING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS		

129

NOTE 29 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (FAIR VALUE DISCLOSURES AND HEDGING DISCLOSURES)

136

NOTE 30 OTHER ISSUES THAT SIGNIFICANTLY AFFECT THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OR OTHER ISSUES, 		

138

REQUIRED FOR THE CLEAR UNDERSTANDING OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 31 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

84

138

85

Financial Statements
and Auditor’s Report

Karsan Annual Report 2014

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF THE FINANCIAL POSITION
(BALANCE SHEETS AT DECEMBER 31, 2014 and 2013)
(Amounts expressed in Turkish lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated.)

Note

Audited
December 31, 2014

Audited
December 31, 2013

Note

ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Current assets

Current liabilities

Cash and cash equivalents

6

17,778,999

39,440,493

- Trade receivables from related parties

5

10,974,960

8,920,075

- Other trade receivables

9

158,317,565

134,883,355

Trade receivables

- Other receivables

1,079,455

1,693,163

Inventories

11

90,189,394

96,118,874

Prepaid expenses

12

10,390,047

17,815,412

876,427

298,414

Assets related to current taxes

Assets held for sale

18
30

Total current assets

Property, plant and equipment

18,294,729

24,813,084

8

98,359,137

57,241,616

5

8,363,796

85,248,862

- Due to related parties
- Other trade payables

9

59,645,315

41,692,556

Payables related to employee benefits

17

5,045,260

4,505,778

Deferred income

12

1,207,420

648,423

Current income tax liabilities

26

150,159

41,973

- Short term provisions for employee benefits

17

1,996,996

1,683,874

- Other short term provisions

10

15,752,697

3,865,769

18

2,049,569

1,658,580

210,865,078

221,400,515

642,038,796

421,629,057

Short term provisions

Other current liabilities

311,648,059

417,302,202

29,301,831

29,301,831

Long term borrowings

446,604,033

Long term provisions

340,949,890

Total current liabilities
Long term liabilities

118,295,313

171,925,130

7

265,634

313,793

13

409,092,583

295,778,784

14

148,425,489

92,640,348

Prepaid expenses

12

15,594,647

5,227,153

Deferred tax assets

26

32,064,260

19,003,402

Other non-current assets

18

70,000,000

56

793,737,926

584,888,666

1,134,687,816

1,031,492,699

Total non-current assets

8

- Provisions for employee benefits

17

13,172,875

10,197,866

- Other long term provisions

10

35,435,359

44,633,768

Deferred income

9

Intangible assets
- Other intangible assets

8

Short term portion of long term borrowings

118,132,416

Trade receivables
Financial investment

Short term borrowings

22,041,212

Non-current assets
- Trade receivables from related parties

Audited
December 31, 2013

Trade payables

Other receivables

Other current assets

Audited
December 31, 2014

12

Total non-current Liabilities

331,381

166,213

690,978,411

476,626,904

256,543,313

341,878,290

EQUITY
Equity attributable to equity owners of the Company
Paid-in capital

19

460,000,000

460,000,000

Paid-in capital Inflation adjustment differences

19

22,585,778

22,585,778

3,19

(12,402,788)

(12,402,788)

19

6,139,733

6,139,733

Additional contribution to equity due to consolidations
Share premium
Other comprehensive income/expense not to be
reclassified to profit or loss
- Gain on revaluation and remeasurement

13

80,480,862

85,478,836

- Other losses

19

(3,336,110)

(1,775,182)

44,533

-

Legal reserves

19

1,031,613

1,031,613

Retained losses

19

Other comprehensive income/expense to be

TOTAL ASSETS

reclassified to profit or loss
- Currency translation differences

(212,619,021)

(235,028,919)

Net Loss for the Period

(85,381,287)

15,849,219

Non-controlling Interests

(23,698,986)

(8,413,010)

Total equity

232,844,327

333,465,280

1,134,687,816

1,031,492,699

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

86

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE PERIOD JANUARY 1 - DECEMBER 31, 2014 and 2013

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE PERIOD JANUARY 1 - DECEMBER 31, 2014 and 2013

(Amounts are expressed in Turkish lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated.)

(Amounts expressed in Turkish lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated.)

Notes

Audited
January 1 December 31, 2014

Audited
January 1 December 31, 2013

Revenue

20

358,284,009

912,548,887

Cost of sales (-)

20

(323,911,959)

(751,576,474)

34,372,050

160,972,413

Gross Income
Marketing expenses (-)

21

(51,112,988)

(88,517,339)

General administrative expenses (-)

21

(35,863,427)

(33,074,783)

Research and development expenses (-)

21

(2,150,105)

(1,790,914)

Other operating income

23

81,500,144

125,625,780

Other operating expenses (-)

23

(83,577,525)

(97,771,905)

(56,831,851)

65,443,252

3,343,134

1,771,567

Operating profit/(loss)
Income from investing activities

25

Expenses from investing activities (-)

25

Operating profit before financial income and expense
Financial expenses (-)

24

Loss before tax from continuing operations

(11,192,458)

(1,802,256)

(64,681,175)

65,412,563

(46,134,065)

(67,414,921)

(110,815,240)

(2,002,358)

Tax expense from continued operations
- Taxes on income

26

(628,298)

(373,297)

- Deferred tax income

26

11,424,920

6,785,565

Profit/(loss) for the period

(100,018,618)

4,409,910

Distribution of profit/(loss) for the Period

(100,018,618)

4,409,910

(14,637,331)

(11,439,309)

(85,381,287)

15,849,219

Non-controlling interests
Equity holders of the Company

27

Earnings/(loss) per share
- Earnings/(loss) per share continued operations

27

(0,00186)

0,00055

Other comprehensive income and expense:
Items not to be reclassified to profit or loss
Revaluation increase/(decrease) on property, plant and equipment
Other comprehensive income items not to be

19

300,955

(6.264,627)

(1,599,233)

(1,723,509)

Paid in
capital

Capital
advances

Other
losses

Currency
translation
differences

126,915,298 22,585,778 (12,402,788)

-

6,032,022

90,678,476

-

January 1, 2013
(Opening balance)

260,000,000

Transfer

126,915,298 (126,915,298)

Capital increase

Share Revaluation
funds
premium

Additional
Inflation
adjustment contribution
equity due
to share
capital combination

Equity
holders
of the
company

Noncontrolling
interests

Total
equity

1,031,613 (175,976,370) (59,052,549) 259,811,480

(6,960,387)

252,851,093

Restricted
reserves

Accumulated
losses

Current
period
losses

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(59,052,549)

59,052,549

-

-

-

73,084,702

-

-

-

-

107,711

-

-

-

-

-

73,192,413

-

73,192,413

Loss compensation fund
of the subsidiary

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

11,000,000

11,000,000

Total comprehensive
expense

-

-

-

-

-

- (5,199,640)

(1,775,182)

-

-

15,849,219

8,874,397 (12,452,623)

(3,578,226)

- 22,585,778 (12,402,788)

-

December 31, 2013
(Closing balance)

460,000,000

6,139,733

85,478,836

(1,775,182)

Share Revaluation
funds
premium

Other
losses

85,478,836

(1,775,182)

1,031,613 (235,028,919)

15,849,219 341,878,290

(8,413,010)

333,465,280

Equity
holders
of the
company

Noncontrolling
interests

Total
equity

15,849,219 341,878.290

(8,413.010)

333,465,280

1,312,136

-

1,312,136

-

-

-

Paid in
capital

Capital
advances

Additional
Inflation
adjustment contribution
equity due
to share
capital combination

Currency
translation
differences

460,000,000

-

22,585,778 (12,402,788)

-

Transfer

-

-

-

-

-

- (5,248,543)

-

-

Capital increase

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Total comprehensive
expense

-

-

-

44,533

-

250,569

(1,560,928)

-

- (85,381,287) (86,647,113) (14,616,295) (101,263,408)

Dividend paid

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

22,585,778 (12,402,788)

44,533

6,139,733

80,480,862

(3,336,110)

January 1, 2014
(Opening balance)

December 31, 2014
(Closing balance)

6,139,733

Restricted
reserves

Accumulated
losses

1,031,613 (235,028,919)

Current
period
losses

22,409,898 (15,849,219)
-

-

460,000,000

-

(669,681)

(669,681)

1,031,613 (212,619,021) (85,381,287) 256,543,313 (23,698,986)

232,844,327

-

-

reclassified to profit or losses
Items to be reclassified to profit or loss
Currency translation differences

88

53,488

-

Other comprehensive losses

(1,244,790)

(7,988,136)

Total comprehensive losses

(101,263,408)

(3,578,226)

Attributable to

(101,263,408)

(3,578,226)

- Non-controlling interest

(14,616,295)

(12,452,623)

- Equity holders of the Company

(86,647,113)

8,874,397

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE PERIOD JANUARY 1 - DECEMBER 31, 2014 and 2013

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD JANUARY 1 - DECEMBER 31, 2014

(Amounts are expressed in Turkish lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated.)

(Amounts are expressed in Turkish lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated.)

January 1 Notes December 31, 2014

January 1 December 31, 2013

(100,018.618)
77,856,188
32,244,423
1,977,974
11,192,458
40,660,177
708,826
67,012
4,058,716
313,122
(10,796,622)
(2,569,898)

4.409,910
108,273,075
24,775,239
2,207,235
31,554
54,414,889
(2,500,647)
37,400
36,590,033
137,490
(6,412,268)
(1,007,850)

Changes in net working capital
Trade receivables
Inventory
Due from related parties
Other receivables and short term assets
Other long term assets
Trade payables
Due to related parties
Other current/non-current liabilities

5,240,463
35,382,292
5,332,967
(2,054,885)
104,130,277
(80,367,438)
(76,790,144)
17,952,759
1,654,635

(275,374,058)
(246,132,913)
83,055,311
8,496,052
(56,455,542)
(2,510,875)
(64,659,734)
1,981,703
851,940

Cash flows from operating activities
Current income tax paid
Employment termination benefits paid
Interest received
Interest paid

(5,317,996)
(1,098,125)
(1,002,006)
3,178,984
(6,396,849)

10,849,286
(393,689)
(4,086,902)
23,694,493
(8,364,616)

(22,239,963)

(151,841,787)

(198,734,436)
(11,971,868)
3,328,407
(263,520)

(73,381,853)
(17,949,465)
822,585
1,771,567
(311,679)

(207,641,417)

(89,048,845)

A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net (loss)/profit for the year
Adjustments
Depreciation and amortization
Provision for employment termination benefit
Loss from sales of property, plant and equipment
Interest expenses-income
Inventory impairments
Allowances for doubtful receivables
Changes in provisions
Unused vacation liability
Adjustments for tax income/ losses
Other adjustments

22
17
25
11
9
17
26

17

Net cash used in by operating activities

NOTE 1 - GROUP’S ORGANISATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS
Trade Name			

: Karsan Otomotiv Sanayii ve Ticaret A.Ş. (“Karsan” or “The Company”)

Head Office			

:Hasanağa Organize Sanayi Bölgesi (HOSAB), Sanayi Caddesi, 16225, Nilüfer-BURSA

Related Group			

: Kıraça Holding A.Ş.

Registered Stock Exchange

: Istanbul Stock Exchange (Borsa İstanbul) National Market

The Company has been established to build any kind of vehicle assembly and bodywork facilities, purchasing and/or
participating in the already established facilities, importing vehicles for bodywork manufacturing, and producing and
selling any kind of vehicle bodywork in Turkey. The activities of the Company are to produce, import and export motor
vehicles to automotive brands. Moreover, the Company provides industrial service to automotive key and supply industry
companies.
Company and subsidiaries (collectively refereed as the “Group”) total employees numbers are 1,384 as of December 31,
2014 (December 31 , 2013: 1,305)
These consolidated financial statements have been approved at Board of Directors’ meetings dated March 11, 2015 on
the verge of issue. Furthermore consolidated financial statements are subject to approval of Karsan Otomotiv Sanayii ve
Ticaret A.Ş. Shareholders concerning General Assembly for the year of 2014.
Subsidiaries
The details of The Company’s subsidiaries as of 31.12.2014 are as follows:
Shareholding of Company
December 31, 2014

Company
name

Operating
activity

B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets
Proceeds on sale of property, plant and equipment
Interest received
Other

13
14

7

Net cash used in investing activities
C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Change in borrowings
Interest paid
Capital increase
Share premium
Dividend payment
Net cash provided used in financing activities
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period
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The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

19
19

6
6

254,820,301
(45,945,461)
(669,681)

241,592,141
(48,852,206)
73,084,702
107,711
-

208.205,159
(21,676,221)
39,440,493
17,764,272

265,932,348
25,041,716
14,398,777
39,440,493

Karsan Otomotiv Sanayi Mamulleri

Direct and
indirect
share

Effective
share

December 31, 2013

Direct and
indirect
share

Effective
share

Distributor

25%

25%

25%

25%

Production, sales,

83%

83%

83%

83%

Pazarlama A.Ş. (“Karsan Pazarlama”)
Kırpart Otomotiv Parçaları
San. ve Tic. A.Ş. (“Kırpart”)

marketing and distribution

Karsan Shanghai

Sales and marketing

100%

83%

100%

83%

Karsan USA LLC (*)

Sales and marketing

100%

100%

100%

100%

Karsan S.R.L. (**)

Sales and marketing

100%

100%

-

-

(*) Karsan founded a company based in New York, US, with the trade name Karsan USA LLC that is wholly owned by the Company and does not require
a capital transfer during foundation process, in order to participate at the tenders of local authorities, regarding the project of taxi model designed. There
was no capital transfer to the company so far and there is no effect on the financial position of the Group.
(**) With the decision of Board of Directors dated November 19, 2014, Karsan has established a company titled “Karsan Italy S.R.L” and headquartered
in Torino Italy which has the capital by EUR 100,000 and is wholly owned by the Karsan on the purpose of increasing export potential of the Company.
Since the company has not started its operations yet and is not material on the Group’s financial position, it is not consolidated in the financial statements
for the year 2014.
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FOR THE PERIOD JANUARY 1 - DECEMBER 31, 2014
(Amounts are expressed in Turkish lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated.)

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPLIED

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPLIED (Continued)

2.1			

Basis of Presentation

2.1.2

2.1.1

Financial Reporting Standards

b) Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the control is transferred to the Group and are no longer
consolidated from the date that the control ceases.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with Communiqué Serial II, No:14.1,
“Principles of Financial Reporting in Capital Markets” (“the Communiqué”) published in the Official Gazette numbered
28676 on June 13, 2013. According to Article 5 of the Communiqué, consolidated financial statements are prepared in
accordance with the Turkish Accounting Standards issued by Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards
Authority (“POAASA”). TAS contains Turkish Accounting Standards, Turkish Financial Reporting Standards (“TFRS”) and
its addendum and interpretations (“IFRIC”).

The shares of the non-controlling shareholders in subsidiary’s net assets and operating results are presented as noncontrolling shares and non-controlling income/loss, in consolidated balance sheet and income statement, respectively.
Capital featured funds paid by controlling shareholders is presented in non-controlling interest. Consolidated equity of
participations represents to a significant shares of non-controlling in Karsan Pazarlama.
2.1.3

The financial statements of the consolidated financial statements of the Group are prepared as per the CMB announcement
of June 7, 2013 relating to financial statements presentations. Comparative figures are reclassified, where necessary, to
conform to changes in the presentation of the current year’s consolidated financial statements.
In accordance with the CMB resolution issued on March 17, 2005, listed companies operating in Turkey are not subject
to inflation accounting effective from January 1, 2005. Therefore, the consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared accordingly.
The Company (and its subsidiaries and Joint Ventures registered in Turkey) maintains its accounting records and prepares
its statutory financial statements in accordance with the Turkish Commercial Code (the “TCC”), tax legislation and the
uniform chart of accounts issued by the Ministry of Finance. Subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates operating in
foreign countries have prepared their statutory financial statements in accordance with the laws and regulations of the
country in which they operate. The interim consolidated financial statements, except for the financial asset and liabilities
presented with their fair values, are maintained under historical cost conversion in TL. These interim consolidated financial
statements are based on the statutory records, which are maintained under historical cost conversion, with the required
adjustments and reclassifications reflected for the purpose of fair presentation in accordance with the TAS.
2.1.2

Consolidation Principles

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the parent company, Karsan Otomotiv Sanayii ve Ticaret
A.Ş. and its subsidiaries on the basis set out in sections below. The financial statements of the companies included in
the scope of consolidation have been prepared as of the date of the consolidated financial statements and have been
prepared in accordance with TAS stated in Note 2 by applying uniform accounting policies and presentation. The results
of operations of Subsidiaries are included or excluded from their effective dates of acquisition or disposal respectively.
a) Subsidiaries refer to the companies that the Group has the power to control the financial and operating policies for the
benefits of the Group, via either (a) owing the majority voting right by having more than 50% of the subsidiary’s shares
directly and/or indirectly or (b) not having the majority voting right 50%, however by controlling financial or operating
policies.

Consolidation Principles (Continued)

Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.
2.1.4

Comparative Information and Restatement of Prior Period’s Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements of the Group include comparative financial information to enable determination
of the trends in the financial position and performance. The Group has prepared the consolidated balance sheet as
of December 31, 2014 comparatively with the balance sheet at December 31 , 2013, and consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of cash flow and consolidated statement of change in equity for the
period between January 1 - December 31, 2014 compared to the period between January 1 - December 31, 2013.
2.1.5

Going Concern

The Group prepared consolidated financial statements in accordance with the going concern principle.
2.1.6

Changes in International Financial Reporting Standards

a) Standards, amendments and TASC/IFRICs effective for annual periods beginning on after January 1, 2014:
- Amendment to IAS 32,‘Financial instruments: Presentation’, on offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities,
effective from annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014. This amendment updates the application guidance
in IAS 32, ‘Financial instruments: Presentation’, to clarify some of the requirements for offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities on the balance sheet.
- Amendments to IAS 36, ‘Impairment of assets’, effective from annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014.
These amendments address the disclosure of information about the recoverable amount of impaired assets if that amount
is based on fair value less costs of disposal.

The balance sheets and statements of income of the subsidiaries are consolidated on line-by-line basis and the carrying
value of the investment held by the Group and its subsidiary is eliminated against the related equity. Intercompany
transactions and balances between the Group and its subsidiary are eliminated during the consolidation. The cost of,
and the dividends arising from, shares held by the Group in its subsidiary are eliminated from equity and income for the
period, respectively.
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPLIED (Continued)

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPLIED (Continued)

2.1.6

2.1.6

Changes in International Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

-		 Amendment to IAS 39 ‘Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement’, on novation of derivatives and hedge
accounting, effective from annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014. These narrow-scope amendments allow
hedge accounting to continue in a situation where a derivative, which has been designated as a hedging instrument, is
novated to effect clearing with a central counterparty as a result of laws or regulation, if specific conditions are met.
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Changes in International Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

- IFRS 14 ‘Regulatory deferral accounts’, effective from annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016. IFRS 14,
‘Regulatory deferral accounts’ permits first-time adopters to continue to recognise amounts related to rate regulation in
accordance with their previous GAAP requirements when they adopt IFRS. However, to enhance comparability with entities
that already apply IFRS and do not recognise such amounts, the standard requires that the effect of rate regulation must
be presented separately from other items.

-		IFRIC 21, ‘Levies’, effective from annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014. This interpretation is on IAS
37, ‘Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets’. IAS 37 sets out criteria for the recognition of a liability, one
of which is the requirement for the entity to have a present obligation as a result of a past event (known as an obligating
event). The interpretation clarifies that the obligating event that gives rise to a liability to pay a levy is the activity described
in the relevant legislation that triggers the payment of the levy.

- Amendment to IFRS 11, ‘Joint arrangements’ on acquisition of an interest in a joint operation, effective from annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016. This amendment adds new guidance on how to account for the acquisition of
an interest in a joint operation that constitutes a business. The amendments specify the appropriate accounting treatment
for such acquisitions.

- Amendments to IFRS 10, ‘Consolidated financial statements’, IFRS 12 and IAS 27 for investment entities, effective
from annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014. These amendments mean that many funds and similar entities
will be exempt from consolidating most of their subsidiaries. Instead, they will measure them at fair value through profit
or loss. The amendments give an exception to entities that meet an ‘investment entity’ definition and which display
particular characteristics. Changes have also been made IFRS 12 to introduce disclosures that an investment entity needs
to make.

- Amendment to IAS 16, ‘Property, plant and equipment’ and IAS 38, ‘Intangible assets’, on depreciation and
amortisation, effective from annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016. In this amendment it has clarified that
the use of revenue based methods to calculate the depreciation of an asset is not appropriate because revenue generated
by an activity that includes the use of an asset generally reflects factors other than the consumption of the economic
benefits embodied in the asset. It is also clarified that revenue is generally presumed to be an inappropriate basis for
measuring the consumption of the economic benefits embodied in an intangible asset.

b) New TFRS/IFRS standards, amendments and TFRIC/IFRICs effective after January 1, 2015

- Amendments to IAS 27, ‘Separate financial statements’ on the equity method, effective from annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2016. These amendments allow entities to use the equity method to account for investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in their separate financial statements.

-

Annual improvements 2012; is effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014. These amendments
include changes from the 2010-12 cycle of the annual improvements project that affect 6 standards:

-

TFRS 2, ‘Share-based payment’
TFRS 3, ‘Business Combinations’
TFRS 8, ‘Operating segments’
TFRS 13, ‘Fair value measurement’
TAS 16, ‘Property, plant and equipment’ and TAS 38 ‘Intangible assets’
TFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’, TAS 37, ‘Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets’
TAS 39, ‘Financial instruments - Recognition and measurement’

-

Annual improvements 2013; is effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014. The amendments include
changes from the 2011-12-13 cycle of the annual improvements project that affect 4 standards:

-

TFRS 1, ‘First time adoption’
TFRS 3, ‘Business combinations’
TFRS 13, ‘Fair value measurement’
TAS 40, ‘Investment property’

- Amendments to IFRS 10, ‘Consolidated financial statements’ and IAS 28, ‘Investments in associates and joint ventures’,
effective from annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016. These amendments address an inconsistency between
the requirements in IFRS 10 and those in IAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and
its associate or joint venture. The main consequence of the amendments is that a full gain or loss is recognised when a
transaction involves a business (whether it is housed in a subsidiary or not). A partial gain or loss is recognised when a
transaction involves assets that do not constitute a business, even if these assets are housed in a subsidiary.
- IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’, effective from annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2017. IFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ is a converged standard from the IASB and FASB on revenue
recognition. The standard will improve the financial reporting of revenue and improve comparability of the top line in
financial statements globally.
- IFRS 9 ‘Financial instruments’, effective from annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018. This standard
replaces the guidance in IAS 39. It includes requirements on the classification and measurement of financial assets and
liabilities; it also includes an expected credit losses model that replaces the current incurred loss impairment model.
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPLIED (Continued)

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPLIED (Continued)

2.1.6

2.2		 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Changes in International Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

- Amendments to IAS 16 ‘Property, plant and equipment’, and IAS 41, ‘Agriculture’, regarding bearer plants, effective
from annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016. These amendments change the financial reporting for bearer
plants, such as grape vines, rubber trees and oil palms. It has been decided that bearer plants should be accounted for in
the same way as property, plant and equipment because their operation is similar to that of manufacturing. Consequently,
the amendments include them within the scope of IAS 16, instead of IAS 41. The produce growing on bearer plants will
remain within the scope of IAS 41.

Revenue equals to the amount of cash and cash equivalents received in cases where cash and cash equivalents are
received for sales. However, Group makes high portion of its sales on-term and fair value of the sales amount is determined
by net present value of receivables. In order to determine the net present value of the receivables, the interest rate, which
discounts nominal value of the sales amount to cash sales price of the related goods or services, is used. The difference
between the nominal value of the sales amount and its fair value is reflected to the related periods as interest income.
Interest revenue

- Amendment to IAS 19 regarding defined benefit plans, effective from annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2014. These narrow scope amendments apply to contributions from employees or third parties to defined benefit plans.
The objective of the amendments is to simplify the accounting for contributions that are independent of the number of
years of employee service, for example, employee contributions that are calculated according to a fixed percentage of
salary.

Interest revenue is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.
Cash and cash equivalents

- Annual improvements 2014, effective from annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016. These set of
amendments impacts 4 standards:
-

IFRS 5, ‘Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations’ regarding methods of disposal
IFRS 7, ‘Financial instruments: Disclosures’, (with consequential amendments to IFRS 1) regarding servicing contracts
IAS 19, ‘Employee benefits’ regarding discount rates
IAS 34, ‘Interim financial reporting’ regarding disclosure of information.

2.1.7

Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

Except for the changes that are indicated below, there are no accounting policies that are planned to change or that have
already changed. All the accounting policies are applied in line with the prior period.
2.2		 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Significant accounting policies considered during the preparation of consolidated financial statements are summarised
below:
Revenue
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates, and other similar allowances (Note 20).
Sale of goods
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions are satisfied.
(a) Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;
(b) The Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor
effective control over the goods sold;
(c) The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
(d) It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the entity;
(e) The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.
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Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, bank deposits and highly liquid assets, whose maturity at the time of
purchase is less than three months (Note 6).
Trade receivables and provision for doubtful receivables
Trade receivables that are created by the Group by way of providing goods or services directly to a debtor are carried at
amortised cost. Trade receivables, net of unearned financial income, are measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method, less the unearned financial income. Short duration receivables with no stated interest rate are
measured at the original invoice amount unless the effect of imputing interest is significant.
A credit risk provision for trade receivables is established if there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able
to collect all amounts due. Additionally, the Group impairs the receivables for which there are no guarantees or special
agreements and which are overdue for more than one year. The amount of the provision is the difference between the
carrying amount and the recoverable amount, being the present value of all cash flows, including amounts recoverable
from guarantees and collateral, discounted based on the original effective interest rate of the originated receivables at
inception.
If the impairment amount decreases due to an event occurring after the write-down, the release of the provision is credited
to other income in the current period (Note 9).
Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs, including an appropriate portion of fixed and
variable overhead expenses, are assigned to inventories held by the method most appropriate to the particular class of
inventory, with the majority being valued on a weighted average basis. The costs of conversion of inventories include
costs directly related to the units of production, such as direct labour. They also include a systematic allocation of fixed
and variable production overheads that are incurred in converting materials into finished goods.
Cost is calculated using the weighted average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less all
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make a sale (Notes 11).
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPLIED (Continued)

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPLIED (Continued)

2.2		 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.2		 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment, excluding land, machinery and equipment acquired before January 1, 2005 are carried at
indexed historical cost based on the effects of inflation as of December 31, 2004; acquisitions after 1 January 2005 are
carried at historical cost and are presented after depreciation and impairment loss. The Group has adopted “revaluation
model” for land and property, plant and equipment effective from March 2009.

Increase in value of aforementioned land, machinery and equipment as a result of revaluation is booked in revaluation
fund in equity. Increase in value as a result of revaluation is booked in income statement, in case of impairment was
represented in income statement previously. Decrease in book value arisen from the aforementioned revaluation process
is booked in income statement in case the revaluation exceeds the balance already included in revaluation fund related to
previous revaluation of the aforementioned asset.

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets, using the straight-line method. Land is not
depreciated as it is deemed to have an indefinite life. The depreciation periods for property, plant and equipment, which
approximate the useful lives of such assets, are as follows:
Buildings and land improvements		
Machinery and equipment			
Motor vehicles 			
Furniture and fixtures			

6-50
4-40
4
3-15

years
years
years
years

Expected useful lives, residual value and depreciation method have been considered every year to determine prospectively
possible effects of the changes arise from estimations.
Profit or loss realised from disposal of tangible assets or retirement of tangible assets has been included to the income
statement after determined as difference between sales revenue and book value of the asset.
Revaluation Method
Karsan’s land, machinery and equipment have been revalued by an independent expertise firm in September 2012, Kırpart
also have revalued its machinery and equipment in December 2013 and January 2014. In the revaluation performed:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

All characteristics like; land location, local formation style, substructure and access opportunities, front line to street
and avenue, area and location that may affect the value, have been taken into account, detailed market research has
been done locally and the economic conditions that have arisen previously have been considered as well.
Machinery and equipment’s physical condition, maintenance and performance that may affect the value have
been considered and detailed market research has been done, and the country’s economic conditions that have arisen
previously have been considered as well.
Revaluation reports have been prepared according to related CMB regulatory provisions.
Revaluation reports have been prepared by an independent expertise firm which gives service according to CMB
regulatory provisions.
Cost approach in valuation, precedent comparison, fair market value methodology and assumptions and up-to-date
market conditions have been taken into consideration.
Revaluation fund net of deferred tax are shown in equity.
There is no restriction in distribution of increase in revaluation fund to shareholders.

When a revaluated tangible asset is disposed, revaluation fund related with tangible asset is transferred to retained
earnings (Note 13).
Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired before January 1, 2005 are carried at indexed historical cost in accordance with IAS 29,
acquisitions in and after 2005 are carried at historical cost and are presented after amortisation and impairment loss.
Purchased intangible assets, are amortised by using the straight-line method. In accordance with IAS 38, research costs
are recognised as expense when incurred.
Development costs for future products and other internally generated intangible assets are capitalised at cost, provided
manufacture of the products is likely to bring the Group an economic benefit. If the criteria for recognition as assets are not
met, the expenses are recognised in the income statement in the year in which they are incurred. Cost includes all costs
directly attributable to the development process as well as appropriate portions of development-related overheads. The
development costs are amortised in ten years by using the straight-line method (Note 14).
Research and development costs
Costs for research are recognised as expense as incurred. Development costs other than meets following criteria are
recognised as expense when they are incurred:
-

The product or process is clearly defined and costs are separately identified and measured reliably,
The technical feasibility of the product is demonstrated,
The product or process will be sold or used in-house,
A potential market exists for the product or its usefulness in case of internal use is demonstrated, and
Adequate technical, financial and other resources required for completion of the project are available.

The costs related to the development projects are capitalized when the criteria above are met and amortized by straightline basis over the useful lives of related projects.

The revalued amount is calculated by deducting the total of accumulated depreciation and impairment that have occurred
in the periods after net realisable value determined in revaluation date. Revaluations are performed regularly, by ensuring
that there are not any significant differences between net realisable value as of balance sheet date and net book value.
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPLIED (Continued)

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPLIED (Continued)

2.2		 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.2		 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment of assets

Foreign currency transactions

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Income and expenses arising in foreign currencies have been translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies have been translated at the exchange
rates prevailing at the balance sheet dates. Exchange gains or losses arising from settlement and translation of foreign
currency items have been included in the consolidated comprehensive income statement.
Earnings/loss per share

Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Earnings per share stated on statements of income are calculated by dividing net profit by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows
have not been adjusted.

In Turkey, companies can raise their share capital by distributing “bonus shares” to shareholders from retained earnings.
In computing earnings per share, such “bonus share” distributions are assessed as issued shares. Accordingly, the
retrospective effect for those share distributions is taken into consideration in determining the weighted-average number
of shares outstanding used in this computation (Note 27).

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a re-valued amount, in which case the impairment loss
is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Subsequent events

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a re-valued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

The Group records adjusting events after the balance sheet date and disclose non-adjusting events after the balance
sheet date on the accompanying financial statements (Note 31).
Leasing transactions

Financial liabilities

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group substantially assumes all the risks and rewards of ownership
are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the lower of the fair value
of the leased property or the present value of the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is allocated between
the liability and finance charges to achieve a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. The corresponding lease
obligations, net of finance charges, are included as finance lease obligations. The interest element of the finance cost is
charged to the statement of comprehensive income over the lease period. The property, plant and equipment acquired
under finance leases are depreciated over the useful life of the asset.

Borrowings are recognised initially at the proceeds received, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost using the effective yield method. Any difference between proceeds, net of transaction costs, and
the redemption value is recognised in the income statement as financial expense over the period of the borrowings (Notes 8).

Risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor is an important part of the leases are classified as operating
leases. Operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) of the payments under the lease are charged to
the income statement on a straight line basis over the period.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing cost asset which have direct relation with building of assets that are required for long time to be available for
use and sale are accounted for as part of cost of specific asset until available for use. Other borrowing costs are expensed.

100

Events after the balance sheet date are those events, favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the balance sheet
date and the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPLIED (Continued)

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPLIED (Continued)

2.2		 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.2		 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Business combinations and goodwill

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount can
be made.

A business combination is the bringing together of separate entities or businesses into one reporting entity. Business
combinations are accounted for through by applying the purchase method in accordance with IFRS 3.

Possible assets or obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group are not included in
consolidated financial statements and are treated as contingent assets or liabilities.
Contingent assets usually arise from unplanned or other unexpected events that give rise to the possibility of an inflow
of economic benefits to the entity. Contingent assets are not recognised in the consolidated financial statements since
this may result in the recognition of income that may never be realised. A contingent asset is disclosed where an inflow of
economic benefit is probable. Contingent assets are assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately
reflected in the consolidated financial statements. If it has become virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits
will arise, the asset and the related income are recognised in the consolidated financial statements of the period in which
the change occurs (Note 10).

The cost of a business combination is allocated by recognising the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities at the date of acquisition. Goodwill has been recognised as an asset and has initially been measured as the
excess of the cost of the combination over the fair value of the acquiree’s assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. In
business combinations, the acquirer recognises identifiable assets (such as deferred income tax on carry forward losses),
intangible assets (such as trademarks) and/or contingent liabilities which are not included in the acquiree’s financial
statements at their fair values in the consolidated financial statements. The goodwill previously recognised in the financial
statements of the acquiree is not considered as an identifiable asset.
Goodwill recognised as a result of business combinations is not amortised and its carrying value is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired.
If the acquisition cost is lower than the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired,
the difference is accounted for as income in the related period.

Warranty expense provision
The Group provides free of charge maintenance services for the sold vehicles during different periods of time for different
models of vehicle after the date of sale. Warranty provision is periodically reviewed and reassessed in accordance with the
realized expenses in the previous periods (Note 10).
Related parties
For the purpose of these financial statements, shareholders, key management personnel and members of the Board,
their family members and companies, subsidiaries and partnerships managed or controlled by them are considered and
referred to as related parties (Note 5).
Segment reporting
A reportable segment is a business segment or a geographical segment identified based on the foregoing definitions
for which segment information is required to be disclosed. A business segment is a distinguishable component of an
enterprise that is engaged in providing an individual product or service or a group of related products or services and
that is subject to risks and returns that are different from those of other business segments. A geographical segment
is a distinguishable component of an enterprise that is engaged in providing products or services within a particular
economic environment and that is subject to risks and returns that are different from those of components operating in
other economic environments (Note 4).
A business segment or geographical segment should be identified as a reportable segment if a majority of its revenue is
earned from sales to external customers and if its revenue from sales to external customers and from transactions with
other segments is 10% or more of the total revenue, external and internal, of all segments; or its segment result, whether
profit or loss, is 10% or more of the combined result of all segments in profit or the combined result of all segments in loss,
whichever is the greater in absolute amount; or its assets are 10% or more of the total assets of all segments.
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Business combinations between entities under common control are not considered under framework of IFRS 3, are
accounted by applying the predecessor accounting method.
Taxes on income
Taxes include current period income taxes and deferred income taxes. Current year tax liability consists of tax liability on
period income calculated according to currently enacted tax rates and tax legislation in force as of balance sheet date and
includes adjustments related to previous years’ tax liabilities (Note 26).
Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on all temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying values in the consolidated financial statements. Currently enacted tax
rates are used to determine deferred income tax.
In substance, temporary differences arise from the differences in the periods of the recognition of income and expenses
in accordance with the accounting policies described in Note 2.1 and tax legislation.
Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, whereas deferred tax assets resulting
from deductible temporary differences are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities related to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority are offset
accordingly.
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPLIED (Continued)

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPLIED (Continued)

2.2		 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.3		 Significant Accounting Estimates and Assumptions

Employee benefits/provision for employment termination benefit

Preparation of financial statements requires use of estimates and assumptions that may affect the amount of assets
and liabilities recognised as of balance sheet date, contingent assets and liabilities disclosed and amount of revenue
and expenses reported. Although these estimates and assumptions rely on the Group management’s best knowledge
about the current events and transactions, actual outcome may vary from those estimates and assumptions. The critical
accounting estimates which may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities on operating results of the Group are as follows:

Under Turkish law and union agreements, lump sum payments are made to employees retiring or involuntarily leaving the
Group. Such payments are considered as being part of defined retirement benefit plan as per International Accounting
Standard No. 19 (revised) “Employee Benefits”
(“IAS 19”).
The liability is not funded, as there is no funding requirement. The provision has been calculated by estimating the
present value of the future probable obligation of the Group arising from the retirement of employees. TAS 19 requires
actuarial valuation methods to be developed to estimate the entity’s obligation under defined benefit plans. Accordingly,
the following actuarial assumptions were used in the calculation of the total liability. The retirement benefit obligation
recognised in the balance sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognised
actuarial gains and losses (Note 17).

(a) Useful lives of tangible and intangible assets

Statements of cash flows

(b) Provisions

In statement of cash flows, cash flows are classified according to operating, investment and finance activities.

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount can
be made.

Cash flows from operating activities reflect cash flows generated from the main operations of the Group.
Cash flows from investment activities express cash used in investment activities(direct investments and financial
investments) and cash flows generated from investment activities of the Group.
Cash flows relating to finance activities express sources of financial activities and payment schedules of the Group.
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits and other short-term highly liquid investments
which their maturities are three months or less from date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to a known amount
of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value (Note 6).
Government grants

(c) Carry forward tax losses
Deferred income tax liabilities or assets are recognized on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements which are prepared in accordance with TAS. The
Group recognised deferred income tax assets over carry forward tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised. The Group considered
its future profit projections and the maturity dates of the tax losses generated in the current period while recognising
deferred income tax assets. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which
such determination is made (Note 26).

All government incentives, including the non-monetary ones, which are recorded at their fair value are reported in the
financial statements only in the case that a reasonable guarantee indicating that all the conditions are fulfilled by the
entity is obtained. Demisable credits that are provided by the government are considered as government incentives in the
case that a reasonable guarantee indicating that demise conditions are fulfilled by the entity is obtained.

(d) Provision for doubtful receivables

Investment and research and development incentives are defined by the Group when incentive demands are approved by
authorities (Note 15).

(e) Constructions in progress

Share capital, dividends and share premium
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Pro rata capital increases to existing shareholders are accounted for at par
value as approved. Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the period in which they are declared. Share
premium represents the difference between nominal value of the publicly held shares and their sales prices (Note 19).
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Property, plant and equipment (except land and property, plant and equipment) are carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment, if any. Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their cost or revalued amounts to their residual values over their estimated useful lives. Useful lives
depend on best estimates of management, are reviewed in each financial period and the corrections are made, if necessary.

The Company accounts for provision for the receivables that overdue and the possibility of collection is decreased
according to the past experience of uncollectability.

As of December 31, 2014, the amount of TL 208,685,966 constructions in progress consist of tangible and intangible
asset investments related to ongoing projects. Subjected projects will be activated and recognized as an expense with
amortization method after the completion. According to the best estimations, the Group management anticipates that the
economic benefit from investments will exceed the book value (Note 13).
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NOTE 3 - BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

NOTE 5 - TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

None (December 31, 2013: None).

Balances with related parties

NOTE 4 - SEGMENT REPORTING

a) Trade receivables from related parties

The Group’s operating segments, nature and economic characteristics of products, nature of production processes,
classification of customers in terms of risk for their products and services and methods used to distribute their products
are similar. Furthermore, the Group structure has been organised to operate in one segment rather than separate business
segments. Consequently, the business activities of the Group are considered to be in one operating segment and the
operating results, resources to be allocated to the segment and assessment of performance are managed in this respect.
Net sales by geographical location of customers for the periods January 1 - December 31, 2014 and 2013 are presented for
information purposes, although they are not considered as separate operating segments.
January 1December 31, 2014

January 1December 31, 2013

Turkey
People’s Republic of China
United Kingdom
France
Slovakia
Romania
Austria
Italia
Bulgaria
Macedonia
Algeria
Tunisia
Cote D’ivoire
Ukraine
Other (*)

284,267,241
18,139,301
10,394,477
9,530,211
9,496,199
5,178,376
3,749,470
3,152,573
791,951
557,406
13,026,804

642,260,354
9,688,457
8,874,946
13,813,575
6,505,693
4,291,927
15,155,710
117,342,716
41,295,217
7,364,753
647,668
45,307,871

Total

358,284,009

912,548,887

(*) Consist of Spain, Hungary, Germany, Brazil, Belgium, Republic of South Africa, United Arab Emirates, Korea, Georgia, Bosnia-Herzegovina,
Switzerland and Australia. (2013; Switzerland, Spain, The Dominican Republic, Libya, Hungary, Albania, Cibuti, Senegal, Bahrain, Germany, Brazil,
Belgium, The Republic of South Africa).

December 31, 2014
Karsa Otomotiv Pazarlama Ticaret A.Ş.
Karland Otomotiv A.Ş.
Heksagon Mühendislik A.Ş.
Legal Danışmanlık Ltd. Şti.

9,309,718
1,664,958
284
10,974,960

8,378,342
513,024
28,709
8,920,075

b) Trade payables to related parties
December 31, 2014
Heksagon Mühendislik A.Ş.
Kıraça Holding A.Ş.
Sirena Marine Denizcilik ve Ticaret A.Ş.
Kök Ziraat Turizm San. ve Tic. A.Ş.
Kırsan Turizm ve Otomotiv San.ve Tic. A.Ş.
Legal Danışmanlık Ltd. Şti
Heksagon Danışmanlık ve Ticaret A.Ş.
Kar İnşaat Taahhüt San. ve Tic. A.Ş.
Mercan Sigorta Aracılık Hizmetleri A.Ş.
Silco S.A.

Transactions with related parties
a)

5,003,376
2,713,514
448,292
80,244
60,840
52,838
3,336
1,347
9
8,363,796

January 1 December 31, 2014

Karsa Otomotiv Pazarlama Ticaret A.Ş.
Karland Otomotiv A.Ş.
Heksagon Mühendislik A.Ş.
Sirena Marine Denizcilik ve Ticaret A.Ş.

b)

December 31, 2013
217,438
2,603,702
1,641,515
45,440
101,403
519
49,730
47,559
80,541,556
85,248,862

January 1 December 31, 2013

Sales
10,038,291
3,431,272
675,804
25,557

4,938,415
3,803,369
357,031
144,056

14,170,924

9,242.871

January 1 December 31, 2014

January 1 December 31, 2013

Domestic purchases

Heksagon Mühendislik A.Ş.
Kıraça Holding A.Ş.
Sirena Marine Denizcilik ve Ticaret A.Ş.
Kırsan Turizm ve Otomotiv San. ve Tic. A.Ş.
Karsa Otomotiv Pazarlama Ticaret A.Ş.
Mercan Sigorta Aracılık Hizmetleri A.Ş.
Heksagon Danışmanlık ve Ticaret A.Ş.
Legal Danışmanlık Ltd. Şti.
Kök Ziraat Turizm San. ve Tic. A.Ş.
Karland Otomotiv A.Ş.
Kar İnşaat Taahhüt San. ve Tic. A.Ş.
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December 31, 2013

36,401,082
8,242,028
4,422,534
1,257,695
878,388
747,315
550,879
546,003
333,478
147,760
5,035

32,169,143
10,719,350
13,450,600
838,219
974,866
1,085,814
546,449
629,236
313,319
1,508
8,949

53,532,197

60,737,453
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NOTE 6 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

NOTE 5 - TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

The Group purchases equipment for its factory located in Industrial Zone from Sirena Marine. Also parts used in the
manufacturing of BredaMenarinibus vehicles are purchased.
Group pays monthly rent to Kök Ziraat A.Ş. for Istanbul office. Such expenses include other expenses related to security,
natural gas, repair and maintenance, cleaning and office building and are invoiced monthly by Kök Ziraat A.Ş.
Purchases is made from related party, Silco S.A., in Geneva in 2013, are used in the production of Bredamenarinibus
branded bus, in content of tender of Renault Truck brand trucks and IETT and the Group has not performed any purchase
from Silco S.A. in 2014.

December 31, 2013

December 31, 2014

The Group receives information systems, human resources, financing and other consulting services from Kıraça Holding.
Cash
Bank
- demand deposits
- time deposits with maturities less than three months
Cheques given and payment orders

3,046

9,604

4,165,957
13,614,727
(4,731)

12,622,345
26,825,000
(16,456)

Total

17,778,999

39,440,493

Details of time deposits are as follows:

TL

December 31, 2014
Interest rate (%)

TL

December 31, 2013
Interest rate (%)

The Group pays office usage fee to Heksagon Danışmanlık A.Ş. on monthly basis.

TL

13,614,727

10

26,825,000

5

The Group receives engineering and design services for vehicles produced or to be produced by Heksagon Engineering.

Total

13,614,727

10

26,825,000

5

Imports

January 1 January 1 December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Silco S.A.

-

162,800,385

Total

-

162,800,385

Late charges and interest expenses
Shareholders

Details of cash and cash equivalents subject to cash flow tables as of December 31, 2014 and 2013:
December 31, 2014

December 31, 2013

Cash and cash equivalents
Interest accruals (-)

17,778,999
(14,727)

39,440,493
-

Cash and cash equivalents on statement of cash flow

17,764,272

39,440,493

NOTE 7 - FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

Kıraça Holding A.Ş.
Silco S.A.

222,226
-

2,439,091
44,333

Total

222,226

2,483,424

Details of the available-for-sale financial assets as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 are as follows:
Share (%)

December 31, 2014

100
<1
100

263,520
2,114
265,634

Share (%) December 31, 2013

Not listed
Other companies managed by main shareholder
Heksagon Mühendislik A.Ş.
Sirena Marine Denizcilik ve Ticaret A.Ş.
Kar İnşaat Taahhüt San. ve Tic. A.Ş.

469,546
1,217
-

99,509
5,129

Total

470,763

104,638

Remuneration Provided to the Senior Management Personnel
Remunerations provided to senior management personnel are as follows:
January 1 December 31, 2014
Salaries and SSI employer premium
Unemployment employer premium
Attendance fee
Other
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4,165,240
745,000
307,500
9,117

Karsan Italy S.R.L. (*)
Bosen Enerji A.Ş.
Kırpart Trading Shangia (**)

<1
100

2,114
311,679
313,793

(*) With the decision of Board of Directors dated November 19, 2014, Karsan has established a company titled “Karsan Italy S.R.L” and headquartered
in Torino, Italy which has the capital by EUR 100,000 and is wholly owned by the Karsan on the purpose of increasing potential of its exportation. Since
the company has not started its operations yet and is not material on the Group’s financial position, it is not consolidated in the financial statements for
the year 2014.
(**) Included in the consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2014.

January 1 December 31, 2013
3,492,915
731,820
324,500
14,451

The Group determines senior management personnel as the members of board of directors, general manager and deputy
general managers.
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NOTE 8 - FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

NOTE 8 - FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (Continued)
December 31, 2014

December 31, 2013

93,348,922
9,804,838
8,489,891
5,010,215
-

57,241,616
4,265,126
10,547,958
10,000,000

116,653,866

82,054,700

Long-term financial loans
Long-term liabilities related to bonds issued (*)
Long-term finance lease liabilities

289,195,418
280,000,000
72,843,378

413,371,335
8,257,722

Total financial liabilities

642,038,796
758,692,662

421,629,057
503,683,757

December 31, 2014

December 31, 2013

TL Interest rate (%)

TL Interest rate (%)

Short-term portion of long term borrowings
Short-term finance lease liabilities
Short-term financial loans
Short-term liabilities related to bonds issued (*)
Factoring payables

a) Short-term financial liabilities

Short-term loans
TL loans
Euro loans
USD loans
Finance lease liabilities
Short-term liabilities related to bond issued (*)
TL factoring payables

57,221,410
44,591,972
25,431
9,804,838
5,010,215
116,653,866

9.14
4.95
4.94
12.76
-

37,211,221
30,578,353
4,265,126
10,000,000
82,054,700

10.71
5.5
11.25

b) Long-term financial liabilities

Long-term loans
Euro loans
TL loans
USD loans
Finance lease liabilities
Long-term liabilities related to bond issued (*)

December 31, 2014

December 31, 2013

TL Interest rate (%)

TL Interest rate (%)

141,941,112
135,659,806
11,594,500
72,843,378
280,000,000
642,038,796

12
5.05
4.94
12.76

164,353,210
238,346,625
10,671,500
8,257,722
421,629,057

5.14
11.94
5.28
-

Disclosures on the fair value of the Group’s financial liabilities have been provided in Note 28.
Redemption schedule of long-term liabilities:
December 31, 2014

December 31, 2013

175,796,795
71,805,810
28,771,450
5,128,545
5,128,545
2,564,273
289,195,418

279,851,936
61,022,890
48,954,325
23,542,184
413,371,335

2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021

As explained in Note 9, as of December 31, 2014, the receivables form IETT amounting to EUR 60,203,980 is assigned
for the long term loans amounting to TL 70,588,594 and EUR 26,331,198 borrowed from Ziraat and Vakıfbank. These
receivables will be used amortization of loans.

c) Finance lease liabilities
December 31, 2014
Short term
2014
Long term
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021

December 31, 2013

Minimum financial
leasing payment

Interest

Total
liabilities

Minimum financial
leasing payment

Interest

Total
liabilities

-

-

-

5,049,049

(783,923)

4,265,126

16,260,398
20,254,345
18,834,750
16,783,834
13,904,816
13,807,073
4,993,706
104,838,922

(6,455,560)
(5,410,195)
(4,075,751)
(3,015,560)
(2,025,661)
(1,051,703)
(156,276)
(22,190,706)

9,804,838
14,844,150
14,758,999
13,768,274
11,879,155
12,755,370
4,837,430
82,648,216

4,694,129
2,856,299
1,369,929
13,969,406

(439,607)
(188,327)
(34,701)
(1,446,558)

4,254,522
2,667,972
1,335,228
12,522,848

(*) It consists of the bonds issued to qualified investors except stock market in accordance with the approval of Capital Markets Board dated May 6,
2014 and numbered of 14/424 with the nominal value of TL 100,000,000 which has 728 days of maturity, quarterly coupon payments, variable interest
rate and principal payment at the maturity and the bonds issued in accordance with the approval of Capital Markets Board dated October 2, 2014 and
numbered of 29/966 with the nominal value of TL 180,000,000 which has 1,092 days of maturity, quarterly coupon payments, variable interest rate and
principal payment at the maturity.
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NOTE 9 - TRADE RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

NOTE 10 - SHORT AND LONG TERM PROVISIONS

a) Trade receivables (short term)

a) Other short-term provisions

Trade receivables
Doubtful receivables
Notes receivable

December 31, 2014

December 31, 2013

142,878,349
2,060,000
16,223,067

129,466,935
1,992,988
11,135,916

161,161,416

142,595,839

(2,060,000)
(783,851)

(1,992,988)
(5,719,496)

158,317,565

134,883,355

December 31, 2014

December 31, 2013

6,800,508
5,467,407
3,063,532
421,250

1,753,552
1,687,500
424,717

15,752,697

3,865,769

Provision for Konya Belediyesi bus maintenance and repair expenses (*)
Guarantee expense provisions
Sales discounts provisions
Other
Total

Doubtful receivable provision (-)
Unearned credit finance income (-)

(*) The Group accounted for a provision for maintenance for the bus which sold to Konya Belediyesi.

The movement of provision related to maintenance for the busses sold to Konya belediyesi is as below:

The movements of the provision for doubtful receivables during the period December 31, 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

January 1
Provision for doubtful receivables
December 31

2014

2013

(1,992,988)

(1,955,588)

(67,012)

(37,400)

(2,060,000)

(1,992,988)

Balance as of January 1
Additions (Note 21, 22)
Disposals due to the payments
Balance as of December 31

2014

2013

7,979,504
(1,178,996)

-

6,800,508

-

The movements of the guarantee expense provision during the periods are as follows:
The Group’s standard credit period of trade receivables is between 30 and 60 days (December 31, 2013: between 30
and 60 days). The effective annual interest rates applied to trade receivables denominated in TL, EUR and USD are
8.33%, 0.29% and 0.63% (December 31, 2013: annual 7.88%, 0.23% and 0.21%).
b) Trade receivables (Long term)

Trade receivables (*)
Unearned financial income (-)

December 31, 2014

December 31, 2013

119,017,511
(722,198)
118,295,313

172,965,380
(1,040,250)
171,925,130

(*) The Group has completed the procedures of the tenders of I.E.T.T İşletmeleri Genel Müdürlüğü regarding “200 natural gas fuelled buses
and purchase of 75 auto spare parts” dated May 24, 2012 and “250 diesel fuelled articulated buses and purchase of 73 auto spare parts” dated
June 21, 2012, and in the scope of agreement, with additional of 40 natural gas fuelled bus production in December 2012 and 50 diesel fuelled
articulated bus production in May 2013, the total number of bus production resulted with 540. In accordance with the agreements signed in
August 2012, the delivery of the busses has been completed during the year 2013. TL 119,017,511 of the total receivables from IETT amounting
to TL 171,141,536 has been classified as long term. As of December 31, 2014, the receivables form IETT amounting to EUR 60,203,980 is assigned
for the long term loans amounting to TL 70,588,594 and EUR 26,331,198 borrowed from Ziraat and Vakıfbank. These receivables will be used
amortization of loans.

c) Trade payables
Trade Payables
Unearned credit finance expense (-)

December 31, 2014

December 31, 2013

59,870,613
(225,298)
59,645,315

41,822,932
(130,376)
41,692,556

Balance as of January 1
Additions
Disposals due to the payments
Balance as of December 31

2014

2013

1,753,552
9,593,070
(5,879,215)

6,467,721
1,591,662
(6,305,831)

5,467,407

1,753,552

The movements of the sales discounts provisions during periods are as follows:

Balance as of January 1
Additions
Disposals due to the payments
Balance as of December 31

2014

2013

1,687,500
17,411,429
(16,035,397)

5,217,728
5,105,785
(8,636,013)

3,063,532

1,687,500

b) Other long-term provisions
December 31, 2014

December 31, 2013

Provision for IETT bus maintenance and repair expenses

35,435,359

44,633,768

Toplam

35,435,359

44,633,768

The Group’s average payment period for its trade payables is 90 days (December 31, 2013: 90 days). The effective
annual interest rates applied to trade payables denominated in TL, EUR and USD are 8.33%, 0.29% and 0.63%
(December 31, 2013: 7.83%, 0.25% and 0.23%).
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NOTE 10 - SHORT AND LONG TERM PROVISIONS (Continued)

NOTE 12 - PREPAID EXPENSES AND DEFERRED INCOME (Continued)

The movements of the sales discounts provisions during periods are as follows:

c) Short term deferred income

Balance as of January 1
Additions (Note 21, 22)
Disposals due to the payments
Balance as of December 31

2014

2013

44,633,768
7,884,735
(17,083,144)

47,576,639
(2,942,871)

35,435,359

44,633,768

NOTE 11 - INVENTORIES

Raw materials
Semi-finished goods
Finished goods
Trade goods
Goods in transit
Provision for impairment of inventories (-)

December 31, 2014

December 31, 2013

37,335,761
16,239,343
20,160,214
16,858,353
642,247
91,235,918
(1,046,524)
90,189,394

32,919,595
34,774,701
11,508,018
16,364,750
889,508
96,456,572
(337,698)
96,118,874

For the period from January 1 to December 31, 2014, a portion amounting to TL 210,361,634 of the cost of goods sold
is related to raw material and supplies usage (January 1 - December 31, 2013:
TL 618,395,707) (Notes 20).

January 1
Sales in the current period
Provision for impairment of inventories for the period (-)
December 31

2014

2013

(337,698)
337,698
(1,046,524)
(1,046,524)

(2,838,345)
2,500,647
(337,698)

31 Aralık 2014

31 Aralık 2013

921,283
286,137

632,093
16,330

1,207,420

648,423

Accrued income

331,381

166,213

Total

331,381

166,213

Advances received from customers
Accrued income
Total

d) Long term deferred income

NOTE 13 - PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
The movement of property, plant and equipment and related accumulated depreciation for the period ended December 31, 2014
is as follows:

January 1, 2014 balance

December 31, 2014

December 31, 2013

5,791,851
4,598,196

14,091,143
3,724,269

10,390,047

17,815,412

Advances given for purchase orders
Prepaid expenses

13,992,869
1,601,778

5,112,164
114,989

Total

15,594,647

5,227,153

Advances given for purchase orders
Prepaid expenses
Total

Buildings

Machinery
and
equipment

Vehicles

Furniture
and fixtures

Other
tangible
fixed assets

Investments
in progress

Total

41,740,512

13,124,596

97,069,420

206,733,496

3,434,046

27,166,603

4,600,532

92,300,443 486,169,648

2,861,932

1.800,098

551,075

179,954,481 198,734,436
- (35,050,436)

Additions

-

328.836

1,140,192

12,097,822

Disposals

-

(144,767)

-

(30,601,825)

(456,038)

(3,847,806)

-

-

-

(1,874,585)

-

-

-

8,901,803

(350,259)

191,682

(3,007,954)

(63,568,958) (57,154,066)

5,489,681

25,310,577

2,143,653

208,685,966 590,824,997
- 190,390,864

Revaluation fund
Transfers

-

-

(1,874,585)

-

679,620

-

41,740,512

13,988,285

98,209,612

195,256,711

-

5,260,807

39,520,350

122,597,703

1,370,663

18,054,432

3,586,909

549,509

3,191,075

12,185,459

1,094,476

2,900,495

180,756

-

20,101,770

(2,250,778)

-

-

-

-

(2,250,778)

-

(245,642)

Accumulated depreciation
January 1, 2014 balance

-

Revaluation fund

-

-

-

Transfers

-

6,717

Disposals

a) Short term prepaid expenses

Land
improvements

Cost

Charge for the period

NOTE 12 - PREPAID EXPENSES AND DEFERRED INCOME

Land

-

Net book value as of December 31, 2014

41,740,512

-

2,517,928

(143,538)

(342,797)

(2,283,952)

(25,521) (2,950,000)

(19,851,025)

(321,084)

(3,116,170)

-

5,791,512

39,761,425

115,199,287

2,000,517

17,495,960

1,483,713

181,732,414

8,196,773

58,448,187

80,057,424

3,489,164

7,814,617

659,940

208,685,966 409,092,583

- (26,263,800)

b) Long term prepaid expenses
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NOTE 13 - PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

NOTE 14 - INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The movement of property, plant and equipment and related accumulated depreciation for the period ended December 31, 2013
is as follows:

The movement of intangible assets for the period ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

Land

Land
improvements

Buildings

Machinery
and
equipment

Vehicles

Furniture
and fixtures

Other
tangible
fixed assets

Investments
in progress

Total

Cost
January 1, 2013 balance

Computer
software

Capitalised
development
costs

Total

106,451,225

Cost Value
103,569,775 577,173,856

Opening balance at January 1, 2014

46,000,152

12,522,546

98,488,396

286,240,543

1,769,271

23,972,367

4,610,806

25,215,029

81,236,196

Disposals

-

368,924

325,444

5,836,104

1,675,389

2,290,252

336,450

62,549,290

73,381,853

Additions

3,419,672

8,552,196

11,971,868

Revaluation fund

-

(564,724)

(10,614)

(399,974)

(346,724)

(607,188)

(1,929,224)

Transfers

3,349,651

54,069,421

57,419,072

(8,499,156)

-

-

-

- (12,758,796)

-

-

-

-

-

31,984,352

143,857,813

175,842,165

(79,939,351)

-

-

-

- (79,939,351)

Impairment

(4,259,640)

Transfers to assets held for sale (*)
Transfers

-

(1,770,510)

-

(1,770,510)

-

233,126

26,090

3,660,080

-

1,303,958

-

(73,211,434) (67,988,180)

41,740,512

13,124,596

97,069,420

206,733,496

3,434,046

27,166,603

4,600,532

92,300,443 486,169,648

Accumulated amortisation
Opening balance at January 1, 2014

8,352,203

5,458,674

13,810,877

Charge for the period

3,537,587

10,087,576

13,625,163

(19,364)

-

(19,364)

11,870,426

15,546,250

27,416,676

20,113,926

128,311,563

148,425,489

Transfers

Accumulated depreciation
January 1, 2013 balance

- 245,608,140

Net book value as of December 31, 2014

4,746,355

35,675,559

185,021,546

923,395

15,754,067

3,487,218

-

514,452

3,844,791

12,850,963

458,719

2,699,985

446,415

-

20,815,325

Revaluation Fund

-

-

-

(9,108,739)

-

-

-

-

(9,108,739)

Transfers to assets held for sale (*)

-

-

-

(65,701,050)

-

-

-

- (65,701,050)

Opening balance at January 1, 2014

10,391,312

35,040,830

45,432,142

Disposals

-

-

-

(465,017)

(11,451)

(399,620)

(346,724)

-

(1,222,812)

Additions

11,151,988

6,797,477

17,949,465

-

5,260,807

39,520,350

122,597,703

1,370,663

18,054,432

3,586,909

- 190,390,864

Transfers

3,783,365

64,204,815

67,988,180

41,740,512

7,863,789

57,549,070

84,135,793

2,063,383

9,112,171

1,013,623

92,300,443 295,778,784

Disposals

(111,636)

-

(111,636)

-

(24,806,926)

(24,806,926)

25,215,029

81,236,196

106,451,225

Opening balance at January 1, 2013

6,508,552

11,397,240

17,905,792

Charge for the period

1,969,863

3,804,830

5,774,693

Disposals

(126,212)

-

(126,212)

-

(9,743,396)

(9,743,396)

8,352,203

5,458,674

13,810,877

16,862,826

75,777,522

92,640,348

Charge for the period

Net book value as of December 31, 2013

Cost Value

Transfers to fixed assets held for sale

(*) Details are explained in Note 30.

As of December 31, 2014 the Group has given EUR 59,260,000, TL 149,000,000 and USD 4,500,000 of mortgage on
the property, plant and equipment in line with the requirements of the long-term loans used (December 31, 2013: EUR
39,260,000, 77,000,000 TL and 4,500,000 USD) (Note 16).
TL 29,514,746 (2013: TL 22,274,046) of the current period depreciation and amortisation expenses have been reflected
to costs of goods sold (Note 20), TL 660,439 (2013: TL 408,781) to marketing, sales and distribution expenses (Note 21),
TL 1. 2,018,255 (2013: TL 2,034,918) to general administrative expenses (Note 21), TL 1,370,197 to cost of investments
in progress and TL 112,313 (2013: TL 69,816) to inventory costs.

Accumulated amortisation

Transfers to fixed assets held for sale
Net book value as of December 31, 2013

The movements of revaluation fund of land, buildings, machinery and equipment in 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

January 1
Deferred income tax calculated on decrease in revaluation fund
Deferred tax effect of disposals of tangible assets on revaluation found
Fund increase/(decrease) arising from revaluation of machinery, plant and equipment
Deferred income tax calculated on increase in revaluation fund due to business combination
Minority interests regarding revaluation fund
Fund decrease arising from revaluation of land
December 31

116

2014

2013

85,478,836
(6,560,679)
1,312,136
376,193
(75,239)
(50,385)
80,480,862

90,678,476
(1,528,219)
(135,920)
(3,535,501)
85,478,836
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NOTE 15 - GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND INCENTIVES

NOTE 16 - CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued)
December 31, 2014

Investment Incentive Certificates
As of December 31, 2014, The Group’s incentive certificate no. A-107742 dated November 27, 2012 obtained for product
diversification/modernization investment was revised on January 28, 2014 with no. 06888, on July 3, 2014 with no. 45008,
and finally on February 18, 2015 with no. 22555. The amount of the revised investment incentive certificate is TL 63,617,253
(Local) and USD 37,493,947 (Imports).
Below are the details of the advantages enabled by the investment incentive certificates:
-

Customs tax exemption
VAT exemption
Reduce of rate of corporate income tax related to regional investment incentive

Original
currency TL

Original
currency USD

Original
currency EUR

A. GPMs given on behalf of the Company’s legal personality (*)
B. GPMs given in favour of subsidiaries included in full consolidation
C. GPMs given by the Company for the liabilities of third parties in order
to run ordinary course of business
D. Other GPMs
i. GPMs given in favour of parent company
ii. GPMs given in favour of group companies not in the scope of B and C above
iii. GPMs given in favour of third-party companies not in the scope of C above

234,448,023
None
None

82,673,592
None
None

4,842,910
None
None

48,165,574
None
None

None
None
None
None

None
None
None
None

None
None
None
None

None
None
None
None

Total GPMs

234,448,023

82,673,592

4,842,910

48,165,574

None

None

None

None

Other GPMS

Kırpart, the subsidiary of the Company, makes investments for fixed assets with the intention of the capacity increase in
the existing product and for the new product during the continuing with its operations. The incentive certificate numbered
106988 and dated September 27, 2012 obtained for Modernisation investments has been revised with the letter numbered
106988 and dated July 23, 2012. The amount of the revised incentive certificate is TL 20,990,065.

(*) As of December 31, 2013, consists of guarantee letters given to customs administrations, tax administration, other public corporations and EUR
39,260,000, USD 4,500,000 and TL 77,000,000 of mortgage given on the property, plant and equipment in line with the requirements of the long-term
loan used.

Guarantees received:
Guarantees received by the Group are as follows:

NOTE 16 - CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
a) Guarantees, Pledges and Mortgages given by the Group (“GPMs”):
As of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 guarantees, pledges and mortgages (“GPMs”) given by Group are as follows.

December 31, 2014
Total TL
equivalent

Original
currency TL

Original
currency USD

Original
currency EUR

A. GPMs given on behalf of the Company’s legal personality (*)
B. GPMs given in favour of subsidiaries included in full consolidation
C. GPMs given by the Company for the liabilities of third parties in order
to run ordinary course of business
D. Other GPMs
i. GPMs given in favour of parent company
ii. GPMs given in favour of group companies not in the scope of B and C above
iii. GPMs given in favour of third-party companies not in the scope of C above

390,278,897
None
None

179,180,592
None
None

4,500,000
None
None

71,139,524
None
None

None
None
None
None

None
None
None
None

None
None
None
None

None
None
None
None

Total GPMs

390,278,897

179,180,592

4,500,000

71,139,524

None

None

None

None

Other GPMS

Total TL
equivalent

December 31, 2014

December 31, 2013

Direct debiting system
Letters and cheques of guarantees received

15,190,818
5,207,352

16,926,960
23,003,516

Total

20,398,170

39,930,476

b) Explanation for ongoing lawsuits related with the Group as of December 31, 2014:
There are ongoing lawsuits related to Group’s receivables as of December 31, 2014. After considering collaterals and trade
payables related with those trade receivables, a provision is set aside for the remaining amount of TL 2,060,000 (December
31, 2013: TL 1,992,989). (Note 9)
c) Other:
The Group has letters of credit amounting to TL 253,863 as of December 31, 2014 (December 31, 2013: TL 73,902,506) which
have been opened for the purchases of raw materials and supplies which have not yet been imported.

Ratio of other GPMs given by Group to Group’s equity is 0% as of December 31, 2014 (December 31, 2013: 0%).
(*) As of December 31, 2014 balance is arise out of the letters of guarantee at the amount of 30,180,592 TL and 11,789,524 Euro, which given to customs
offices, tax offices and other public institutions, and the credit amount of 90,000 USD, which was spared to buy raw materials and kits, but hadn’t been
actually imported, and amount of 149,000,000 TL, 4,500,000 Dollar ve 59,260,000 Euro mortgages, which were given with the long-term loans.
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NOTE 17 - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

NOTE 18 - OTHER ASSET AND LIABILITIES

a) Employee benefit payables

a) Other Current Assets
December 31, 2014

December 31, 2013

Due to personnel
With holdings payable

3,857,298
1,187,962

1,976,121
2,529,657

Total

5,045,260

4,505,778

b) Employee benefit provisions- Short term
Unused vacation liability

1,996,996
1,996,996

1,683,874
1,683,874

December 31, 2014

December 31, 2013

VAT carried forward
Income accruals (*)
Other VAT
Other

16,341,574
5,236,234
463,404

107,331,125
4,777,630
5,854,273
169,388

Total

22,041,212

118,132,416

(*) Comprise income accruals related to the Peugeot Citroen (PSA) and Renault Trucks projects.

b) Other fixed assets
Under Turkish Labour Law, the Group is required to pay employment termination benefits to each employee who has
Under the Turkish Labour Law, the Group is required to pay employment termination benefits to each employee who has
qualified for such payment. Also, employees are entitled to retirement pay provisions subsequent to the completion of
their retirement period by gaining a right to receive retirement payments in accordance with the amended Article of 60 the
applicable Social Insurance Law No. 506 and the related Decrees Nos. 2422 and 4447, issued on March 6, 1981 and August
25, 1999, respectively. The amount payable consists of one month’s salary, limited to a maximum of TL 3,438.22 for each
period of service at December 31, 2014 (December 31, 2013: TL 3,218.88). The liability is not funded, as there is no funding
requirement.

Probability of retirement (%)
Discount rate (%)

December 31, 2014

December 31, 2013

96
2.5

95
3.5

Maximum amount of payable is revised in every 6 months. For the calculation of The Group’s provisions for employee
termination benefits is calculated with maximum amount of 3,541.37 TL which is effective from January 1, 2015. The
movement of provisions for employee termination benefits assets for the period ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 are as
follows:
c) Provisions for employee termination benefits - Long Term
Provisions for employee termination benefits

December 31, 2014

December 31, 2013

13,172,875
13,172,875

10,197,866
10,197,866

The movement of provisions for employee termination benefits assets for the period ended December 31, 2014 and 2013
are as follows:
2014
2013
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January 1

10,197,866

9,928,843

Current service cost
Interest cost
Actuarial losses (Note 19)
Paid in current year

1,163,728
814,246
1,999,041
(1,002,006)

1,288,671
912,868
2,154,386
(4,086,902)

Total provisions as of December 31

13,172,875

10,197,866

December 31, 2014

December 31, 2013

VAT receivables - Long Term
Other

70,000,000
-

56

Total

70,000,000

56

c) Other short term liabilities
December 31, 2014

December 31, 2013

Other tax and fund liabilities
Other

1,943,635
105,934

1,531,870
126,710

Total

2,049,569

1,658,580

NOTE 19 - CAPITAL, RESERVES AND OTHER EQUITY ITEMS
a) Paid-in Capital
The composition of the Group’s paid-in share capital as of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 is as follows:
December 31, 2014
Kıraça Holding A.Ş.
Publicly traded part
Other

Inflation adjustment to share capital

Share (%)
63.46
34.81
1.73
100.00

TL
291,905,176
160,143,853
7,950,971
460,000,000
22,585,778

December 31, 2013
Share (%)
63.46
34.81
1.73
100.00

TL
291,905,176
160,143,853
7,950,971
460,000,000
22,585,778
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NOTE 19 - CAPITAL, RESERVES AND OTHER EQUITY ITEMS (Continued)

NOTE 19 - CAPITAL, RESERVES AND OTHER EQUITY ITEMS (Continued)

The Group’s share capital consists of 3,352,039,857 Class A shares and 42,647,960,143 Class B shares with par value Kr 1
each (2013: Kr 1 ) (2013: 3,352,039,857 Class A and 42,647,960,143 Class B).

c) Share premium
Share premium represents the difference between face value and selling price of the public shares.

In the Group’s Articles of Association, Article 8, privilege is given to group (A) shareholders. According to the privilege, five
members out of seven and six members out of nine of the Board of Directors will be elected among the proposed candidates
by group (A) shareholders.
Tier				
1+2+3+4+5+6+7+8

Group		
A		

Privilege on BOD election
Article No: 8

Capital Advance
Through the decision of the Board of Directors dated December 28, 2012, the Company has resolved to increase the paid-in
capital amounting to TL 260,000,000 up to TL 460,000,000 within the registered capital ceiling of TL 600,000,000 and to
perform the capital increase of TL 200,000,000 at the rate of nominal value of the stocks without limiting pre-emptive rights
of the shareholders. The payments amounting to TL 126,915,298 that Kıraça Holding made within the scope of this capital
increase have been recognised as capital advances under equity. Related to capital increase payment done in 2013 is at the
amount of TL 73,084,702 and published on Commercial Registry Gazette dated November 7, 2013. Found obtained from
capital increase amounted to TL 200,000,000, additional to that premiums at the amount of TL 107,711 arised out of capital
increase.

Share premium as December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 are as follows:
December 31, 2014

December 31, 2013

6,139,733

6,139,733

2014

2013

January 1
Actuarial losses (Note 17)
Actuarial losses - tax effect (Note 26)

(1,775,182)
(1,999,041)
399,808

(2,154,386)
430,877

Change in actuarial losses -net

(3,374,415)

(1,723,509)

38,305

(51,673)

(3,336,110)

(1,775,182)

January 1 December 31, 2014

January 1 December 31, 2013

304,356,690
72,267,881
5,407,977
(10,513,367)
(13,235,172)

630,601,100
270,155,515
21,984,623
(5,258,491)
(4,933,860)

358,284,009

912,548,887

January 1 December 31, 2014

January 1 December 31, 2013

(210,361,634)
(32,220,586)
(29,514,746)
(19,196,156)
(18,706,162)
(18,535,357)
(2,148,664)
(708,827)
7,658,839
(178,666)

(618,395,707)
(42,961,841)
(22,274,046)
(37,860,925)
(14,111,917)
(18,011,633)
2,039,595
-

(323,911,959)

(751,576,474)

Share premium

d) Other loss

Non-controlling shareholders
December 31

b) Restricted reserves

NOTE 20 - REVENUE AND COST OF SALES

The legal reserves consist of first and second reserves, appropriated in accordance with the TCC. The TCC stipulates that the
first legal reserve is appropriated out of statutory profits at the rate of 5% per annum, until the total reserve reaches 20%
of the Company’s paid-in share capital. The second legal reserve is appropriated at the rate of 10% per annum of all cash
distributions in excess of 5% of the paid-in share capital. Under the TCC, the legal reserves can only be used to offset losses
and are not available for any other usage unless they exceed 50% of paid-in share capital.

a) Net sales

The aforementioned amounts shall be classified in “Restricted Reserves” in accordance with CMB Financial Reporting
Standards. As of December 31, 2014, the Group has restricted reserves assorted from profit in the amount of TL 1,031,613
(December 31, 2013: TL 1,031,613).

Domestic sales
Foreign sales
Other income
Sales returns (-)
Sales discounts (-)

b) Cost of sales
Raw material
General production expenses
Amortization
Direct labour
Cost of goods sold
The change in the semi-finished goods
Cost of service sold
Stock impairment
The change in the finished goods
Other

TL 22,387,405 of cost of sales for the period January 1 -December 31, 2014 is related to idle capacity expenses (January 1
-December 31, 2013: TL 13,670,862).
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NOTE 21 - GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES, MARKETING EXPENSES, RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES
January 1 January 1 December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Marketing, sales and distribution expenses
General administrative expenses
Research and development expenses

(51,112,988)
(35,863,427)
(2,150,105)

(88,517,339)
(33,074,783)
(1,790,914)

Total

(89,126,520)

(123,383,036)

a) Marketing, sales and distribution expenses
January 1 January 1 December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Guarantee expenses
Konya Belediyesi bus repair and maintenance
İETT bus repair and maintenance
Personnel expenses
Sale licence expenses
Advertising expenses
Transportation and insurance expenses
Subcontract work expenses
Rent expenses
Sales research and development expenses
Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Dealer and authorised service meeting expenses
Sales commissions expenses
Other

(10,802,703)
(7,979,504)
(7,884,735)
(7,464,262)
(3,600,253)
(3,264,347)
(2,847,624)
(1,258,476)
(1,117,226)
(757,909)
(660,439)
(653,797)
(2,821,713)

(4,680,551)
(47,576,639)
(6,634,849)
(8,157,481)
(3,419,049)
(5,700,868)
(1,633,833)
(875,468)
(551,893)
(408,781)
(1,328,968)
(5,796,153)
(1,752,806)

Total

(51,112,988)

(88,517,339)

b) General administrative expenses
January 1 January 1 December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
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Personnel expenses
Subcontract work expenses
Audit and advisory expenses
Legal and consultancy expenses
Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Holding services expenses
Rent expenses
Subscription and dues expenses
Insurance expenses
Travel expenses
Energy expenses
Tax and penalty expenses
Development expense
Other

(13,882,917)
(4,373,769)
(3,706,452)
(2,290,671)
(2,018,255)
(2,779,695)
(1,129,322)
(916,039)
(693,082)
(679,889)
(470,247)
(505,761)
(2,417,328)

(12,874,676)
(4,880,202)
(938,583)
(3,088,951)
(2,034,918)
(2,502,958)
(1,065,829)
(480,667)
(552,227)
(184,487)
(466,947)
(419,812)
(1,258,265)
(2,326,261)

Total

(35,863,427)

(33,074,783)

NOTE 21 - GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES, MARKETING EXPENSES, RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES
(Continued)
c) Research and development expenses

January 1 January 1 December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Personnel expenses
Services and benefits rendered by 3rd parties
Material expenses
Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Other

(1,598,297)
(234,856)
(139,353)
(50,983)
(126,616)

(1,312,687)
(191,339)
(123,005)
(57,494)
(106,389)

Total

(2,150,105)

(1,790,914)

NOTE 22 - EXPENSES BY NATURE
January 1 January 1 December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Raw materials
Amortization
Production expense
Personnel expenses
Direct labour
Cost of goods sold
Changes in semi-finished good stocks
Guarantee expenses
Konya Belediyesi bus repair and maintenance
İETT bus repair and maintenance
Subcontract work expenses
Audit and advisory expenses
Sales licence expenses
Transportation and insurance expenses
Other

(210,361,634)
(32,244,423)
(32,220,586)
(22,945,476)
(19,196,156)
(18,706,162)
(18,535,357)
(10,802,703)
(7,979,504)
(7,884,735)
(5,632,245)
(3,706,452)
(3,600,253)
(3,540,706)
(15,682,087)

(618,395,707)
(24,775,239)
(42,961,841)
(20,822,212)
(37,860,925)
(14,111,917)
(18,011,633)
(4,680,551)
(47,576,639)
(6,514,035)
(938,583)
(8,157,481)
(6,253,095)
(23,899,652)

Total

(413,038,479)

(874,959,510)

NOTE 23 - OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Other operating income

January 1 January 1 December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Foreign exchange translation gain on trade receivables and payables
Interest income on trade receivables and payables
Social security institution premium discount
Other

68,690,188
8,432,681
1,814,052
2,563,223

103,030,649
19,197,055
2,160,365
1,237,711

Total

81,500,144

125,625,780

Foreign exchange translation loss on trade receivables and payables
Interest expense on trade receivables and payables
Other

(75,726,363)
(6,301,927)
(1,549,235)

(89,013,170)
(7,968,590)
(790,145)

Total

(83,577,525)

(97,771,905)

Other operating expense
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NOTE 26 - TAXATION ON INCOME (INCLUDING DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES) (Continued)

NOTE 24 - FINANCIAL INCOME AND EXPENSES
Financial expenses

January 1 January 1 December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Interest expense
Foreign exchange profits/(losses)
Factoring expense
Other

(47,268,219)
6,045,101
(1,321,727)
(3,589,220)

(43,700,299)
(16,557,152)
(5,151,907)
(2,005,563)

Total financial expenses - net

(46,134,065)

(67,414,921)

NOTE 25 - OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investing income
Time deposit interest income

Investing expenses
Losses from sales of fixed assets
Impairment of fixed assets

January 1 January 1 December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
3,343,134

1,771,567

3,343,134

1,771,567

January 1 January 1 December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
(11,192,458)
-

(31,554)
(1,770,702)

(11,192,458)

(1,802,256)

NOTE 26 - TAXATION ON INCOME (INCLUDING DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES)
For the periods ended on December 31, tax income is detailed as follows:
January 1 January 1 December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Current corporate tax expense
Deferred tax expense

(628,298)
11,424,920

(373,297)
6,785,565

10,796,622

6,412,268

Deferred tax:
The Group recognizes deferred tax assets and liabilities based upon temporary differences arising between its consolidated
financial statements prepared in compliance with CMB Financial Reporting Standards and its statutory tax consolidated
financial statements. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated in rate of 20% for the proper period under the method
of liability (December 31, 2013: 20%).
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Temporary differences subject to deferred tax and the effect of deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2014
and 2013 are summarised below using the above tax rate applied:

Total temporary differences

Deferred income tax /
		
assets/(liabilities)
December 31,
December 31,
2014
2013

December 31,
2014

December 31,
2013

Carry forward tax losses
Provision for sale expenses
Provision for employment termination benefits
Inventory impairment provision
Sales cut off
Provision for guarantee expenses
Provision for sales discounts
Unearned credit finance income, expense (net)
Provision for unused vacation
Inventory impairment provision
Deferred income
Other

278,410,238
42,348,735
12,852,272
58,180,025
5,655,150
5,467,408
3,093,606
2,573,853
2,059,571
188,671

170,534,244
44,619,437
10,197,866
10,309,295
1,753,552
1,687,500
6,530,846
1,683,874
1,113,990
34,348
575,809

39,049,149
8,469,747
2,570,454
2,061,859
1,131,030
1,093,482
618,721
514,771
411,915
37,733

24,929,890
8,923,887
2,039,573
2,061,859
350,710
337,500
1,306,169
336,775
222,798
6,870
115,163

Deferred income tax assets

410,829,529

249,040,761

55,958,861

40,631,194

(111,077,310)

105,992,173

(21,745,253)

(20,650,576)

(7,316,360)
(1,931,341)
(667,305)
(320,603)
(511,133)

4,707,529
178,550
-

(1,463,272)
(386,268)
(133,461)
(64,121)
(102,226)

(941,506)
(35,710)

121,824,052

110,878,252

(23,894,601)

(21,627,792)

32,064,260

19,003,402

Differences between inflation adjustment and
amortization of tangible and intangible assets
Income accruals
Stock adjustment effect
Financial income/expense not accrued (net)
Provision for employment termination benefits
Other
Deferred income tax liability
Deferred income tax assets - net

-

The Group has carry forward tax losses amounting to TL 278,410,238 (December 31, 2013: TL 170,534,244) as of December
31, 2014. The Group management has accounted for TL 39,049,149 (December 31, 2013: TL 24,929,890) of deferred tax asset
over the carry forward tax losses amounting to TL 195,245,744 (December 31, 2013: TL 124,649,448) in the accompanying
financial statements after accounting for a provision for the carry forward tax losses amounting to TL 83,164,494 (December
31, 2013: TL 45,884,796) which the Group will not be able to utilise according to the five year projections.
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NOTE 26 - TAXATION ON INCOME (INCLUDING DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES) (Continued)

NOTE 27 - LOSS PER SHARE

The expiration dates of unused accumulated losses are as follows:

A summary of the weighted average number of shares outstanding for the year ended in December 31, 2014 and 2013 and
the basic earnings per share calculation is as follows:

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Expires in 2015
Expires in 2016
Expires in 2017
Expires in 2019

19,567,636
58,642,708
117,035,400

46,439,104
19,567,636
58,642,708
-

195,245,744

124,649,448

2014

2013

January 1
Recognized in equity - revaluation fund
Recognized in equity - tax effect of actuarial loss (Note 19)
Current period deferred tax income

19,003,402
1,236,130
399,808
11,424,920

11,628,866
158,094
430,877
6,785,565

December 31

32,064,260

19,003,402

The reconciliation of the taxation on income in the consolidated statement of income for the periods ended December 31,
2014 and 2013 and the taxation on income calculated with the current tax rate over income from continuing operations
before tax is as follows:
December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Tax income of the current period

Corporate tax

(110,815,240)
22,163,048
(9,287,821)
2,935,862
(2,583,362)
(2,431,105)

(2,002,358)
400,472
2,750,784
(3,898,815)
7,159,827

10,796,622

6,412,268

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Corporate taxes payable
Prepaid taxes

(628,298)
478,139

(373,297)
331,324

Total taxation

(150,159)

(41,973)

Corporations are required to pay advance corporation tax quarterly at the rate of 20% on their corporate income and declare
by the 14th of the second month following the quarter. (December 31, 2013: 20%). Advance tax is payable by the 17th of
the second month following each calendar quarter end. Advance tax paid by corporations is credited against the annual
corporation tax liability. The balance of the advance tax paid may be refunded or used to set off against other liabilities to the
government.
Losses are allowed to be carried a maximum of five years to be deducted from the taxable profit of the following years. Tax
carry back is not allowed.
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46,000,000.000
(85,381,287)
(0,00186)

29,013,698.630
15,849,219
0,00055

NOTE 28 - CHARACTERISTICS AND LEVEL OF RISKS RESULTING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Financial risk management

Reconciliation of deferred tax asset as follows:

Loss before income taxes and minority interests
20% provision for corporate tax calculated by effective tax rate
Effects of carry forward tax losses over which deferred tax asset is not recognised
Income not subject to tax
Disallowable expenses
The effect of carry forward losses which no deferred tax assets recognised

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Weighted average number of outstanding shares
Net profit/(loss) for the period attributable to equity holders of the Company (TL)
Net profit/(loss) per share (TL)

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks; these risks are credit risk, market risk (the effects of changes in
debt and equity market prices, foreign currency exchange rates, fair value interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk)
and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Group.
Financial risk management is carried out by individual subsidiaries under policies, which are approved by their Board of
Directors within the limits of general principles set by the Company.
Capital risk management
The Group manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern while generating the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and the equity balance.
The management of the Group evaluates the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. As a part of
this evaluation, the management considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital and present
the evaluations subject to the decision of the Board of Directors to the Board of Directors. Based on the evaluations of the
management and the Board of Directors, the Group aims to balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
The Group controls its capital using total liabilities/total capital ratio. This ratio is the calculated as net debt divided by the
total capital amount. Net debt is calculated as total liability amount (comprises of financial liabilities, leasing and trade
payables as presented in the balance sheet) less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as equity plus the net
debt amount as presented in the balance sheet.
December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Total liabilities
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 6)
Net liability
Total equity
Total capital
Net debt/Total capital ratio

901,843,489
(17,778,999)
884,064,490
232,844,327
1,116,908,817
79%

503,683,757
(39,440,493)
464,243,264
333,465,280
797,708,544
58%

Credit risk management
Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group.
A significant part of the trade receivables are comprised of due from dealers. The Group monitors the credit risk arising from
the transactions with dealers via the control system. The Direct Debiting System (“DDS”) is applied for receivables related
to the domestic vehicle sales to the dealers. Accordingly, receivables within the predetermined limits agreed with the banks
are risk free and collected on due dates. DDS used in the collection of receivables of the dealers is an effective method to
reduce credit risk.
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NOTE 28 - CHARACTERISTICS AND LEVEL OF RISKS RESULTING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 28 - CHARACTERISTICS AND LEVEL OF RISKS RESULTING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Credit risk management (Continued)

Credit risk management (Continued)

Exposrue to credit risk as per financial instrument types
December 31, 2014

Receivables
Trade Receivables
Other Receivables
Third
Third
Related
Related
Party
Party
Party
Party

Exposure to credit risk as per financial instrument types:
Bank Derivatives
Deposits

Other

10,974,960
-

158,317,565
5,207,352

-

1,079,455
-

17,765,957
-

-

-

A. Net book value of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired 4,607,289

113,839,985

-

1,079,455

-

-

-

1-30 days overdue
1-3 months overdue
3-12 months overdue
1-5 years overdue

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Total overdue receivables

6,367,671
-

43,675,632
5,207,352

-

-

-

-

-

-

2,060,000
(2,060,000)
-

-

-

-

-

-

Maximum credit risk as of reporting date (*) (A+B+C+D+E)
- The part of maximum risk under guarantee with collateral etc.

B. Net book value of financial assets that are renegotiated, if not that will
be accepted as past due or impaired
C. Net book value of financial assets that are past due but not impaired
- The part under guarantee with collateral etc.
D. Net book value of the assets impaired
- Overdue (gross carrying amount)
- Impairment (-)
- The part of net value under guarantee with collateral etc.
- Not overdue (gross carrying amount)
- Impairment (-)
- The part of net value under guarantee with collateral etc.

December 31, 2013

9,404,255
17,326,184
7,735,219
15,577,644

397,567
4,313,548
2,838,047
19,447,092

50,043,303

26,996,254

5,207,352

3,664,747

The part under guarantee with collateral

Liquidity risk management
The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profile of financial assets and liabilities.
December 31, 2014
Net book
value

Agreed
total cash
outflows
(I+II+III+IV)

Less than
3 months (I)

3-12
months (II)

1-5 years
(III)

More than
5 years (IV)

Bank loans
Financial lease liabilities
Trade payables
Payables to related parties
Liabilities related to bonds issued

391,034,231
82,648,216
59,645,315
8,363,796
285,010,215

439,975,439
104,838,921
59,826,610
8,363,799
364,555,520

26,739,110
3,205,209
59,826,610
8,363,799
8,623,260

101,972,510
13,055,189
26,172,616

302,903,399
69,777,745
329,759,644

8,360,420
18,800,778
-

Total liabilities

826,701,773

977,560,289

106,757,988

141,200,315

702,440,788

27,161,198

Net book
value

Agreed
total cash
outflows
(I+II+III+IV)

Less than
3 months (I)

3-12
months (II)

1-5 years
(III)

More than
5 years (IV)

E. Off balance sheet items with credit risk

Bank loans
Factoring payables
Financial lease liabilities
Trade payables
Payables to related parties

481,160,909
10,000,000
12,522,849
41,692,556
85,248,862

481,199,976
10,000,000
13,969,404
41,692,556
85,248,862

8,912,024
10,000,000
1,262,263
41,692,556
85,248,862

58,916,617
3,786,784
-

413,371,335
8,920,357
-

-

(*) Items that increase the credit reliability, such as; letter of guarantees received, are not taken into account in the calculation.

Total liabilities

630,625,176

632,110,798

147,115,705

62,703,401

422,291,692

-

Agreement terms

E. Off balance sheet items with credit risk

Exposrue to credit risk as per financial instrument types
December 31, 2013

130

December 31, 2014

Receivables
Trade Receivables
Other Receivables
Third
Third
Related
Related
Party
Party
Party
Party

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Bank Derivatives
Deposits

Other

Maximum credit risk as of reporting date (*) (A+B+C+D+E)
- The part of maximum risk under guarantee with collateral etc.

8,891,366 134,883,355
- 39,930,476

-

-

39,447,345
-

-

9,604
-

A. Net book value of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

8,920,075 107,887,101

-

-

-

-

9,604

-

-

-

-

-

B. Net book value of financial assets that are renegotiated, if not that will
be accepted as past due or impaired

-

C. Net book value of financial assets that are past due but not impaired
- The part under guarantee with collateral etc.

-

26,996,254
3,664,747

-

-

-

-

-

D. Net book value of the assets impaired
- Overdue (gross carrying amount)
- Impairment (-)
- The part of net value under guarantee with collateral etc.
- Not overdue (gross carrying amount)
- Impairment (-)
- The part of net value under guarantee with collateral etc.

-

1,992,988
(1,992,988)
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

December 31, 2013
Agreement terms

Non-derivative financial liabilities
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NOTE 28 - CHARACTERISTICS AND LEVEL OF RISKS RESULTING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 28 - CHARACTERISTICS AND LEVEL OF RISKS RESULTING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Market risk management

Market risk management (Continued)

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign exchange rates and interest rates.

December 31, 2013

At a Group level market risk exposures are measured by sensitivity analysis
There has been no change to the Group’s exposure to market risks or the manner which it manages and measures the risk
compared to prior year.
Foreign currency risk management
Transactions involving foreign currency balances expose the Group to foreign currency risk. The foreign currency denominated
assets and liabilities of monetary and non-monetary items are as follows.
The table below summarized foreign currency position of the Group as of December 31, 2014 and 2013:
December 31, 2014
1.
2a.
2b.
3.
4.
5.
6a.
6b.
7.
8.
9.
10.
11.
12a.
12b.
13.
14.
15.
16a.
16b.
17.
18.
19.

Trade Receivables
Monetary Financial Assets
Non-monetary Financial Assets
Other
CURRENT ASSETS
Trade Receivables
Monetary Financial Assets
Non-monetary Financial Assets
Other
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS
Trade Payables
Financial Liabilities
Other monetary liabilities
Other non-monetary liabilities
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade payables
Financial liabilities
Other monetary liabilities
Other non-monetary liabilities
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES
Net Asset / (Liability) Position of the Off- Balance-Sheet Foreign Currency
Derivatives (19a-19b)
19a. Off-balance sheet foreign currency derivative assets
19b. Off-balance sheet foreign currency derivative liabilities
20. Net Foreign currency asset / (liability) position
21. Net Foreign currency asset / (liability) position of the monetary items
(1+2a+5+6a-10-11-12a-14-15-16a)
22. Fair value of foreign currency hedged financial assets
23. Hedged foreign currency assets
24. Hedged foreign currency liabilities
25. Exports
26. Imports
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TL Equivalent
(Functional Currency)

USD

EUR

CHF

87,228,459
3,399,939
11,413,621
102,042,019
11,631,297
11,631,297
113,673,316
17,108,066
116,687,372
1,117
133,796,555
210,643,845
210,643,845
344,440,400
-

14,619
1,900
365,467
381,986
381,986
1,527,711
10,967
1,538,678
6,705,482
6,705,482
8,244,160
-

30,912,383
1,203,791
3,745,928
35,862,102
4,123,550
4,123,550
39,985,652
4,809,252
41,359,216
396
46,168,864
69,165,279
69,165,279
115,334,143
-

-

(242,398,381)
(253,812,002)

(7,862,174)
(8,227,641)

(79,472,041)
(83,217,969)

-

72,325,505
80,297,362

889,883

24,858,892
27,058,748

3,210
64,271

1.
2a.
2b.
3.
4.
5.
6a.
6b.
7.
8.
9.
10.
11.
12a.
12b.
13.
14.
15.
16a.
16b.
17.
18.
19.

Trade Receivables
Monetary Financial Assets
Non-monetary Financial Assets
Other
CURRENT ASSETS
Trade Receivables
Monetary Financial Assets
Non-monetary Financial Assets
Other
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS
Trade Payables
Financial Liabilities
Other monetary liabilities
Other non-monetary liabilities
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade payables
Financial liabilities
Other monetary liabilities
Other non-monetary liabilities
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES
Net Asset / (Liability) Position of the Off- Balance-Sheet Foreign Currency
Derivatives (19a-19b)
19a. Off-balance sheet foreign currency derivative assets
19b. Off-balance sheet foreign currency derivative liabilities
20. Net Foreign currency asset / (liability) position
21. Net Foreign currency asset / (liability) position of the monetary items
(1+2a+5+6a-10-11-12a-14-15-16a)
22. Fair value of foreign currency hedged financial assets
23. Hedged foreign currency assets
24. Hedged foreign currency liabilities
25. Exports
26. Imports

TL Equivalent
(Functional Currency)

USD

EUR

CHF

305,412,566
6,925,675
19,872,911
332,211,152
332,211,152
112,583,905
41,081,867
38,628
153,704,400
190,883,298
190,883,298
344,587,698
-

70,737
600
480,492
551,829
551,829
1,012,910
1,012,910
5,000,000
5,000,000
6,012,910
-

103,954,229
2,358,043
6,418,320
112,730,592
112,730,592
36,121,479
13,990,079
13,154
50,124,713
61,369,589
61,369,589
111,494,302
-

1,820,715
1,820,715
1,820,715
-

(12,376,546)
(32,249,457)

(5,461,081)
(5,941,573)

1,236,290
(5,182,030)

(1,820,715)
(1,820,715)

404,511,238
303,381,897

269,397

103,266,811
137,659,271

53,866
1,536

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Total Export
Total Import
Total Hedging Ratio of Foreign Currency Liability

72,325,505
80,297,362
0%

404,511,238
303,381,897
0%

As of December 31, 2014 foreign currency dominated assets and liability balances were converted with the following
exchange rates;: 2.3189 TL = USD 1, 2.8207 TL = EUR 1, 3.5961 TL = GBP 1 and TL 2.3397 TL = CHF 1 (December 31, 2013:
1.7826 TL = USD 1, 2.3517 TL = EUR 1, 2.8708 TL = GBP 1 and TL 1.9430 = CHF 1).
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NOTE 28 - CHARACTERISTICS AND LEVEL OF RISKS RESULTING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 28 - CHARACTERISTICS AND LEVEL OF RISKS RESULTING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Foreign currency sensitivity

Interest-rate risk management

The Group undertakes certain transactions denominated in EUR, USD hence exposures to certain exchange rate fluctuations arise.

Financial liabilities based on fixed and floating interest rates expose the Group to interest rate risk.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 10% increase and decrease in TL against EUR, USD, GBP 10% is used
in, the reporting of currency risk to the key management and it represents the management’s expectation on the potential
exchange currency fluctuations. Sensitivity analysis related to the foreign currency exposure risk of the Group is determined
according to the change at the beginning of the fiscal year and is kept stable throughout the reporting period. Negative value
represents the effect of the 10% increase in value of EUR, USD, GBP against TL on the income statement.

Interest rates on financial liabilities to which the Group is exposed to are detailed at Note 7, financial liabilities.

December 31, 2014
Profit/Loss
Appreciation of
foreign currency

Profit/Loss
Depreciation of
foreign currency

(1,823,160)
(1,823,160)

1,823,160
1,823,160

(22,416,679)
(22,416,679)

22,416,679
22,416,679

(24,239,838)

24,239,838

10% change in USD against TL:
123-

USD net asset/liability
Part of hedged from the USD risk (-)
USD net effect (1+2)

Interest rate sensitivity
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates at the balance sheet date and
the stipulated change taking place at the beginning of the financial year and held constant throughout the reporting period.
A 0.5% basis point increase or decrease on Euribor is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the possible change in interest rates.
If interest rate of government bond had been 0.5% higher and all other variables were held constant:
Loss for the period ended January 1 - December 31, 2014 would increase by TL 250,511 (January 1 - December 31, 2013: TL
596,567). This is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable rate borrowings. If Euribor had
been 0.5% lower, the loss of the Group for period ended will decrease by the same amount.

10% change in EUR against TL:
456-

EUR net asset/liability
Part of hedged from the EUR risk (-)
Net EUR effect (4+5)

Total (3+6)

December 31, 2013
Profit/Loss
Appreciation of
foreign currency

Profit/Loss
Depreciation of
foreign currency

(1,165,559)
(1,165,559)

1,165,559
1,165,559

363,037
363,037

(363,037)
(363,037)

(435,133)
(435,133)

435,133
435,133

1,237,655

1,237,655

10% change in USD against TL:
123-

USD net asset/liability
Part of hedged from the USD risk (-)
USD net effect (1+2)

Financial instruments with fixed interest rates
Financial assets
- Designated as fair value through profit or loss (*)
Financial liabilities

December 31, 2014

December 31, 2013

13,614,727
473,682,447

39,440,493
560,640,582

Financial instruments with floating interest rates

December 31, 2014

December 31, 2013

285,010,215

25,277,875

Financial assets
Financial liabilities

(*) Financial assets designated as fair value through profit or loss consists of fixed interest rate time deposits with maturities less than three months
(Note 6).

10% change in EUR against TL:
456-

EUR net asset/liability
Part of hedged from the EUR risk (-)
Net EUR effect (4+5)

10% change in CHF against TL:
789-

CHF net asset/liability
Part of hedged from the CHF risk (-)
Net CHF effect (7+8)

Total (3+6+9)
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NOTE 29 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (FAIR VALUE DISCLOSURES AND HEDGING DISCLOSURES)

NOTE 29 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (FAIR VALUE DISCLOSURES AND HEDGING DISCLOSURES) (Continued)
Financial assets at
amortised cost

Fair value of financial instruments
The estimated fair values of financial instruments have been determined by the Group using available market information
and appropriate valuation methodologies. However, judgment is necessarily required to interpret market data to estimate
the fair value. Accordingly, the estimates presented herein are not necessarily indicative of the amounts the Group could
realise in a current market exchange.
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of the financial instruments for which it is
practicable to estimate fair value:
Monetary assets
The fair values of certain financial assets carried at cost, including cash and amounts due from banks are considered to
approximate their respective carrying values due to their short-term nature.

Loans and
receivables

Avaliable for
sale financial
assets

Financial liabilities at
amortised cost

Carrying
value

Fair value

Note

December 31, 2014
Financial Assets
17,764,272

-

-

-

17,778,999

17,778,999

6

Trade receivables

-

169,292,525

-

-

169,292,525

169,292,525

9

Other financial assets

-

-

265,634

-

265,634

265,634

7

Short-term financial liabilities

-

-

-

116,653,866

116,653,866

116,653,866

8

Long-term financial liabilities

-

-

-

642,038,796

642,038,796

642,038,796

8

Trade payables

-

-

-

59,645,315

59,645,315

59,645,315

9

Payables to related parties

-

-

-

8,363,796

8,363,796

8,363,796

5

Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities

December 31, 2013

The carrying values of trade receivables are estimated to be their fair values.
Financial assets

Fair value of financial assets held to maturity determines with market prices or in case of the price is not calculated with basis
on market prices of securities quoted for similar qualified in interest, maturity and other conditions.
Fair value of given advances and loans to customers is calculated by determining cash flows discounted with current market
interest rate. Carrying value of variable interest rate loans approximately assumed as fair value.
Financial liabilities
The fair values of short-term bank loans and trade payables are considered to approximate their book values due to their
short-term nature. Fair value of long-term financial liabilities is calculated by determining cash flows discounted with current
market interest rate.
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39,440,493

-

-

-

39,440,493

39,440,493

6

Trade receivables

-

142,624,783

-

-

142,624,783

142,624,783

9

Other financial assets

-

-

313,793

313,793

313,793

Short-term financial liabilities

-

-

-

82,054,700

82,054,700

82,054,700

8

Long-term financial liabilities

-

-

-

421,629,057

421,629,057

421,629,057

8

Trade payables

-

-

-

41,692,556

41,692,556

41,692,556

9

Payables to related parties

-

-

-

85,248,862

85,248,862

85,248,862

5

Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities
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NOTES 30 				

OTHER ISSUES THAT SIGNIFICANTLY AFFECT THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OR OTHER ISSUES ,		
REQUIRED FOR THE CLEAR UNDERSTANDING OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Related decision of Capital Market board published in Capital Markets Board’s weekly bulletin numbered 2014/02 The Group
claimed the stay of execution and files an annulment action to Ankara 11. İdare Mahkemesi. The Court rejected the lawsuit on
procedural grounds. Karsan brought the rejection to the appeal and announced it at material disclosure
- Since the part of the transaction that pertains to the filing of a criminal complaint with the Public Prosecution Office
comprises a decision that serves as a notification to the relevant authority regarding the criminal adjudication as opposed to
being an administrative act and is aimed at commencing of the judicial stage, such part does not comprise an administrative
transaction which may form the subject of an administrative file,”
- “Within the context of the part of the transaction comprising the subject matter of the lawsuit in question which pertains
to the notification of the two related companies regarding the return of the amounts that had been transferred from the
Company to Heksagon A.Ş. in a concealed manner and to the request with regard to putting the matter on the agenda of
the general assembly of Karsan A.Ş. in order that the Company shareholders may be informed regarding their right to resort
to legal means regarding such matter; by reason of the fact that pursuant to the Law numbered 2499 as well as the Law
numbered 6362, the Capital Markets Board has not been granted an authority of ex officio sanction enforcement in case
of the failure of the relevant parties to comply with the decisions of the Capital Markets Board requesting the said parties
to take precautions or perform transactions with respect to transactions leading to decrease or loss of capital of joint stock
corporations that fall within the scope of the Law, whereby the Capital Markets Board only has the authority to refer such
matter to the institutions authorized thereof, the transactions in question cannot be accepted as definitive administrative
actions obliged to be enforced which are capable of becoming the subject of an administrative lawsuit introducing change in
the legal arena.”
- “The case has been dismissed without entering the merits stage in respect of all the transactions pertaining to the
following: the inspection being held over the transactions performed in 2013 between the two companies; the giving of
information to the Ministry of Science, Technology and Industry and the Ministry of Finance in order to allow assessment of
the matter in accordance with their own legislation; submission of a copy of the audit report and its annexes to the Department
of Legal Affairs by taking into account the transactions which must be performed pursuant to Article 115 of the Law No.
6362; and the giving of information to the Department of Partnership Financing in respect of the results of the inspection
in question. Such dismissal was based on the reasons that the said transactions constitute transactions that pertain to the
intra-functioning of the administration, which do not directly affect the laws of the claimant and directly amend their rights
and obligations, and that such transactions do not comprise a definitive and enforceable administrative transaction.
On ground of trying the merits of the case, Company decided to take the case for appeal.
1) An additional protocol has been signed in July 2014 for the continuance of the negotiations regarding the Joint Venture
agreement signed in China in May 2014 between the Company and Wuhan Zhong Yuan Bang Tai Investment Holding Co.
to establish a new company which will produce Karsan’s products and J10 in China with the tangible and intangible assets
amounting to TL 29,301,831 in total, which consist of the machinery and equipment by TL 14,238,301 and the research and
development expenses by TL 15,063,530 and classified as assets held for sales. The negotiations are in progress to finalise
the process in the short term.
2) The necessary industrial investment has been completed within the scope of the agreement signed on November 27,
2012 with the group’s business partner, Hyundai Motor Company (HMC), for the production of 200 thousand units or more
in 7 years of the light commercial vehicle newly developed by HMC with a maximum loaded weight of 3-6 tons and versions
of light trucks, vans and minibuses. Trial production is currently underway, and mass production is planned to start in March 2015.
NOTE 31 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
The group submitted the best offer at the Kocaeli Metropolitan Municipality tender with regard to the order of “200 units of
CNG Solo Buses”, and on March 9, 2015 the Group received the official notification that it was awarded the contract.
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Head Office and Factory
Hasanağa Organize Sanayi Bölgesi (HOSAB), Sanayi Cad. 16225 Nilüfer/Bursa
Tel: +90 (224) 484 21 70 (25 hat) - +90 (224) 280 30 00
Fax: +90 (224) 484 21 69
Organized Industrial Zone Factory
Organize Sanayi Bölgesi Mavi Cad. No: 13 16159 Nilüfer/Bursa
Tel: +90 (224) 243 33 10 (4 hat)
Fax: +90 (224) 243 74 50
Istanbul Office
Emek Mah. Ordu Cad. N0: 10 34785 Sarıgazi, Sancaktepe/İstanbul
Tel: +90 (216) 499 65 50
Fax: +90 (216) 499 65 53
www.karsan.com.tr
karsan@ karsan.com.tr
		 facebook.com/KarsanOtomotiv
		 twitter.com/KarsanOtomotiv

Karsan Otomotiv Sanayii ve Ticaret A.Ş. is an affiliate of the Kıraça Group of Companies.

